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BACKGROUND

This Placement Memorandum is related to the Debentures to be issued by Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited (the
"Issuer" or "Company") on a private placement basis and contains relevant information and disclosures required for
the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of the Debentures comprised in the Issue and described under this
Placement Memorandum has been authorised by the Issuer through resolutions passed by the shareholders of the
Issuer on March 15, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Issuer on February 20, 2023, June 12, 2023 and June 15, 2023,
and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer. The present issue of Debentures in terms of this
Placement Memorandum is within the overall powers of the Board as per the above shareholder resolution(s).

ISSUER'S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Placement
Memorandum contains all information with regard to the Issuer and the Issue which is material in the context of the
Issue, that the information contained in this Placement Memorandum is true and correct in all material aspects and
is not misleading, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly stated and that there are no other
facts, the omission of which make this Placement Memorandum as a whole or any of such information or the
expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading.

DISCLAIMER

> THIS PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM CONTAINS NO UNSUBSTANTIATED FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. TO
THE EXTENT THERE ARE ANY UNSUBSTANTIATED FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS UNDER THIS PLACEMENT
MEMORANDUM, SUCH STATEMENTS SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO BE NULL AND VOID.

> THIS ISSUE DOES NOT FORM PART OF NON-EQUITY REGULATORY CAPITAL FOR THE PURPOSES OF CHAPTER V OF
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES)
REGULATIONS, 2021 AND CHAPTER XIII (ISSUANCE, LISTING AND TRADING NON-EQUITY REGULATORY CAPITAL)
OF THE CIRCULAR ISSUED BY SEBI BEARING THE REFERENCE NUMBER SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 DATED
AUGUST 10, 2021 ON "OPERATIONAL CIRCULAR FOR ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES,
SECURITISED DEBT INSTRUMENTS, SECURITY RECEIPTS, MUNICIPAL DEBT SECURITIES AND COMMERCIAL PAPER"
READ TOGETHER WITH SEBI CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-RACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/027 DATED FEBRUARY
8, 2023 ON "CLARIFICATION W.R.T. ISSUANCE AND LISTING OF PERPETUAL DEBT INSTRUMENTS, PERPETUAL
NON-CUMULATIVE PREFERENCE SHARES AND SIMILAR INSTRUMENTS UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE SEBI (ISSUE
AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES) REGULATIONS, 2021". THE FACE VALUE OF EACH DEBT
SECURITY ISSUED ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS UNDER THIS ISSUE IS INR 1,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH).
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SECTION 1:

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Capitalised terms used herein and not defined shall have the meanings given to them in the Transaction
Documents. Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings
given below in this Placement Memorandum.

GENERAL DEFINITIONS

Act/Companies Act

means the Companies Act, 2013, and shall include any re-enactment,
amendment or modification of the Companies Act, 2013, as in effect from
time to time.

Applicant

means a person who has submitted a completed Application Form to the
Issuer, and "Applicants" shall be construed accordingly.

Application Form

means the application form for subscription of the Debentures annexed to
this Placement Memorandum and marked as Annexure IV.

Application Money

means the subscription amounts paid by the Debenture Holders at the
time of submitting the Application Form.

Board / Board of Directors

means the Board of Directors of the Issuer.

BSE

means BSE Limited

CDSL

Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Company/Issuer/Bank/Fincare
SFB

means Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited.

Crore / Cr. / Crs.

Ten Million

Debentures/NCDs

means 4,900 (four thousand and nine hundred) rated, subordinated,
unsecured, listed, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees
One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 49,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Forty Nine Crore).

Debenture Holders/ Investors

means each person who is:

(a) registered as a Beneficial Owner; and
(b) registered as a debenture holder in the Register of Debenture
Holders.

(a) and (b) above shall be deemed to include transferees of the
Debentures registered with the Issuer and the Depository(ies)
from time to time, and in the event of any inconsistency between
(a) and (b) above, (a) shall prevail,

shall be construed

and "Debenture Holder" or "Investor"

accordingly.

Debenture Trustee
Agreement

means the agreement executed / to be executed by and between the
Debenture Trustee and the Issuer inter alia for the purposes of
appointment of the Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in
connection with the issuance of the Debentures.

Debenture Trustees
Regulations/SEBI Debenture
Trustees Regulations

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees)
Regulations, 1993, amended, modified, supplemented, or restated from
time to time.

Debenture Trust Deed/DTD

means the debenture trust deed executed / to be executed by and
between the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer inter alia recording the
terms and conditions upon which the Debentures are being issued and
shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be
provided by the Issuer.
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Debt Disclosure Documents

means, collectively, the PPOA and this Placement Memorandum, and
"Debt Disclosure Document" means any one of them.

Deemed Date of Allotment

means June 15, 2023.

Demat

means the dematerialized securities which are securities that are in
electronic form, and not in physical form, with the entries noted by the
Depository.

Depositories Act

means the Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depositories

means the depositories with whom the Issuer has made arrangements for
dematerialising the Debentures, being NSDL and CDSL, and "Depository"
means any one of them.

Depository Participant / DP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

Director(s)

means the director(s) of the Issuer.

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number.

DRR has the meaning given to it in Section 6.28 (Other details) of this Placement
Memorandum.

EFT Electronic Fund Transfer

Eligible Investors

has the meaning given to it in Section 9.14 below.

ISIN

means International Securities Identification Number.

Issue

means this issue of the Debentures on a private placement basis pursuant
to this Placement Memorandum.

Issue Closing Date

June 15, 2023

Issue Opening Date

June 15, 2023

Listed NCDs Operational
Circular

means the circular issued by SEBI bearing the reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 on "Operational
Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt
Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial
Paper", as amended, modified, supplemented, or restated from time to
time.

MFI

Micro Finance Institution

N.A.

Not Applicable

New Capital Adequacy

means the Reserve Bank of India's circular on "Master Circular - Prudential

Framework/Basel Il Guidelines on Capital Adequacy and Market Discipline-New Capital

Framework Adequacy Framework (NCAF)" dated July 1, 2015, as amended, modified,
supplemented or restated from time to time.

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

PAN Permanent Account Number

Placement means this placement memorandum issued by the Issuer in respect of the

Memorandum/PM/Offer Debentures proposed to be issued.

Document

Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter(s)/PPOA

means the private placement offer cum application letter(s) prepared in
compliance with Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, issued by
the Issuer in respect of the Debentures.

Purpose

means the purpose set out in Section 8.1 below.

Rating

means the credit rating for the Debentures from the Rating Agency, which
has affirmed a rating of "A (Positive)" to the Issue through its letter dated
June 9, 2023.

Rating Agency

means ICRA Limited.

RBI

Reserve Bank of India.
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Record Date

The date which will be used for determining the Debenture Holders who
shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any Due Date, which shall
be the date falling 15 (fifteen) calendar days prior to any Due Date.

Recovery Expense Fund

means the recovery expense fund established/to be established and
maintained by the Company in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
IV (Recovery Expenses Fund) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational
Circular.

Register of Beneficial Owners

means the register of beneficial owners of the Debentures maintained in
the records of the Depositories.

Register of Debenture Holders

means the register maintained by the Issuer in accordance with Section 88
of the Companies Act.

R&T Agent/Registrar means the registrar and transfer agent appointed for the issue of
Debentures, being KFIN Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFIN
Technologies Private Limited)

ROC means the jurisdictional registrar of companies.

Rs. / INR Indian National Rupees.

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.

SEBI means the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations/Debt Listing
Regulations

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 read with the SEBI's circular
bearing the reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-
RACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/027 dated February 8, 2023 on "Clarification w.r.t.
issuance and listing of perpetual debt instruments, perpetual non-
cumulative preference shares and similar instruments under Chapter V
of the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021", each as amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time
to time.

SEBI Debenture Trustees
Operational Circular

means the SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2023/50 dated March 31, 2023, on "Operational
Circular for Debenture Trustees" to the extent applicable in respect of the
private placement of debt securities, as amended, modified,
supplemented, or restated from time to time.

SEBI Listed Debentures
Circulars

means, collectively, the Listed NCDs Operational Circular, the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Operational Circular, the SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations, and the LODR Regulations (to the extent applicable).

SEBI Listing Timelines
Requirements

means the requirements in respect of the timelines for listing of debt
securities issued on a private placement basis prescribed in Chapter VI
(Standardization of timelines for listing of securities issued on a private
placement basis) of the Listed NCDs Operational Circular.

SEBI LODR Regulations/LODR

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Regulations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, modified,
supplemented, or restated from time to time.
Tax means any present or future tax (direct or indirect), levy, duty, charge,

fees, deductions, withholdings, surcharges, cess, turnover tax, transaction
tax, stamp tax or other charge of a similar nature (including any penalty or
interest payable on account of any failure to pay or delay in paying the
same), now or hereafter, imposed pursuant to any Applicable Law or by
any Governmental Authority.

Tax Deduction

means a deduction or withholding for or on account of Tax from a payment
under a Transaction Document pursuant to Applicable Law.

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source.

Transaction Documents

means:
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(a) the DTD;

(b) the Debenture Trustee Agreement;
(c) the Debt Disclosure Documents;
(d) the letters issued by the, and each memorandum of

understanding/agreement entered into with, the Rating Agency,
the Debenture Trustee and/or the Registrar;

(e) each tripartite agreement between the Issuer, the Registrar and
the relevant Depository;

(f) the resolutions and corporate authorisations provided pursuant
to the Conditions Precedent; and

(g) any other document that may be designated as a Transaction
Document by the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Holders,

and "Transaction Document" means any of them.

WDM

Wholesale Debt Market

Wilful Defaulter

means an issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by any Bank or
financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
includes an issuer whose director or promoter is categorized as such.

TRANSACTION SPECIFIC DEFINITIONS

Applicable Law

means all applicable statutes, enactments or acts of any legislative body in
India, laws, ordinances, rules, bye-laws, regulations, notifications,
guidelines, policies, directions, directives and orders of any Governmental
Authority and any modifications or re-enactments thereof.

Business Day

means:

(a) subject to (b) and (c) below, means any day on which commercial
banks in Mumbai, India are open for business;

(b) for the period commencing on the Issue Opening Date until the
Issue Closing Date, any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or a
public holiday under Section 25 of the Negotiable Instruments
Act, 1881), on which commercial banks in Mumbai, India are open
for business; and

(c) for the period commencing on the Issue Closing Date until the
listing of the Debentures in accordance with the DTD, any trading
day of BSE, other than a Saturday, Sunday or a bank holiday, as
specified by SEBI,

and "Business Days" shall be construed accordingly.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

means the capital adequacy ratio determined in accordance with the
directions/guidelines issued by the RBI.

Due Dates

means the dates on which any interest, any Outstanding Principal
Amounts, any additional interest, any liquidated damages, any premature
redemption amount and/or any other amounts payable are due and
payable, including without limitation, the Interest Payment Dates, the
Final Redemption Date, or any other date on which any payment is to be

7
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made by the Issuer under the Transaction Documents, and "Due Date"
shall be construed accordingly.

Final Redemption Date

means the date occurring on the expiry of a period of 5 (five) years and 6
(six) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment, being December 15,
2028.

Final Settlement Date

means the date on which all Obligations have been irrevocably and
unconditionally paid and discharged in full to the satisfaction of the
Debenture Holders.

Financial Year

means each period of 12 (twelve) months commencing on April 1 of any
calendar year and ending on March 31 of the subsequent calendar year.

Governmental Authority

means any government (central, state or otherwise) or any governmental
agency, semi-governmental or judicial or quasi-judicial or administrative
entity, department or authority, agency or authority including any stock
exchange or any self-regulatory organisation, established under any
Applicable Law, and "Governmental Authorities" shall be construed
accordingly.

Interest Payment Dates

means the dates on which interest is payable on the Debentures, and
"Interest Payment Date" shall be construed accordingly. The indicative
interest payment dates are set out in Annexure VI below.

Interest Rate

means 10.75% (ten decimal seven five percent) per annum.

Lower Tier Il Capital

means the "Lower Tier Il Capital" determined in accordance with the
directions/guidelines issued by the RBI.

Majority Debenture Holders

means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding more than
51% (fifty one percent) of the value of the Outstanding Principal Amounts
of the Debentures.

Majority Resolution

means a resolution approved by the Majority Debenture Holders.

Obligations

means all present and future obligations (whether actual or contingent
and whether owed jointly or severally or in any capacity whatsoever) of
the Issuer to the Debenture Holders or the Debenture Trustee under the
Transaction Documents, including without limitation, the making of
payment of any interest, redemption of principal amounts, the interest
amounts, default interest, additional interest, liquidated damages and all
costs, charges, expenses and other amounts payable by the Issuer in
respect of the Debentures.

SFB Directions

means the RBl's circular bearing the notification no.
DBR.NBD.N0.26/16.13.218/2016-17 dated October 6, 2016 on "Operating
Guidelines for Small Finance Banks" and the RBI's circular bearing the
notification no. FIDD.CO.SFB.N0.9/04.09.001/2017-18 dated July 6, 2017
on "Small Finance Banks — Compendium of Guidelines on Financial
Inclusion and Development", each as amended, modified, supplemented
or restated from time to time.

Special Majority Debenture
Holders

means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding more than
75% (seventy five percent) of the value of the Outstanding Principal
Amounts of the Debentures.

Special Resolution

means resolution approved by the Special Majority Debenture Holders.

Tier | Capital means the "Tier | Capital" determined in accordance with the
directions/guidelines of the RBI.
Tier Il Capital means the "Tier Il Capital" determined in accordance with the

directions/guidelines of the RBI.

Upper Tier Il Capital

means the "Upper Tier Il Capital" determined in accordance with the
directions/guidelines of the RBI.
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SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS
2.1 ISSUER'S DISCLAIMER

This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus and should not
be construed to be a prospectus or a statement in lieu of a prospectus under the Companies Act. The issue of
the Debentures to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE is being made strictly on a private placement
basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to the same person and
shall be treated as such. This Placement Memorandum does not constitute and shall not be deemed to
constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to the Debentures to the public in general.

As per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this Placement Memorandum to be filed or
submitted to the SEBI for its review and/or approval. This Placement Memorandum has been prepared in
conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations as amended from time to time and applicable RBI
regulations governing private placements of debentures. This Placement Memorandum has been prepared
solely to provide general information about the Issuer to Eligible Investors (as defined hereunder) to whom it
is addressed and who are willing and eligible to subscribe to the Debentures. This Placement Memorandum
does not purport to contain all the information that any Eligible Investor may require. Further, this Placement
Memorandum has been prepared for informational purposes relating to this transaction only and upon the
express understanding that it will be used only for the purposes set forth herein.

Neither this Placement Memorandum nor any other information supplied in connection with the Debentures
is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this Placement
Memorandum should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any Debentures. Each
potential Investor contemplating subscription to any Debentures should make its own independent
investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness
of the Issuer. Potential investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other professional advisors
as to the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in the Debentures and should
possess the appropriate resources to analyse such investment and the suitability of such investment to such
potential Investor's particular circumstances.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this Placement Memorandum (including the documents
incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the context of the
Issue and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and is accurate in all such material respects. No
person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained or
incorporated by reference in this Placement Memorandum or in any material made available by the Issuer to
any potential Investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be
relied upon as having being authorized by the Issuer. The Issuer certifies that the disclosures made in this
Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) are adequate and in
conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014. Further, the Issuer accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in the
Placement Memorandum or any other material issued by or at the instance of the Issuer and anyone placing
reliance on any source of information other than this Placement Memorandum would be doing so at its own
risk.

This Placement Memorandum, the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) and the respective
contents hereof respectively, are restricted only for the intended recipient(s) who have been addressed
directly and specifically through a communication by the Issuer and only such recipients are eligible to apply
for the Debentures. All Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable
to them for investing in this Issue. The contents of this Placement Memorandum and/or the Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) are intended to be used only by those Investors to whom it is
distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other person and should not be reproduced by the
recipient.

No invitation is being made to any persons other than those to whom Application Forms along with this
Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) being issued have
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been sent. Any application by a person to whom the Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement
Offer cum Application Letter(s) has not been sent by the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning any reason.

The person who is in receipt of this Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement cum Application
Offer Letter(s) shall not reproduce or distribute in whole or in part or make any announcement in public or to
a third party regarding the contents hereof without the consent of the Issuer. The recipient agrees to keep
confidential all information provided (or made available hereafter), including, without limitation, the
existence and terms of the Issue, any specific pricing information related to the Issue or the amount or terms
of any fees payable to the Issuer or any other person in connection with the Issue. This Placement
Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) may not be photocopied,
reproduced, or distributed to others at any time without the prior written consent of the Issuer. Upon request,
the recipients will promptly return all material received from the Issuer (including this Placement
Memorandum) without retaining any copies hereof. If any recipient of this Placement Memorandum and/or
the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) decides not to participate in the Issue, that recipient
must promptly return this Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application
Letter(s) and all reproductions whether in whole or in part and any other information statement, notice,
opinion, memorandum, expression or forecast made or supplied at any time in relation thereto or received in
connection with the Issue to the Issuer.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer
cum Application Letter(s) to reflect subsequent events after the date of Placement Memorandum and/or the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such
subsequent events without first confirming its accuracy with the Issuer.

Neither the delivery of this Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application
Letter(s) nor any sale of Debentures made hereafter shall, under any circumstances, constitute a
representation or create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the
date hereof.

This Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) does not
constitute, nor may it be used for or in connection with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction
in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an
offer or solicitation. No action is being taken to permit an offering of the Debentures or the distribution of
this Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) in any jurisdiction
where such action is required. Persons into whose possession this Placement Memorandum and/or the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) comes are required to inform themselves of, and to
observe, any such restrictions. The Placement Memorandum is made available to potential Investors in the
Issue on the strict understanding that it is confidential.

2.2 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, a copy of this Placement Memorandum has been filed with the BSE in terms of the SEBI Debt
Listing Regulations. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this Placement Memorandum to the
BSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this Placement Memorandum has been
reviewed, cleared, or approved by the BSE; nor does the BSE in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the
correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Placement Memorandum, nor does the BSE
warrant that the Issuer's Debentures will be listed or will continue to be listed on the BSE; nor does the BSE
take any responsibility for the soundness of the financial and other conditions of the Issuer, its promoters, its
management or any scheme or project of the Issuer.

2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF RBI

The Issuer is having a License pursuant to Section 22(1) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 dated May 12,
2017 to carry on Small Finance Banking business in India. However, the RBI does not accept any responsibility
or guarantee about the present position as to the financial soundness of the Issuer or the correctness of any
of the statements or representations made or opinion expressed by the Issuer and for repayment of
deposits/discharge of liabilities by the Issuer.
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2.4 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

As per the provisions of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, it is not stipulated that a copy of this Placement
Memorandum has to be filed with or submitted to the SEBI for its review / approval. It is to be distinctly
understood that this Placement Memorandum should not in any way be deemed or construed to have been
approved or vetted by SEBI and that this Issue is not recommended or approved by SEBI. SEBI does not take
any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any proposal for which the Debentures issued thereof
is proposed to be made or for the correctness of the statements made or opinions expressed in this Placement
Memorandum.

2.5 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Issue is made in India to investors as specified under the paragraph titled "Eligible Investors" of this
Placement Memorandum, who shall be/have been identified upfront by the Issuer. This Placement
Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) does not constitute an offer to
sell or an invitation to subscribe to Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it is not specifically
addressed. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts and
tribunals at the location set out in Section 8.1 (Summary Terms). This Placement Memorandum and/or the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to
subscribe to the Debentures herein, in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make an
offer or invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.6 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the
concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Rating Agency has based its ratings on
information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. The Rating Agency does not,
however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for
any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose
bank facilities/instruments are rated by the Rating Agency have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount
and type of bank facilities/instruments.

2.7 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the
Depositories for the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the
Debentures in dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take necessary
steps to credit the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investors with its their
respective depositary participant. The Issuer will make the Allotment to the Investors on the Deemed Date of
Allotment after verification of the Application Form, the accompanying documents and on realisation of the
application money.
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SECTION 3: DETAILS OF PROMOTERS OF THE ISSUER

The details of the Promoters of the Issuer are set out below:

1. FINCARE BUSINESS SERVICES LIMITED

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)
()
(8)
(h)
(i)
(i)
(k)

()

(m)

Photo/Logo: N.A.
Date of Incorporation: August 1, 2014
Age: NA

Registered Address: 301-302, Abhijeet - V, Opp. Mayor's Bunglow, Law Garden Road,
Mithakhali, Ahmedabad 380 006, Gujarat, India

Educational Qualifications: NA

Experience in the business or employment: NA
Positions/posts held in the past: NA
Directorships held: NA

Other ventures of the promoter: NIL

Special achievements: NA

Their business and financial activities: Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting
public deposit.

Permanent Accountant Number: AACCF4303)

Other details (CIN) : U74900GJ2014PLC132578

The Issuer hereby confirms and declares, to the extent appliable, that Permanent Account Number,
Aadhaar Number, Driving License Number, Bank Account Number(s) and Passport Number of the
promoters and Permanent Account Number of directors have been submitted to BSE, at the time of filing
the draft Placement Memorandum.
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SECTION 4: GENERAL RISKS

GENERAL RISK

Investment in non-convertible securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds
in such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors are advised
to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully before investing in this offering. For
taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue including the risks
involved in it. Specific attention of investors is invited to statement of risk factors contained under Section
4 of this Placement Memorandum. These risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of all
risks and considerations relevant to the non-convertible securities or investor's decision to purchase such
securities.

RISK FACTORS

The following are the risks relating to the Issuer, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged by the
management of the Issuer. Potential Investors should carefully consider all the risk factors stated in this
Placement Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) for evaluating the
Issuer and its business and the Debentures before making any investment decision relating to the Debentures.
The Issuer believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the
Debentures but does not represent that the statements below regarding risks of holding the Debentures are
exhaustive. Potential Investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Placement
Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s) and reach their own views prior
to making any investment decision.

4.1 REPAYMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE CREDIT RISK OF THE ISSUER.

Potential Investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e. the redemption amount) and
any other amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of the Issuer
whereby the Investors may or may not recover all or part of the funds in case of default by the Issuer. Potential
Investors assume the risk that the Issuer will not be able to satisfy their obligations under the Debentures. In
the event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme of arrangement or similar proceedings to
avert bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums due on the Debentures may not
be made or may be substantially reduced or delayed.

4.2 RISKS IN RELATION TO THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES; THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR
DEBENTURES MAY BE ILLIQUID; LIMITED OR SPORADIC TRADING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER ON THE STOCK EXCHANGES.

(a) Investments in subordinated debt securities involve a degree of risk
and investors should not invest any funds in the Debentures, unless
they can afford to take risks attached to such investments. The
Debentures are subordinated debt securities and not deposits of the
Bank and they cannot be used as collateral for any loan made by the
Bank. The Debentures are different from fixed deposits and are not
covered by deposit insurance. Unlike the fixed deposits where
deposits are repaid at the option of deposit holder, the Debentures
are not redeemable at the option of the Debenture Holders or without
the prior consent of the Reserve Bank of India.

(b) The Debentures may be very illiquid, and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof. Even
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if there is a secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant liquidity.
Potential Investors may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize any value.

4.3 CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADE RISK

The Rating Agency has assigned the credit rating to the Debentures. In the event of deterioration in the
financial health of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the rating agency may downgrade the rating of the
Debentures. In such cases, potential Investors may incur losses on revaluation of their investment or make
provisions towards sub-standard/ non-performing investment as per their usual norms.

4.4 CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE PRICE OF DEBENTURES.

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as this Issue, are subject to price risk. The price of
such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest rates rise, prices
of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in
the prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of
prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/or a growing
economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the pricing of the Debentures.

4.5 TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

Special tax considerations and legal considerations may apply to certain types of investors. Potential Investors
are urged to consult with their own financial, legal, tax and other advisors to determine any financial, legal,
tax and other implications of this investment.

4.6 ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Special accounting considerations may apply to certain types of taxpayers. Potential Investors are urged to
consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications of this investment.

4.7 RISKS IN RELATION TO THE SECURITY; SECURITY MAY BE INSUFFICIENT TO REDEEM THE
DEBENTURES; RISKS IN RELATION TO MAINTENANCE OF SECURITY COVER OR FULL RECOVERY OF
THE SECURITY IN CASE OF ENFORCEMENT

Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

4.8 MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT COULD IMPAIR THE
ISSUER'S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS.

The Issuer is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations and
policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect the
profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its activities,
increasing costs or otherwise.

4.9 LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors in the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the
Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of their incorporation or the jurisdiction in which they
operate or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy applicable
to it.

4.10 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from the domestic
market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in economic growth, investment and
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consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for credit
and other financial products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or negative growth
of sectors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its performance. Any such
slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

4.11 RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

e As a result of our limited operating history, we may not be able to compete successfully in our
newer product categories and it may be difficult to evaluate our business and future operating
results on the basis of our past performance.

o We have 15 years of experience in microfinance, having begun microfinance operations in
2007 via Future Financial Servicess Private Limited, the business of which we acquired in
2016. On May 12, 2017, the RBI granted us a license to carry on small finance banking in
terms of Section 22 (1) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. We began operations as an SFB
on July 21, 2017.

Prior to commencing operations as an SFB, our primary offering was microloans. Our limited
track record in our newer loan products, such as loans against property, loans against gold,
institutional finance, two-wheeler loans, affordable housing loans and overdraft as well as
on the deposit side, such as savings accounts, current accounts, Fincare-101 digital savings
accounts, fixed deposits including retail term deposits and bulk term deposits, recurring
deposits and their variants, exposes us to risks that more experienced competitors may not
face. The interest rates that we offer in deposit products are varied based on the tenor of
the deposits. For the newer loan products, we do not have a long track record of credit
underwriting for some of these segments, nor an extensive data set to analyze repayment
patterns, and hence our credit underwriting models may prove to be less effective as
compared to competitors who have been in similar businesses for a longer period.

e 25% of our total banking outlets are required to be located in unbanked rural areas. If we are
unable to effectively manage the growth associated with our expansion, our financial, accounting,
administrative and technology infrastructure, as well as our business and reputation could be
adversely affected.

o As part of our growth, we have expanded our network of banking outlets (including those
operated by our business correspondents), and accordingly many of the banking outlets are
yet to attain full maturity. Since we commenced operations in July 2017, 495 of our banking
outlets have completed three years of operation, and the rest are accordingly not mature
outlets as per our internal assessment. As of March 31, 2023, we had an average Gross Loan
Portfolio of X 81.45 million per outlet and an average Gross Loan Portfolio of X 102.05
million (excluding BC outlets).

We may also be constrained by the requirement that at least 25% of our total banking
outlets are required to be located in unbanked rural areas. Part of our plan is to use business
correspondents to expand in regions experiencing socio- 24 economic challenges, which
may be more cost-intensive than expanding in other regions.

e Our Gross Loan Portfolio consists primarily of microloans, comprising 60.99% of our Gross Loan
Portfolio as of March 31, 2023. These loans are generally unsecured, without support from
collaterals and contribute to our Gross NPAs. We significantly depend on our microloan business,
which has its own unique risks and, as a result, we may experience increased levels of non-
performing loans and related provisions and write-offs that materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

o  Our microloan customers typically are women from low income households in rural India,
with limited sources of income, savings and credit histories supported by tax returns and
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statements of previous loan exposures which are generally unsecured. Further, low income
borrowers generally are less financially resilient than borrowers with better financial
resources, more established credit histories, access to better education, employment
opportunities, and social services, who may be disproportionately affected by economic
conditions or socio-political unrest. Approximately 43.78% of our customers as of March 31,
2023 are first-time borrowers. Further, some of these microloan borrowers may have
availed loans from multiple sources. Also, we may not always receive timely updates
regarding changes in the financial condition of our customers or may receive inaccurate or
incomplete information, as a result of any misrepresentation by either customers or
employees. In the event of default, we may be unable to collect part or all of the amount
lent to a customer.

Currently, our entire microloan portfolio consists of joint liability group loans. Our joint
liability group lending products are built on the joint-liability loan model, wherein borrowers
form a group and provide mutual guarantee for loans obtained by each other without
requiring collateral or security on an individual basis. These arrangements are likely to fail if
there is no meaningful personal relationship among members of such group, if inadequate
risk management procedures have been employed to verify the group members and their
ability to repay such loans, or as a result of adverse external factors such as natural
calamities or forced migration.

e A significant portion of our loan portfolio was originated in rural areas, exposing us to risks
associated with rural economies.

As of March 31, 2023, 94.37% of our loan portfolio comprised rural borrowers, with annual
household income of up to X0.13 million. Such rural borrowers are dependent on the
performance of their local economies, which are largely tied to the agricultural, agri-allied
and petty trade sectors. Any drastic changes in weather, drought, excessive rains or floods
can lead to weakness in the agricultural industry and, consequently, the ability of our
borrowers to repay their loans. Moreover, in the past, high debt among farmers combined
with political and socio-economic factors have led a number of states, including Madhya
Pradesh, to declare farm debt waivers. Such waivers may lead to a deterioration of credit
discipline, as some borrowers in other states may stop repaying their loans in hope of
obtaining similar relief. Any weakness in local economies may lead to an increase in NPAs
and credit costs. Moreover, rural areas tend to have more limited infrastructure than more
developed areas. We may face difficulties in conducting operations in such areas, or our
cost of operations in such areas may be higher.

e An increase in our portfolio of non-performing assets may materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects

o

Our credit monitoring and risk mitigation policies and procedures may not be accurate,
properly designed, or appropriately implemented, and we may suffer material credit losses.
For instance, if the value of the collateral securing our credit portfolio is insufficient
(including through a decline in its value after the original taking of such collateral) or if we
face practical or legal impediments in enforcing collateral, then we may be exposed to
greater credit risk and an increased risk of non-recovery if related credit exposures fail to
perform. In addition, even if our policies and procedures are accurate and appropriate, we
may not be able to anticipate future economic or financial developments or downturns,
which may lead to an increase in our NPAs. Further, our customers may face cash flow
constraints due to losses incurred by them in their businesses which may affect the ability
of our customers to repay their loans.

The determination of an appropriate level of loan losses and provisions involves a degree of
subjectivity and requires that we make estimates of current credit risks and future trends,
all of which may be subject to material changes. Any incorrect estimation of risks may result
in our provisions not being adequate to cover any further increase in the amount of NPAs
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or any further deterioration in our NPA portfolio. We may need to make further provisions
if there is dilution/ deterioration in the quality of our security or down-grading of the
account or recoveries with respect to such NPAs do not materialize in time or at all.

Our business is highly competitive, which creates significant pricing pressures for us to retain
existing customers and solicit new business.

o We face strong competition in our business from much larger government controlled public
sector banks, large private sector banks, Indian and foreign commercial banks, non-banking
financial companies, microfinance institutions, payment banks, other small finance banks,
fintechs and other financial services companies.

Mergers and consolidation among public sector banks may result in enhanced competitive
strengths in pricing and delivery channels for the merged entities. For example, with effect
from April 1, 2017, the State Bank of India, India's largest public sector bank, merged its five
associate banks and Bharatiya Mahila Bank with itself, while the Bank of Baroda, Dena Bank
and Vijaya Bank merged with effect from April 1, 2019. Further, a number of competitors in
India have a larger customer base and greater financial resources than us, giving them a
substantial advantage by way of economies of scale and improving organizational
efficiencies. We also face threat to our loan market from newer business models that
leverage technology to bring together savers and borrowers.

As SFBs are a relatively new format of banks in India, we may not be able to compete
effectively with more traditional and well-established universal banks for numerous reasons
including differences in regulatory requirements and public perception around the stability
of small finance banks. As part of our strategy to source deposits, we may have paid a higher
interest rate to our depositors than many of our competitors. Moreover, a small portion of
our deposits (28.17% as of March 31, 2023) consists of wholesale deposits, which are
generally considered more sensitive to changes in interest rates. Consequently, we may not
be able to continue to successfully source deposits if our competitors increase their deposit
rates, and we may not be able to increase our own deposit rates while maintaining
attractive NIMs.

TRADING OF THE NCDS MAY BE LIMITED BY TEMPORARY EXCHANGE CLOSURES, BROKER
DEFAULTS, SETTLEMENT DELAYS, STRIKES BY BROKERAGE FIRM EMPLOYEES AND DISPUTES.

The Indian stock exchanges have experienced temporary exchange closures, broker defaults,
settlement delays and strikes by brokerage firm employees. In addition, the governing bodies of the
Indian stock exchanges have from time to time imposed restrictions on trading in certain securities,
limitations on price movements and margin requirements. Furthermore, from time to time, disputes
have occurred between listed companies and stock exchanges and other regulatory bodies, which in
some cases may have had a negative effect on market sentiment.

REFUSAL OF LISTING OF ANY SECURITY OF THE ISSUER DURING LAST THREE YEARS BY ANY OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGES IN INDIA OR ABROAD

As on the date of this Placement Memorandum, no stock exchange in India or abroad has refused
listing of any equity or debt security issued by the Issuer.

IN CASE OF OUTSTANDING DEBT INSTRUMENTS OR DEPOSITS OR BORROWINGS:

ANY DEFAULT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERIAL COVENANTS SUCH AS CREATION OF SECURITY
AS PER TERMS AGREED: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt
instruments issued by a small finance bank.

DEFAULT IN PAYMENT OF INTEREST: As on the date of this Placement Memorandum, the Issuer has
not committed any default in payment of interest in respect of any outstanding borrowings.
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DEFAULT IN REDEMPTION OR REPAYMENT: As on the date of this Placement Memorandum, the
Issuer has not committed any default in redemption or repayment in respect of any outstanding
borrowings.

NON-CREATION OF DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE: Pursuant Rule 18(7) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a banking company is not required to maintain
debenture redemption reserve for debentures issued on a private placement basis.

DEFAULT IN PAYMENT OF PENAL INTEREST WHEREVER APPLICABLE: As on the date of this
Placement Memorandum, the Issuer has not committed any default in payment of interest penal in
respect of any outstanding borrowings.

OTHERS: A failure to observe the covenants under the Issuer's financing arrangements or to obtain
necessary consents required thereunder may lead to the termination of the Issuer's credit facilities,
acceleration of all amounts due under such facilities and the enforcement of any security provided
(if any). Any acceleration of amounts due under such facilities may also trigger cross default
provisions under the Issuer's other financing agreements. If the obligations under any of the Issuer's
financing documents are accelerated, the Issuer may have to dedicate a substantial portion of the
Issuer's cash flow from operations to make payments under such financing documents, thereby
reducing the availability of cash for the Issuer's working capital requirements and other general
corporate purposes. Further, during any period in which the Issuer is in default, the Issuer may be
unable to raise, or face difficulties raising, further financing. Any of these circumstances could
adversely affect the Issuer's business, credit rating and financial condition, cash flows and results of
operations. If the Issuer fails to meet its debt service obligations or covenants provided under the
financing agreements, the relevant lenders could declare the Issuer to be in default under the terms
of the Issuer's agreements or accelerate the maturity of the Issuer's obligations. the Issuer cannot
assure the Investors that, in the event of any such acceleration, the Issuer will have sufficient
resources to repay the borrowings.
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SECTION 5: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022
and March 31, 2023 are set out in Annexure V hereto.
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SECTION 6: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

This Placement Memorandum is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing Regulations
and in this section, the Issuer has set out the details required as per the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations
(including Schedule Il thereof).

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

The Issuer shall file the following documents along with the listing application to the stock
exchange and with the Debenture Trustee:

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the BSE and the Debenture Trustee:

(a) Placement Memorandum;

(b) Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association;

(c) Copy of the requisite board/ committee resolutions authorizing the borrowing and list of
authorised signatories for the allotment of securities;

(d) Copy of last three years Annual Reports;

(e) Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

(f) An undertaking from the issuer stating that the necessary documents for creation of the
charge, wherever applicable, including the Trust Deed has been executed within the time
frame prescribed in the relevant regulations/Act/rules etc. and the same would be uploaded
on the website of the designated stock exchange, where such securities have been proposed
to be listed;

(g) In case of debt securities, an undertaking that permission / consent from the prior creditor for
a second or pari passu charge being created, wherever applicable, in favour of the debenture
trustee to the proposed issue has been obtained;

(h) Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it

deems fit;

(i) Due diligence certificate from the Debenture Trustee in the format as specified in Schedule
IVA of the Debt Listing Regulations; and

(i) If applicable, due diligence certificate from the Debenture Trustee as per the format specified

in the SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational Circular.

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to BSE at the time of filing the draft of
this Placement Memorandum:

Due diligence certificate from the Debenture Trustee as per the format as specified in Schedule IVA
of the Debt Listing Regulations, and, if applicable, the format specified in SEBI Debenture Trustees
Operational Circular.

Details of credit rating, along with the latest press release of the Credit Rating Agency in relation
to the issue and declaration that the rating is valid as on the date of issuance and listing. Such press
release shall not be older than one year from the date of opening of the issue.

The Debentures have been rated A (Positive) by ICRA Limited. The rating letter, press release and the
rating rationale from the Rating Agency is provided in Annexure II.

Name(s) of the stock exchange(s) where the non-convertible securities are proposed to be listed
and the details of their in-principle approval for listing obtained from these stock exchange(s). If
non-convertible securities are proposed to be listed on more than one stock exchange(s) then the
issuer shall specify the designated stock exchange for the issue. The issuer shall specify the stock
exchange where the recovery expense fund is being/has been created as specified by the Board.

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of BSE within the time period

prescribed in the SEBI Listing Timelines Requirements. The Issuer shall comply with the requirements
of the listing agreement for debt securities to the extent applicable to it on a continuous basis.
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The Recovery Expense Fund is being/has been created by the Issuer with BSE.

The in-principle approval from BSE is provided in Annexure XI. The Debentures are not proposed to

be listed on more than one stock exchange.

6.5 Issue Schedule:
PARTICULARS DATE
Issue Opening Date June 15, 2023
Issue Closing Date June 15, 2023
Pay In Date June 15, 2023
Deemed Date of Allotment June 15, 2023
6.6 Name, logo, addresses, website URL, email address, telephone number and contact person of:
(a) Debenture Trustee to the Issue
Name Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
Logo
CATALYST
Ballowve in yoursell.., Trust us!
Address 604, Windsor Building, Kalina, Santacruz East, Mumbai
— 400098, Maharashtra, India
Website www.catalysttrustee.com
E-mail address ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@ctltrustee.com
Telephone Number 491 (022) 49220555
Contact Person Details Ms. Deesha Trivedi

(b) Credit Rating Agency for the Issue
Name ICRA Limited
Logo

@ ICRA

Address Building No- 8, 2nd Floor, Tower A, DLF Cyber City,
Phase Il, Gurgaon - 122 002
Website www.icra.in

E-mail address

jatin.arora@icraindia.com

Telephone Number

+91-124 45 45 846

Contact Person Details

Mr. Jatin Arora

(c) Registrar the Issue
Name KFIN Technologies Limited (Formerly known as
KFIN Technologies Private Limited)

A KFINTECH

Address Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad 500032

Website www.kfintech.com

E-mail address einward.ris@kfintech.com

21



http://www.catalysttrustee.com/
mailto:jatin.arora@icraindia.com
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com

Placement Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: June 15, 2023 For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(d)

(e)

Telephone Number

+9167162222

Contact Person Details

Jagannadh Chakka®

Statutory Auditors

Name S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Logo N.A.

Address 12 Floor, The Ruby, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar
(West), Mumbai — 400028

Website WWW.srb.in

E-mail address SRBA@srb.in

Telephone Number +91 22 6819 8000

Contact Person Details Mr.Sarvesh Warty

Legal Counsel

Name N.A. The Issuer has been advised by its in-house
legal and compliance team.
Logo N.A.
Address N.A.
Website N.A.
E-mail address N.A.
Telephone Number N.A.
Contact Person Details N.A.
() Guarantor
Name N.A.
Logo N.A.
Address N.A.
Website N.A.
E-mail address N.A.
Telephone Number N.A.
Contact Person Details N.A.
(8) Arrangers
Name Tipsons Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd.
Logo —
Tip Sons
Address ONE BKC - G Block, 704-C Wing, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai- 400051
Website www.tipsons.com
E-mail address nagesh.chauhan@tipsons.com
Telephone Number +91 9820921288
Contact Person Details Mr. Nagesh Singh Chauhan

6.7

About the Issuer

(A brief summary of the business/ activities of the Issuer and its subsidiaries with the details of
branches or units if any and its line of business containing at least following information)
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(c)

6.8

(a)

(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(a) Overview of the business of the Issuer

The journey of Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited (FSFB) was the process of coming together of 2
NBFC Micro Finance Institutions, Future Financial Services and Disha Microfin.

Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited is a Scheduled Bank in India having commenced its operations as
a small finance bank with effect from July 21, 2017. The Bank has been accorded the Scheduled Bank
status by Reserve Bank of India vide Notification No. DBR.NBD. (SFB-Fincare).
No0.8140/16/13.216/2018-19 dated March 28, 2019 and published in the Gazette of India on April
13, 2019.

The Bank’s operation includes retail and wholesale banking activities. These activities primarily
include micro finance lending activities to provide financial assistance to women borrowers of
economically weaker society, who are organized as joint liability groups (JLG’), with a view of
enhancement of their livelihoods in a financially viable manner, primarily in the rural areas of India.
Further, the Bank is engaged in providing financial assistance to the borrowers to use the money to
augment the household income through loan against property. In addition, the Bank offers other
products, including institutional finance, gold loan, two-wheeler loans, affordable housing loans and
overdraft facility against fixed deposits or properties. The Bank operates across various states and
union territories of India.

As of March 31, 2023, FSFB had a Gross Loan Portfolio of Rs 9,911 Crores and deposit base of Rs.8,033
Crores.

Corporate Structure of the Issuer

The graphic description/organogram of the corporate structure of the Issuer is as follows:

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS
RAJEEV YADAV
MD & CEO
r T T T T T T z L
ASHEH JATINDER SHREENTH
SOHAM MANMENDER
wsna  l DesrAm AN MOHAN A am MENON WLESH DEVIKA SUBASHY
€00 - Lo fod [ our
Fiance BANKING SUSTAMABILITY CFFICER SERVICE AND OFRICER OFRCER Auor
QuauTy FACIITIES

Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding of new projects: Not applicable.

Financial Information

A columnar representation of the audited financial statements (i.e. Profit & Loss statement,
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) both on a standalone and consolidated basis for a period
of three completed years which shall not be more than six months old from the date of the
placement memorandum or issue opening date, as applicable.

Consolidated

Not applicable as the Issuer does not maintain financial statements on a consolidated basis.

Standalone

23



Placement Memorandum
Date: June 15, 2023

Balance Sheet

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(Amt in Lacs)

As on As on As on
31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2021

Capital & Liabilities

Capital 22,078 22,078 6,361

Employees stock options outstanding 1,458 638 100

Reserves and surplus 107,835 97,471 95,329

Deposits 803,319 645,616 531,850

Borrowings 278,400 294,354 140,043

Other liabilities and provisions 33,679 29,999 23,024
TOTAL 1,246,769 1,090,156 796,707
Assets

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 65,438 111,679 103,650

Balances with banks and money at call and short 11,781 11,917 11,913
notice

Investments 252,284 215,163 127,936

Advances 870,242 703,696 530,112

Fixed assets 5,630 4,234 3,619

Other assets 41,394 43,467 19,477
TOTAL 1,246,769 1,090,156 796,707
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(Amt in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2021
I. Income
Interest earned 174,411.88 144,857.39 125,105.88
Other income 22,667.70 19,616.33 12,565.08
TOTAL 197,079.59 164,473.72 137,670.96
Il. Expenditure
Interest expended 65,367.53 56,978.24 55,004.80
Operating expenses 87,405.17 64,679.63 46,328.09
Provision and contingencies 33,942.80 41,928.83 25,024.23
TOTAL 186,715.50 163,586.69 126,357.12
I1l. Profit / (loss)
Net profit / (loss) for the year 10,364.09 887.02 11,313.84
Profit / (loss) brought forward 17,520.54 18,109.62 9,707.40
Year ended | Year ended | Year ended
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2021
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax 1,299.68 57.46 1,464.19
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 214.03 201.19 170.08
Amortisation of premium on investments 108.07 103.19 68.49
(Profit) / loss on disposal of fixed assets (0.22) 0.29 (0.08)
Employee stock option cost 81.91 53.80 9.97
Loan portfolio written off (net of recovery) 5,515.85 3,695.10 339.31
Provision for loan portfolio (1,626.83) 600.24 1,857.22
Provision for other contingencies 36.42 2.19 (26.67)
Provision / depreciation - Investments 45.14 56.11 (0.51)
Long term retention bonus expense - -
(Profit) on sale of investment in SLR2 securities (2.86) (53.95) (12.21)
Loss on sale of investment in SLR2 securities 64.16 28.41 9.94
(Profit) on sale of investment in mutual funds - (1.92) (2.93)
Operating profits before working capital changes 5,735.35 4,742.11 3,876.80
Movement in working capital:
Increase in deposits 15,770.22 11,370.80 6,645.67
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 492.60 1,318.58 408.98
(Increase) in investments (net) (2,044.24) (6,304.88) 116.50
(Increase) in advances (20,690.93) | (22,229.82) (6,996.81)
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Decrease / (increase) in fixed deposits 245.64 (375.16) (51.57)
(Increase) in other assets 542.15 (2,013.79) (2.05)
Cash generated (used in) / from operating activities 50.79 | (13,492.16) 3,997.51
Taxes on income paid, net (611.52) (395.36) (612.89)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (560.73) | (13,887.52) 3,384.62
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (354.67) (263.59) (129.15)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1.20 0.66 0.88
Purchase of investments in Govt Securites (HTM) (2,452.43) (3,467.34) (2,906.21)
Proceeds from maturity of investments in Govt Securites (HTM) 570.00 915.84
Purchase of investments in mutual funds - (499.98) (1,799.98)
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds - 501.90 1,802.86
Proceeds from term money lending - - -
Net cash generated / (used in)from investing activities (2,235.90) (2,812.51) (3,031.60)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 1,697.07 -
Share / debenture issue expenses - - -
Repayment of borrowing under the LAF3 segment (560.00) - (470.00)
Proceeds from borrowing under the LAF3 segment - 5,400.00 -
Proceeds from loans availed from banks and financial
institutions 10,000.00 13,580.42 4,700.00
Repayment of loans availed from banks and financial (10,785.44) (3,549.34) (3,907.33)
institutions
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debentures - - -
Redemption of non-convertible debentures (250.00) - -
Net cash generated / (used in) from financing activities (1,595.44) 17,128.15 322.67
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the (4,392.07) 428.12 675.70
year (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11,856.44 11,428.32 10,752.62
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7,464.37 11,856.44 11,428.32

Please also refer Annexure V.

Note: Listed issuers (whose debt securities or specified securities are listed on recognised stock
exchange(s)) in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, may disclose unaudited financial information for
the stub period in the format as prescribed therein with limited review report in the placement
memorandum, as filed with the stock exchanges, instead of audited financial statements for stub
period, subject to making necessary disclosures in this regard in placement memorandum including
risk factors: Not applicable as the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the Financial Year

ended March 31, 2023 are set out in Annexure V.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

Issuers other than unlisted REITs / unlisted InviTs desirous of issuing debt securities on private
placement basis and who are in existence for less than three years may disclose financial
statements mentioned at (a) above for such period of existence, subject to the following conditions:
i. The issue is made on the EBP platform irrespective of the issue size; and

ii. The issue is open for subscription only to Qualified Institutional Buyers

N.A.

The above financial statements shall be accompanied with the Auditor's Report along with the
requisite schedules, footnotes, summary etc.

Please refer Annexure V for the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023 along with the auditor's report along

with the requisite schedules, footnotes, summary etc.

Key Operational and Financial Parameters on a consolidated basis and standalone basis (in INR, in
Lakh)

Standalone Basis

Particulars FY :‘1)20' FY 2021-22 | FY2022-23

Balance Sheet

Net Fixed assets

3,619 4,234 5,631

Current assets NA NA NA

Non-current assets NA NA NA

Total assets 796,707 1,090,157 1,246,769

Non-Current Liabilities

(including maturities of long-term borrowings and short-term
borrowings)

Financial (borrowings, trade payables, and other financial
liabilities) NA NA NA

Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Other non-current liabilities

Current Liabilities
(including maturities of long-term borrowings)

Financial (borrowings, trade payables, and other financial
liabilities) NA NA NA

Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

Other current liabilities

Equity (equity and other equity) 6,361 22,078 22,078

Total equity and liabilities 796,708 1,090,157 1,246,769

Profit and Loss

Total revenue From operations & Other income 137,671 164,473 197,080

Total Expenses 126,357 163,586 152,773
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Total comprehensive income (Profit Before Tax) 14,642 575 12,997
Profit / loss after tax 11,313 887 10,364
Earnings per equity share: (a) basic; and 5.55 0.38 4.69
(b) diluted 5.55 0.38 4.68
Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Total Continuing and discontinued operations

Cash Flow

Net cash generated from operating activities 33,846 (138,876) (5,606)
Net cash used in / generated from investing activities (30,316) (28,125) (22,359)
Net cash used in financing activities 3,226 171,282 (15,995)
Cash and cash equivalents 6,757 4,281 (43,920)
Balance as per statement of cash flows 114,283 118,564 74,644
Additional Information

Net worth 95,140 110,885 123,437
Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,562 13,596 77,219
Current Investments NA NA NA
Assets Under Management (Gross Loan Portfolio) 607,221 760,017 991,114
Off Balance Sheet Assets 56,592 24,041 103,328
Total Debts to Total assets 84.33% 86.22% 86.76%
Debt Service Coverage Ratios NA NA NA
Interest Income 125,106 144,857 174,412
Interest Expense 55,005 56,978 65,368
Interest service coverage ratio NA NA NA
Provisioning & Contingencies 25,024 41,929 31,310
Bad debts (write off) to Account receivable ratio (GLP) 0.62% 5.02% 6.21%
Gross NPA (%) 6.42% 7.79% 3.25%
Net NPA (%) 2.80% 3.55% 1.30%
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 24.91% 19.48% 18.64%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 4.65% 2.84% 1.40%

Consolidated Basis

Not applicable as the Issuer does not maintain financial statements on a consolidated basis.

(e) Debt: Equity Ratio of the Issuer
Before the issue (as on March 31, 2023) 1.47
After the issue 1.51

6.9

Details of any other contingent liabilities of the issuer based on the last audited financial
statements including amount and nature of liability
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PARTICULARS AS OF MARCH 31, 2023 (IN CRS)
Cash Collateral 25.42
Principal Subordination 35.60
6.10 A brief history of the Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:
(a) Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end, i.e., March 31, 2023
SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT
Authorised Share Capital
300,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 3,00,00,00,000
TOTAL 3,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid- up Share Capital
22,07,79,720 equity shares of INR 10 each 220,77,97,200
TOTAL 220,77,97,200

(b)

Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end i.e., March 31, 2023, for the last three years:

DATE OF CHANGE | PARTICULARS
(EGM)

25.03.2021 Increase in authorised capital from one hundred crore

to 300 crore.

(c) Equity Share Capital History of the Company for the last three years:

DATE OF NO. OF FACE | ISSUE |[CONSIDE| NATURE CUMULATIVE REMARKS
ALLOTME | EQUITY |VALUE| PRICE | RATION OF
NT SHARES (IN (IN (CASH, [ALLOTM

INR) | INR) | OTHER ENT

:::,T NO.OF | EQUITY | EQUITY

c ! EQUITY SHARE SHARE

ETC) SHARES CAPITAL | PREMIU

M
27.04.2021| 998,27,59 10 170 Cash Right |7,35,93,24|73,59,32,4 - -
issue of 0 00
equity
shares
04.05.2021|14,71,86,4| 10 NA NA Bonus |220779720|220779720 - -
80 issue in 0
2:1 ratio
(d) Details of any Acquisition or Amalgamation in the last 1 (one) year:
NIL
(e) Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction in the last 1 (one) year:
TYPE OF EVENT DATE OF DATE OF DETAILS
ANNOUNCEMENT COMPLETION
NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Details of the shareholding of the Company as at the latest quarter end, as per the format specified
under the listing regulations: The shareholding pattern of the Issuer as of the last quarter end, i.e.,
March 31, 2023, prepared in accordance with the LODR Regulations is set out in Annexure XII.

List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on the latest quarter end, i.e., March 31,
2023:

S. NAME OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF NUMBER OF TOTAL
NO. SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY SHARES SHARES IN DEMAT | SHAREHOLDING AS
FORM PERCENTAGE (%)
OF TOTAL NO. OF
EQUITY SHARES
1 Fincare  Business 173489568 173489568 78.58
Services Limited
2 Amethyst Inclusion 8,650,434 8,650,434 3.92
Pte Ltd
3 Vistra ITCL | Ltd 7,374,297 7,374,297 3.34
Business
Excellence Trust lii
India Business
Excellence Fund lii
4 Wagner Limited 5,480,130 5,480,130 2.48
5 True North Fund V 5,159,355 5,159,355 2.34
Llp
6 Indium Iv Mauritius 5,004,870 5,004,870 2.27
Holdings Limited
7 Omega Tc Holdings 2,601,570 2,601,570 1.18
Pte Ltd
8 Leapfrog Rural 1,519,290 1,519,290 0.69
Inclusion (India) Ltd
9 Kotak  Mahindra 1,465,440 1,465,440 0.66
Life Insurance
Company Ltd.
10 Edelweiss Tokio 1,358,910 1,358,910 0.62
Life Insurance
Company Limited -
Life Non-Par Fund

6.11 Following details regarding the directors of the Company:
(a) Details of the current directors of the Company:
This table sets out the details regarding the Issuer's Board of Directors as on date of this Placement
Memorandum:
S NAME DESIGNA DIN DOB | AGE | DATE OF PERMANE DETAILS WHETH
L TION (in | APPOINT NT OF OTHER ER
yea MENT ADDRESS DIRECTOR | WILLFU
rs) SHIP L
DEFAUL
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TER
(Y/N)
Pramod Part-time | 02252 | 20- 64 19-Sep-13 | T4/2101, e Atria N
Kabra Chairman | 403 Oct- Planet Convergen
and Non- 59 Godrej, KK | ce
Executive Marg, Technologi
Director Jacob es Limited;
Circle, e Full
Mumbai Value
400 011, Technologi
Maharasht | es Private
ra, India Limited;
* Kelp
Systems
Pte. Ltd.;
and
e Shree
Digvijay
Cement
Co. Limited
Rajeev MD & 00111 | 13- 54 17-Jul-17 Villa 578, NIL N
Yadav CEO 379 Jul- Phase 3,
69 Adarsh
Palm
Retreat,
Outer Ring
Road,
Devara
Beesana
Halli,
Bellandur,
Bangalore
560 103,
Karnataka,
India
Aarthi Independ | 00140 | 4-Jul- | 46 28-Apr-21 | FlatEGR N | Tata N
Sivanandh ent 141 77 Sri Kripa Technologi
Director Apartment | es Limited
s No. 36
East
Abhiramap
uram, 2nd
Street,
Mylapore,
Chennai
600 004,
Tamil
Nadu, India
Alok Prasad | Independ | 00080 | 8- 71 20-Jul-17 144, Vista e Arman N
ent 225 Sep- Villas, Financial
Director 52 Opposite Services
Unitech Limited;
Cyber Park, |  Gang-
Sector 45, Jong
Gurgaon Developm
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122 001, ent
Haryana, Finance
India Private
Limited;
and
e Muthoot
Microfin
Limited
5 | Divya Nominee | 01775 | 20- 51 13-Oct-21 | Flat No * Home
Sehgal Director 308 Oct- 1307 & First
72 1308, Wing | Finance
A, 13th Company
Floor, India
Ashok Limited;
Tower, Dr. and
Ambebkar | e Niva Bup
Road,
Parel,
Mumbai
400012,
Maharasht
ra, India
6 | Dhiraj Nominee | 01946 | 3- 49 27-Sep-21 | G-001, e Atria
Poddar Director 905 Nov- Springs, GD | Convergen
74 Ambedkar | ce
Marg, Near | Technologi
Wadala, es Limited;
Telephone | o
Exhange, Indialdeas
Dadar East, | Com
Mumbai Limited;
400 014, e Indira IVF
Maharasht | Hospital
ra India Private
Limited;
e Loylty
Rewardz
Manageme
nt Private
Limited;
L]
OmniActiv
e Health
Technologi
es Limited;
¢ Prudent
Corporate
Advisory
Services
Limited;
¢ Synokem
Pharmaceu
ticals
Limited
and
o Zifo
Technologi
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es Private
Limited.
Nanda Independ | 08673 | 31- 63 21-Jun-21 | B1101-02 Kisetsu
Sameer ent 208 Aug- Paras Saison
Dave Director 60 Emperor, Finance
Bawadia (India)
Kalan, Private
Hazur, Limited
Bhopal 462
039,
Madhya
Pradesh,
India
Narayanan | Independ | 07877 | 3- 61 6-Aug-22 A-503, Aditya
Rajagopala | ent 022 Aug- Gulmohar Birla
n Nadadur | Director 62 Apartment | Housing
s, Ceaser Finance
Road, Limited
Amboli,
Andheri
West,
Mumbai
400 058,
Maharasht
ra, India
Sameer Nominee | 00157 | 3- 52 24-Jun-17 | 901/E, * Barefoot
Yogesh Director 693 Oct- Safal Organics
Nanavati 71 Parivesh, Private
Prahladnag | Limited;
ar, Satelite | ¢ Green
Ahmedaba | World ESG
d City, Consultant
Ahmedaba | s
d, Foundatio
Manekbag | n
380015, (Formerly
Gujarat, known as
India Fincare
Communit
y
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Foundatio
n); and

o ILIFE
Clinics and
Research
Private
Limited
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1 | Sunil
0 | Satyapal
Gulati

Independ
ent
Director

00016
990

Jul-
61

62

20-Jul-17

Flat No.
703,
Sterling
Sea Face,
Dr.AB
Road, Near
Poonam
Chambers,
Worli,
Mumbai
400 018,
Maharasht
ra, India

¢ Arthan
Finance
Private
Limited;

e Boson
Systems
Private
Limited
(formerly,
Empays
Payment
Systems
India
Private
Limited);
e Merisis
Advisors
Private
Limited;

* Perfios
Account
Aggregatio
n Services
Private
Limited

* Revgro
Capital
Private
Limited;

L]
Samunnati
Financial
Intermedia
tion &
Services
Private
Limited;

¢ SBI
Mutual
Fund
Trustee
Company
Private
Limited;

e Tapstart
Capital
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Private
Limited;
¢ Varthana
Finance
Private
Limited
(formerly,
Thirumeni
Finance
Private
Limited);
and
¢ Visage
Holdings
and
Finance
Private
Limited;
1 | Vinay Baijal | Independ | 07516 | 15- 72 25-Feb-17 | 701, Lodha | ¢ Aye
1 ent 339 Jun- Grandeur, Finance
Director 51 Sayani Private
Road, Near | Limited;
Parel S. I. .
Depot, Dreamplug
Prabhadevi | Paytech
, Mumbai Solutions
400 025, Private
Maharasht | Limited;
ra, India and
¢ Peridot
Financial
Services
(India)
Private
Limited.
(b) Details of change in directors since last three years:
NAME DESIGNATION | DIN DATE OF DATE OF DATE OF REMARKS
APPOINTMEN | CESSATION, IF | RESIGNATION
T APPLICABLE , IF
APPLICABLE
Narayanan Independent 07877022 August 6, NA NA
Rajagopalan Director 2022
Nadadur
Varun Sablok In_dependent 07704720 NA August 30, NA
Director 2022
Ravindran Nominee 07631421 NA October 5, NA
Lakshmanan Director 2021
Anisha Independent 06943493 NA | April 15, 2021 NA
Motwani Director
Independent 00472794 NA December 7, NA
Susan Thomas .
Director 2020

6.12

(a)

Following details regarding the auditors of the Issuer:

Details of the auditor of the Issuer:
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NAME OF THE AUDITOR

ADDRESS

AUDITOR SINCE

S R Batliboi & Associates

12th Floor, The Ruby, 29

September 30, 2021

LLP Senapati Bapat Marg,
Dadar (West), Mumbai —
400028
(b) Details of change in auditors since last three years:
DATE OF DATE OF
NAAI\l/IJIIE)I(')I'E)]I;HE ADDRESS APF?(;.II;II'El'aFENT CESSATION, IF RESIGNATION, IF
APPLICABLE APPLICABLE
11t Floor, Tower Il, One
Walker Financial Centre, SB Marg, | 2nd September
Chandiok & ) ’ ’ 31-Mar-21 NA
Company LLP Elphlnst.one West, 2014
Mumbai — 400013
12th Floor, The Ruby, 29th NA NA
Senapati Bapat Marg,
S R Batliboi & Dadar West, Mumbai -
Associates LLP 400028 08-Nov-21

6.13 Details of borrowings of the Company, as at the end of the last quarter or if available, a later date:
The information set out in (a) to (d) and (f) below has been disclosed as of March 31, 2023.
(a) Details of Outstanding Secured Loan Facilities:
NAME OF TYPE OF AMOUNT PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT SECURITY
LENDER FACILITY SANCTIONED AMOUNT DATE/SCHED
(IN INR) OUTSTANDIN ULE
G (IN INR)
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(b) Details of Outstanding Unsecured Loan Facilities:
PRINCIPAL
TYPE OF QA“I:g;:gL AMOUNT REPAYMENT
NAME OF LENDER OUTSTANDIN | DATE/SCHEDUL
FACILITY ED (IN INR,
IN CRORE) G (ININR, IN E
CRORE)
MUDRA Refinance 80.00 41.00 01-07-24
MUDRA Refinance 200.00 183.30 01-01-26
NABARD Refinance 200.00 80.00 31-12-23
NABARD Refinance 500.00 120.00 31-03-24
NABARD Refinance 300.00 219.00 31-01-25
NABARD Refinance 100.00 40.00 31-03-25
NABARD Refinance 300.00 300.00 31-12-25
NABARD Refinance 250.00 162.00 28-02-26
NABARD Refinance 200.00 160.00 30-09-26
NABARD Refinance 200.00 170.00 28-02-27
National Housing Bank Refinance 20.00 14.50 01-10-30
Reserve Bank of India SLTRO 200.00 200.00 16-05-24
Reserve Bank of India SLTRO 190.00 190.00 14-06-24
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Reserve Bank of India SLTRO 150.00 150.00 12-07-24
Small Industries Development Bank of
India Refinance 100.00 8.37 10-04-23
Small Industries Development Bank of
India Refinance 150.00 100.00 10-03-25
Small Industries Development Bank of
India Refinance 200.00 183.33 10-11-25
Small Industries Development Bank of
India Refinance 150.00 137.50 10-12-25
Small Industries Development Bank of
India Refinance 150.00 150.00 10-03-26
IDFC First Bank Limited Sub Debt 100.00 100.00 30-09-25
INE519Q08137_Retail Investors Sub Debt 38.00 38.00 22-06-24
INE519Q08145_Retail Investors Sub Debt 37.00 37.00 20-06-24
Grand Total 4,990.39 2,784.00
(c) Details of Outstanding Non-Convertible Securities:
SERIES OF | TENOR/ COUPON | AMOUNT | DATE OF | REDEMPT CREDIT SECURED | SECURITY
NCS PERIOD (IN INR) ALLOTME | ION DATE RATING /
OF NT / UNSECUR
MATURIT SCHEDULE ED
Y
INE519Q0 6 Years 12.87% 100,00,00, 30t Sep 30t Sep A Unsecure NA
8152 000/- 2019 2025 (Positive) d
INE519Q0 6 Year, 3 11.30% 37,00,00,0 20t 20 June A Unsecure NA
8145 Months 00/- March 2024 (Positive) d
2018
INE519Q0 6 Year, 3 11.30% 38,00,00,0 22nd 22" June A Unsecure NA
8137 Months 00/- March 2024 (Positive) d
2018

(d)

List of Top 10 holders of non-convertible securities in terms of value (in cumulative basis)

% OF TOTAL
S| NON-
No CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES
NAME OF LENDER AMOUNT (IN INR) | OUTSTANDING
1 IDFC FIRST BANK LIMITED 1,000,000,000 57.14%
2 TATA CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD 361,600,000 20.66%
3 IDFC FIRST BANK LIMITED 180,000,000 10.29%
4 THE FEDERAL BANK LIMITED 100,000,000 5.71%
5 BHASKAR MOHANLAL SHAH 2,300,000 0.13%
6 RASHMI KHANNA 1,600,000 0.09%
7 KERALA JESUIT SOCIETY 1,500,000 0.09%
8 OMAM CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED 1,400,000 0.08%
9 RAMILA SANATBHAI SHUKLA 1,200,000 0.07%
10 YOGESH MARKANDRAI NANAVATI 1,200,000 0.07%

(e)
the following format: Nil

Details of Outstanding Commercial Paper as at the end of the last quarter, i.e., March 31, 2023 in

S. NO.

ISIN OF COMMERCIAL
PAPER

MATURITY DATE

AMOUNT OUTSTANDING
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| Nil

| Nil

| Nil

Nil

Details of the Rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally Convertible
Debentures / Preference Shares): Nil

NAMEOF | TYPEOF | AMOUNT | PRINCIPAL | DATEOF | CREDI | SECURED | SECURI
PARTY( | FACILITY/ | SANCTION | AMOUNT | REPAYME | T / TY
IN CASE | INSTRUM ED/ OUTSTAND NT/ RATI | UNSECU

OF ENT ISSUED ING SCHEDULE | NG RED

FACILITY)/

NAME OF

INSTRUM

ENT
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details of any outstanding borrowings taken/ debt securities issued for consideration other than
cash. This information shall be disclosed whether such borrowing/ debt securities have been
taken/ issued: (i) in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or discount, or (iii) in pursuance of an option
or not:

Nil
[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of term loans,
debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee issued by the
Company, in the past 3 years including the current financial year:

Nil
Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit quality
(e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, litigations resulting in

material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc) at the time of issue which may affect the
issue or the investor's decision to invest / continue to invest in the non-convertible securities.

Nil

Any litigation or legal action pending or taken by a Government Department or a statutory body
during the last three years immediately preceding the year of the issue of prospectus against the
promoter of the Company:

Nil

Details of default and non-payment of statutory dues

Nil

The names of the debenture trustee(s) shall be mentioned with statement to the effect that
debenture trustee(s) has given its consent for appointment along with the copy of the consent
letter from the debenture trustee.

The Debenture Trustee for the proposed issuance of Debentures is Catalyst Trusteeship Limited.
Debenture Trustee has given its written consent for its appointment as debenture trustee to the

Issue and inclusion of its name in the form and context in which it appears in this Placement
Memorandum and in all the subsequent periodical communications sent to the Debenture Holders.
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The consent letter from Debenture Trustee is provided in Annexure Ill of this Placement
Memorandum.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document / letter with
similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not contain
detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of payment by the
investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer document

Not applicable.

Disclosure of Cash flow with date of interest/dividend/ redemption payment as per day count
convention: Please refer Annexure VI.

(a) The day count convention for dates on which the payments in relation to the non-
convertible securities which need to be made, should be disclosed:

(i) Interest and all other charges shall accrue based on an actual/actual basis.

(ii) All payments in respect of the Debentures required to be made by the Issuer shall
be made on a Business Day.

(iii) If any Due Date on which any interest or additional interest is payable falls on a day
which is a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due
Date shall be made on the succeeding Business Day.

(iv) If any Due Date on which any Outstanding Principal Amounts are payable falls on a
day which is a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such
Due Date shall be made on the preceding Business Day.

(v) If the Final Redemption Date falls on a day which is a Sunday or is not a Business
Day, the payment of any amounts in respect of the Outstanding Principal Amounts
to be made shall be made on the preceding Business Day.

(vi) In the absence of anything to the contrary, if any day for performance of any acts
under the Transaction Documents (other than those set out in (iii) to (v) above)
falls on a day which is not a Business Day, such acts shall be performed shall be
made on the succeeding Business Day.

(b) Procedure and time schedule for allotment and issue of securities should be disclosed:
Please refer Section 6.5 and Section 9.

(c) Cash flows emanating from the non-convertible securities shall be mentioned in the offer
document, by way of an illustration: Please refer Annexure VI.

Disclosures pertaining to wilful defaulter: NIL

(a) The following disclosures shall be made if the issuer or its promoter or director is declared
wilful defaulter:

(i) Name of the bank declaring as a wilful defaulter: N.A.

(ii) The year in which it was declared as a wilful defaulter: N.A.
(iii) Outstanding amount when declared as a wilful defaulter: N.A.
(iv) Name of the entity declared as a wilful defaulter: N.A.
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(v) Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters: N.A.

(vi) Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the issuer in order to enable investors to take
informed decisions: N.A.

(vii) Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: N.A.

(b) The fact that the issuer or any of its promoters or directors is a wilful defaulter shall be
disclosed prominently on the cover page with suitable cross-referencing to the pages: N.A.

Undertaking by the Issuer: Please refer Section 7.1.

Risk Factors: Please refer Section 4.

Attestation by Directors: Please refer Section 7.3.

Disclosure in case of non-convertible preference shares: Not Applicable.
Other details:

(a) Creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) / Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR) -
relevant legislations and applicability:

(i) It is hereby clarified that as on the date of this Placement Memorandum, pursuant
to the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules), 2014, banking companies
registered with the RBI are exempted from the requirement to maintain a
debenture redemption reserve ("DRR") in case of privately placed debentures.

(ii) The Issuer hereby agrees and undertakes that, if required under Applicable Law, it
will create a DRR in accordance with the provisions of the Act (and the rules and
regulations made thereunder) and the guidelines issued by the relevant
Governmental Authorities.

(iii) If during the tenor of the Debentures, any guidelines are formulated (or modified
or revised) by any Governmental Authority in respect of creation of the DRR, the
Issuer shall abide by such guidelines and shall do all deeds, acts and things as may
be required by the Debenture Trustee.

(iv) In addition to the foregoing, to the extent required by Applicable Law, the Issuer
shall invest or deposit amounts up to such thresholds, and in such form and
manner and within the time periods, as may be prescribed by Applicable Law, in
respect of any amounts of the Debentures maturing in any Financial Year.

(b) Issue/instrument specific regulations - relevant details (Companies Act, Reserve Bank of
India guidelines, etc.):

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act including the relevant notified rules thereunder, the SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations, the LODR Regulations, the Debenture Trustees Regulations, the SEBI Listed
Debentures Circulars, and other RBI guidelines and SEBI guidelines applicable to issuance of
non-convertible debentures on a private placement basis.

(c) Default in Payment:

Please refer the sections named "Default Interest Rate", "Event of Default (including manner
of voting /conditions of joining Inter Creditor Agreement)" and "Additional Disclosures
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(Default in Payment)" of Section 8.1 (Summary Terms) in respect of the additional interest
in the event of a Payment Default.

Delay in Listing:

Please refer the section named "Listing (name of stock Exchange(s) where it will be listed
and timeline for listing)" of Section 8.1 (Summary Terms) in relation to the listing
requirements in respect of the Debentures and section named "Additional Disclosures
(Delay in Listing)" of Section 8.1 (Summary Terms) in respect of the default interest in the
event of delay in listing.

Delay in allotment of securities:

(i) The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures are allotted to the respective
Debenture Holders and are credited into the demat accounts of the relevant
Debenture Holders within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI Listing Timelines
Requirements.

(i) The Debentures have been deemed to be allotted to the Debenture Holders on
June 15, 2023 ("Deemed Date of Allotment"). All benefits relating to the
Debentures are available to the Debenture Holders from the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

(iii) If the Issuer fails to allot the Debentures to the Applicants within 60 (sixty) calendar
days from the date of receipt of the Application Money ("Allotment Period"), it
shall repay the Application Money to the Applicants within 15 (fifteen) calendar
days from the expiry of the Allotment Period ("Repayment Period").

(iv) If the Issuer fails to repay the Application Money within the Repayment Period,
then Company shall be liable to repay the Application Money along with interest
at 12% (twelve percent) per annum, gross of withholding taxes, from the expiry of
the Allotment Period.

Issue details: Please refer Section 8.

Application process: The application process for the Issue is as provided in Section 9 of this
Placement Memorandum.

Disclosure prescribed under PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 but not contained in this schedule, if any: The finalised form of the PPOA
prepared in accordance with the Form PAS 4 prescribed under the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 is provided as Annexure XlII. Please refer Annexure
Xl for all disclosures required under the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 are set out therein.

Project details: gestation period of the project; extent of progress made in the project;
deadlines for completion of the project; the summary of the project appraisal report (if
any), schedule of implementation of the project: Not applicable.

Details in case of non-convertible redeemable preference shares issue: Not Applicable.

Summary Terms: Please refer Section 8.1.

41



Placement Memora
Date: June 15, 2023

ndum Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation only

(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

SECTION 7: UNDERTAKINGS AND DISCLOSURES BY THE ISSUER AND DIRECTORS

7.1 UNDERTAKING BY THE ISSUER

(a)

(b)

(c)

Investors are advised to read the risk factors (set out in Section 4) carefully before taking an
investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on
their own examination of the Issuer and the offer including the risks involved. The
securities/Debentures have not been recommended or approved by the any regulatory
authority in India, including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) nor does SEBI
guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

Specific attention of investors is invited to the statement of 'Risk factors' given on page
number 15 under the section 'General Risks'.

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for, and confirms
that this Offer Document/Placement Memorandum contains all information with regard to
the Issuer and the Issue, that the information contained in the offer document/Placement
Memorandum is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material
respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there
are no other facts, the omission of which make this Offer Document/Placement
Memorandum as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions
or intentions misleading in any material respect.

The Issuer has no side letter with any debt securities holder except the one(s) disclosed in
the offer document/Placement Memorandum. Any covenants later added shall be disclosed
on the stock exchange website where the debt is listed.

7.2 UNDERTAKING ON SECURITY

Not applicable. The Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

7.3 ATTESTATION BY DIRECTORS

The directors of the Issuer hereby attest as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Issuer is in compliance with the provisions of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder.

The compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules does not imply that payment
of dividend or interest or repayment of non-convertible securities, is guaranteed by the
Central Government.

The monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects
indicated in the Offer Document/Placement Memorandum.

Whatever is stated in this Offer Document/Placement Memorandum and in the
attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to the
subject matter of this form/Placement Memorandum has been suppressed or concealed
and is as per the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

General Risk:

Investment in non-convertible securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds
in such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors are advised
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to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully before investing in this offering. For
taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue including the risks
involved in it. Specific attention of investors is invited to statement of risk factors contained under Section
4 of this Placement Memorandum. These risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of all
risks and considerations relevant to the non-convertible securities or investor's decision to purchase such
securities.

On behalf of the directors of the Issuer:

S R
yoe

®
() Py
Ny (_rl;”r 9

Name: Shefaly Kothari
Designation: Company Secretary
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8.1 SUMMARY TERMS

SECTION 8: TERMS OF THE ISSUE

Security Name (Name of
the non-convertible
securities which includes
(Coupon/dividend, Issuer
Name and maturity year)
e.g. 8.70% XXX 2015.

10.75% FINCARE SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED 2028

Issuer

Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Type of Instrument

Rated, subordinated, redeemable, non-

convertible debentures

unsecured, listed, transferable,

Nature of Instrument
(Secured or Unsecured)

Unsecured

Seniority (Senior or
Subordinated)

Subordinated

Eligible Investors

Please refer Section 9.14.

Listing (name of stock
Exchange(s) where it will
be listed and timeline for
listing)

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Listed on BSE

The issuer agrees to list the Debenture on the WDM of the stock exchange,
within a maximum period of 3 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment

The issue will be listed within 3 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. In case
of delay in listing, Bank will pay penal interest of 2% p.a. over the coupon rate
from the expiry of 3 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment till the listing of
such securities to the Investor".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Rating of the Instrument

“A” (Positive Outlook) by ICRA Limited

Issue Size

INR 49,00,00,000 (Rupees Forty Nine Crore)

Minimum Subscription

The minimum application size for the Issue shall be 100 (one hundred)
Debentures and in multiples of 1 (one) thereafter.

Option to retain
oversubscription
(Amount)

Not applicable.

Objects of the Issue /
Purpose for which there is
requirement of funds

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Augmenting lower Tier Il Capital (as defined in the New Capital Adequacy
Framework issued by RBI) of the Issuer for strengthening its capital adequacy
and for enhancing its long-term resources" and "The proceeds of issue shall be
utilized for regular business activities of the Bank".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

In case the issuer is a NBFC
and the objects of the
issue entail loan to any
entity who is a 'group
company' then disclosures
shall be made in the
following format:

Not applicable.
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Details of the utilization of
the Proceeds

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Augmenting lower Tier Il Capital (as defined in the New Capital Adequacy
Framework issued by RBI) of the Issuer for strengthening its capital adequacy
and for enhancing its long-term resources" and "The proceeds of issue shall be
utilized for regular business activities of the Bank".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Coupon/Dividend Rate

10.75% (Ten Point Seventy Five Percent) per annum payable monthly

Step Up/Step Down | Not Applicable

Coupon Rate

Coupon/Dividend Monthly and at the time of redemption of the Debentures
Payment Frequency

Coupon/Dividend Please refer Annexure VI.
Payment Dates

Cumulative / non | Not Applicable.
cumulative, in case of

dividend

Coupon Type (Fixed, | Fixed

floating or other

structure)

Coupon Reset Process | Not Applicable

(including rates, spread,
effective date, interest
rate cap and floor etc).

Day Count Basis
(Actual/Actual)

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Interest for each of the interest periods shall be computed as per Actual/ Actual
day count conversion on the face value/principal outstanding at the Coupon rate
rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Interest Period means each period beginning on (and including) the Deemed
Date of Allotment (s) or any Coupon Payment Date and ending on (but

excluding) the next Coupon Payment Date.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Interest on Application
Money

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Interest on application money will be the same as the Coupon rate (subject to
deduction of Tax at Source at the rate prevailing from time to time under the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 or any other statutory modifications or
re-enactment thereof) and will be paid on application money to the applicants
from the date of transfer of funds in the Issuer’s bank account upto 1 (One) day
prior to the date of allotment of Debentures.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Default Interest Rate

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"In relation to the principal amount and coupon payable in respect of the
Debentures, in case the same is not paid on the respective Due Dates, the
defaulted amounts shall carry further interest at the rate of 2% (Two Percent)
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per annum over and above the Coupon Rate, from the date of occurrence of such
default up to the date on which the defaulted amounts together with default
interest is paid.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Tenor

5 (five) years and 6 (six) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Redemption Date

December 15, 2028

Redemption Amount

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"The Redemption Amount would be Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) per
Debenture plus interest accrued but not paid till the date of redemption.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Redemption Not Applicable
Premium/Discount
Issue Price INR 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture

Discount at which security
is issued and the effective
yield as result of such
discount

Not Applicable

Put Date Not Applicable
Put Price Not Applicable
Call Date Not Applicable
Call Price Not Applicable
Put Notification Time | Not Applicable

(Timelines by which the
investor need to intimate
Issuer before exercising
the put)

Call Notification Time
(Timelines by which the
Issuer need to intimate
investor before exercising
the call)

Not Applicable

Face Value

INR 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture

Minimum subscription
amount and in multiples
thereafter

The minimum application size for the Issue shall be 100 (one hundred)
Debentures and in multiples of 1 (one) thereafter.

Issue Timing

1. Issue Opening Date

June 15, 2023

2. Issue Closing Date

June 15, 2023

3. Date of earliest closing
of the issue, if any.

N.A.

4. Pay-in Date

June 15, 2023

5. Deemed Date of

Allotment

June 15, 2023

Settlement Mode of the
Instrument

Please refer Section 9 below.

Depository NSDL and CDSL
Disclosure of | Please refer Annexure VI below.
Interest/Dividend/

redemption dates
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Record Date

The date falling 15 (fifteen) days prior to each Due Date.

All covenants of the issue

To be more particularly set out in the DTD and the other Transaction

(including side letters, | Documents.

accelerated payment

clause, etc.) All other covenants commercially agreed with the proposed investors are set
out in this Section 8.1 (Summary Terms).

Description regarding | I. SECURITY

Security (where

applicable) including type | Not applicable. The Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt

of security | instruments.

(movable/immovable/tan
gible etc.), type of charge
(pledge/ hypothecation/
mortgage etc.), date of
creation of security/ likely

date of creation of
security, minimum
security cover,

revaluation, replacement
of security, interest to the
debenture holder over
and above the coupon
rate as specified in the
Trust Deed and disclosed
in the Placement
Memorandum

Il. SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES
(a) Type of security: Not applicable.

(b) Type of charge: Not applicable.

(c) Date of creation of security/ likely date of creation of security: Not
applicable.

(d) Minimum security cover: Not applicable.

(e) Revaluation: Not applicable.

() Replacement of security: Not applicable.

(g) Interest over and above the coupon rate: Not applicable.

Transaction Documents

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"1. Information Memorandum

2. Debenture Trustee Agreement

3. Debenture Trust Deed; and

4. any other document that may be designated by the Debenture Trustee

and the Bank as a Transaction Document.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Conditions precedent to
Disbursement

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"1. Issuance of Information Memorandum.

2. Relevant corporate authorizations of the Issuer (including, without
limitation, the relevant shareholders' resolution and board
resolution(s).

3. Issuance of the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter.

4. Consent letter from the Debenture Trustee.

5. Execution of the Debenture Trustee Agreement
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6. Appointment of the R&T Agent.

7. Rating letter and rationale from ICRA.

8. Execution of the tripartite agreement between the Issuer, the R&T
Agent and the Depositories.; and In-principle approval for listing of the
Debentures

9. Listing agreement with BSE.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Conditions Subsequent to
Disbursement

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"1. Filing the return of allotment in Form PAS-3 within the timelines
prescribed under the Act and the rules framed thereunder.

2. Listing of the Debentures in accordance with the terms hereof.

3. The letter of allotment, indicating allotment of the Debentures, will be
credited in de-materialised form as per SEBI Regulations.

4. Execution of the Debenture Trust Deed.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Event of Default (including
manner of voting
/conditions of joining
Inter Creditor Agreement)

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"1. Failure of the Bank to make payment on the respective Due Date;

2. The Bank voluntarily or involuntarily becomes the subject of
proceedings under any bankruptcy or insolvency law; An order is made
by the relevant Governmental Authority, or a special resolution has
been passed by the shareholders of the Bank for the winding-up of the
Bank.

3. It is or becomes unlawful for the Bank to perform any of its material
obligations under the Transaction Documents. Invalidation of any or
part of Transaction Documents as a result of change in applicable law
(in force) or due to any order by a court of competent jurisdiction or
direction of government authority.

4. The Bank loses its operating license issued by the RBI or ceases to carry
out its business.

5. The Bank has admitted in writing that the Bank is unable to pay its
debts as they fall due.
6. The Bank breaches or repudiates any material representation or

warranty provided by the Bank in the Transaction Documents.

7. Breach of Financial covenants mentioned herein.
8. Change in Minimum Credit rating.
9. An order is made by the relevant Governmental Authority or a special
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resolution has been passed by the shareholders of the Bank for the
winding-up of the Bank.

10. Any corporate action, legal proceedings or other procedure or step is
taken in relation to:

a) the suspension of payments, a moratorium of any
indebtedness, winding-up, dissolution, administration or
reorganization (by way of voluntary arrangement, scheme of
arrangement or otherwise) of the issuer:

b) composition, compromise, assignment or arrangement with
any creditor of the Issuer.

c) Change in control of the Bank without the prior intimation to
the Debenture Trustee;

d) the appointment of a liquidator, receiver, administrative
receiver, administrator, compulsory manager or other similar

officer in respect of the Issuer;".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Creation of
expense fund

recovery

The Issuer hereby undertakes and confirms that it shall, within the time period
prescribed under Chapter IV (Recovery Expenses Fund) of the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Operational Circular, establish and maintain the Recovery Expense
Fund in such manner/mode as is prescribed under Chapter IV (Recovery
Expenses Fund) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational Circular.

Conditions for breach of
covenants (as specified in
Debenture Trust Deed)

Please refer sections named "Default Interest Rate" and "Event of Default
(including manner of voting /conditions of joining Inter Creditor Agreement)"
above.

Provisions related to Cross
Default

Not Applicable

Roles and Responsibilities
of the Debenture Trustee

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"To oversee and monitor the overall transaction for and on behalf of the
Debenture Holder(s) and more particularly set out in the Debenture Trust

Deed.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Risk factors pertaining to
the issue

Please refer Section 4 (Risk Factors).

Governing Law &

Jurisdiction

The Transaction Documents shall be governed by and will be construed in
accordance with the laws of India and any disputes arising there from shall be
subject to the jurisdiction of appropriate courts and tribunals at Mumbai, India,
and as more particularly provided for in the respective Transaction Documents.

Business Day Convention

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"If any of the Coupon Payment Dates falls on a day which is not a Business Day,
the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made on the next Business
Day, except where the Maturity Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day,
in which case all payments to be made on the Maturity Date (including accrued
Coupon) shall be made on the immediately preceding Business Day.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.
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Early Redemption

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Issuer to maintain the below mentioned criteria/s during the tenor of the NCDs:

Credit Rating of the Issuer from any credit rating agency to remain at minimum
Of HA ".

In the event of breach of above-mentioned criteria, the trustee shall act in the
following manner:

1. The Bank shall inform the Trustee within 30 business days from the
date of change in rating as mentioned here.

2. The Trustee shall then call for a Debenture Holder meeting within 7
(seven) days from the date of intimation from the Bank, seek approval
from Majority Debenture holders (or as per the prescribed timeline in
the Applicable Laws) for intimation to RBI within 7 (seven) business
days from the date of such approval to initiate redemption as
mentioned herein.

3. The Trustee shall take an approval from RBI for early redemption within
7 (seven) business days from the date of intimation as mentioned
above. The Trustee may request the Bank to seek such approval by
issuing a written request for the same. The Bank shall take such
approval within 7 (seven) days from the date of receipt of such request
from the Trustee.

Subject to prior RBI approval and other applicable regulations, the Debenture
Holders may require the Bank to redeem the Debentures ("Optional Accelerated
Redemption") within 30 days from the date of intimation to the Trustee. It is
clarified that the Optional Accelerated Redemption would only be applicable
after 5 years from the Deemed Date of Allotment, in line with applicable RBI
circular/ guidelines".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Seniority

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Claims of the Investors in the Instruments shall be:

(i) Senior to the claims of investors in instruments eligible for inclusion in
Tier 1 Capital;

(ii) Subordinate to the claims of all depositors, general creditors of the
Bank, but shall rank pari passu with the other Tier Il capital instruments

of the Bank (whether present or future); and

(iii) rank pari passu inter se the Debenture Holders, without preference
amongst themselves.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Representations
Warranties

and

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:
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"As is set out in Debenture Trust Deed.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Financial Covenants

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

" The Bank shall maintain until the Final Settlement e:

a) Capital Adequacy Ratio stipulated level as prescribed by the
RBI from time to time.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Consequences of Event of
Default

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"Since the Debentures are classified as subordinated debt under the New Capital
Adequacy Framework, on the occurrence of an Event of Default, unless such
Event of Default at the request of the Bank is expressly waived by the Debenture
Trustee acting on the instructions of the Majority Debenture Holder(s), (a) upon
the expiry of the cure period provided, if any; or (b) if the cure period provided
is mutually extended by the Parties hereto, upon the expiry of such extended
period; or (c) where no cure period has been provided, then forthwith; or (d)
where no cure period has been provided and the parties mutually agree to
provide for a cure period, upon the expiry of such mutually agreed upon cure
period, the following rights shall be available to the Debenture Trustee (acting
on the instructions of the Majority Debenture Holde

(a) subject to procuring the prior written consent of the Reserve Bank of India
accelerate the redemption of the Debentur

(b) exercise any other right that the Debenture Trustee and/ or Debenture
Holder(s) may have under the Transaction Documents or under Applicable

Law.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Additional Disclosures
(Default in Payment)

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"In relation to the principal amount and coupon payable in respect of the
Debentures, in case the same is not paid on the respective Due Dates, the
defaulted amounts shall carry further interest at the rate of 2% (Two Percent)
per annum over and above the Coupon Rate, from the date of occurrence of such
default up to the date on which the defaulted amounts together with default
interest is paid.".

This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Additional Disclosures
(Delay in Listing)

The term sheet executed by the Issuer in respect of this Issue prescribes as
follows:

"The issue will be listed within 3 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. In
case of delay in listing, Bank will pay penal interest of 2% p.a. over the coupon
rate from the expiry of 3 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment till the listing
of such securities to the Investor.".
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This will be set out in greater detail in the DTD.

Declaration required by | (a) This Issue of Debentures does not form part of non-equity regulatory
BSE Limited

capital mentioned under Chapter V of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 and Chapter Xlll (Issuance, listing and trading non-
equity regulatory capital) of the circular issued by SEBI bearing the
reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10,
2021 on "Operational Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible
Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal
Debt Securities and Commercial Paper" read together with SEBI
circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-RACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/027 dated
February 8, 2023 on "Clarification w.r.t. issuance and listing of
perpetual debt instruments, perpetual non-cumulative preference
shares and similar instruments under chapter v of the Sebi (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021".

(b) The face value of each debt security/Debenture issued on private
placement basis under this Issue is INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One
Lakh).

Note:

a. If there is any change in Coupon Rate rate pursuant to any event including lapse of certain time period or
downgrade in rating, then such new Coupon Rate and events which lead to such change should be disclosed.

b. The list of documents which has been executed in connection with the issue and subscription of debt
securities shall be annexed.

c. The issuer shall provide granular disclosures in their placement memorandum, with regards to the "Object
of the Issue" including the percentage of the issue proceeds earmarked for each of the "object of the issue".

8.2 LISTING AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

(a)

Monitoring and Due Diligence

The Issuer will provide all such assistance to the Debenture Trustee as may be required by
it, to carry out the necessary continuous and periodic due diligence in the manner as may
be specified by SEBI from time to time. In this regard, in accordance with Chapter VI
(Periodical/ Continuous Monitoring by Debenture Trustee) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Operational Circular, the Issuer undertakes and agrees to provide all relevant
documents/information, as applicable, to enable the Debenture Trustee to submit the
reports/certifications to BSE in accordance with Chapter VI (Periodical/ Continuous
Monitoring by Debenture Trustee) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational Circular.

The Issuer further undertakes to comply with all requirements applicable to it under the
SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational Circular, and provide all documents/information as
may be required by the Debenture Trustee in accordance with the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Operational Circular or any other Applicable Law.

The Issuer shall promptly disclose and furnish to the Debenture Trustee, all documents/
information about or in relation to the Issuer or the Debentures, as requested by the
Debenture Trustee to fulfil its obligations hereunder or to comply with any Applicable Law,
including in relation to filing of its reports/ certification to stock exchange within the
prescribed timelines.

52




Placement Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: June 15, 2023 For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(b) Recovery Expense Fund

(i) The Issuer hereby undertakes and confirms that it shall, within the time period
prescribed under Chapter IV (Recovery Expenses Fund) of the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Operational Circular, establish, maintain and utilize the Recovery Expense
Fund in such manner/mode as is prescribed under Chapter IV (Recovery Expenses
Fund) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational Circular, to enable the
Debenture Trustee to take prompt action in relation to any enforcement measures
under the Transaction Documents.

(ii) The amounts in the Recovery Expense Fund shall be refunded to the Issuer on
repayment/redemption of the Debentures, following which a "no objection
certificate" shall be issued by the Debenture Trustee(s) to the designated stock
exchange. The Debenture Trustee shall ensure that there is no default on any other
listed debt securities of the Issuer before issuing such "no objection certificate".

(c) Requirements under the LODR Regulations
The Issuer agrees, declares and covenants with the Debenture Trustee that it will comply
with all relevant requirements prescribed under the LODR Regulations applicable to it

(including without limitation, Chapter IV of the LODR Regulations (to the extent applicable)
and Chapter V of the LODR Regulations (to the extent applicable)).
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SECTION 9: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Debentures being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the Act, the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Placement Memorandum, Application Form and
other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction Documents.

9.1 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be entitled to transfer
the Debentures to a person who is not entitled to subscribe to the Debentures. The Debenture(s) shall be
transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and other applicable
laws. The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the
rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL/CDSL and the relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and any
other applicable laws and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer
formalities are completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be
paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holders
maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In cases where the transfer
formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the transferees would need to be
settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal procedure followed for transfer of securities
held in dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of these Debentures held in dematerialised form.
The seller should give delivery instructions containing details of the buyer's DP account to his DP.

9.2 Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the Debenture
Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by cheque/EFT/RTGS to those
Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent. The
names would be as per the R&T Agent's records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All
such Debentures will be simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the relevant Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries' name and
account number, address, bank details and DP's identification number will be given by the R&T Agent to the
Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS to the
bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

9.3 Debenture Trustee for the Debenture Holder(s)

The Issuer has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture Holder(s). The Issuer
and the Debenture Trustee have entered/intend to enter into the Debenture Trustee Agreement and the
Debenture Trust Deed inter alia, specifying the powers, authorities and obligations of the Debenture Trustee
and the Issuer. The Debenture Holder(s) shall, without further act or deed, be deemed to have irrevocably
given their consent to the Debenture Trustee or any of its agents or authorized officials to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things in respect of or relating to the Debentures as the Debenture Trustee may in its
absolute discretion deem necessary or require to be done in the interest of the Debenture Holder(s). Any
payment made by the Issuer to the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holder(s) shall discharge
the Issuer pro tanto to the Debenture Holder(s). The Debenture Trustee will protect the interest of the
Debenture Holder(s) in regard to the repayment of principal and coupon thereon and they will take necessary
action, subject to and in accordance with the Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed,
at the cost of the Issuer. No Debenture Holder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer unless
the Debenture Trustee, having become so bound to proceed, fails to do so. The Debenture Trustee Agreement
and the Debenture Trust Deed shall more specifically set out the rights and remedies of the Debenture
Holder(s) and the manner of enforcement thereof.

9.4 Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange, share or part
with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available with the Issuer, with its
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subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies,
as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for
use of the aforesaid information.

9.5 Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than those
available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture Holders the right to
receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of the shareholders of the Issuer.

9.6 Modification of Debentures

Any Transaction Document may be modified or amended in accordance with the terms of the relevant
Transaction Document.

9.7 Right to accept or reject Applications

The Board of Directors/Committee of Directors reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or
reject any application for subscription to the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any reason
thereof.

9.8 Notices

Any notice, in respect of the Debentures, may be served by the Issuer upon the Debenture Trustee/Debenture
Holders in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents.

9.9 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder may apply for the Debentures by completing the Application Form
in the prescribed format in block letters in English as per the instructions contained therein. The minimum
number of Debentures that can be applied for and the multiples thereof shall be set out in the Application
Form. No application can be made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application Forms should be duly completed
in all respects and applications not completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected. The name of the
applicant's bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the applicant. This is
required for the applicant's own safety and these details will be printed on the refund orders and /or
redemptions warrants.

The applicant should transfer payments required to be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS, to the bank account
of the Issuer as per the details mentioned in the Application Form.

9.10 Application Procedure

Potential Investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the Placement
Memorandum during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date (both dates
inclusive). The Issue will be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period
covered by the Issue Schedule.

9.11 Fictitious Applications

All fictitious applications will be rejected.

9.12 Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, the Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any application,

in part or in full, without assigning any reason. Subject to the aforesaid, in case of over subscription, priority
will be given to potential investors on a first come first serve basis. The investors will be required to remit the
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funds as well as submit the duly completed Application Form along with other necessary documents to Issuer
by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

9.13 Payment Instructions
The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire amount of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One

Lakh) per Debenture is payable along with the making of an application. Applicants can remit the application
amount through RTGS on Pay-in Date. The RTGS details of the Issuer are as under:

Beneficiary Name FSFB -Treasury Internal office A/c

Bank Account No. 17200000124746

IFSC Code FSFBO000001

Bank Name Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Branch Address 5th Floor Bren Mercury, Sarjapur Road, Kaikondrahalli, Bengaluru

9.14 Eligible Investors

The following categories of investors, when specifically approached and have been identified upfront, are
eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective investment
norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the relevant documents along
with the Application Form ("Eligible Investors"):

Individuals

Hindu Undivided Family

Trust

Limited Liability Partnerships

Partnership Firm(s)

Portfolio Managers registered with SEBI

Association of Persons

Companies and Bodies Corporate including Public Sector Undertakings
Commercial Banks Regional Rural Banks

Financial Institutions

Insurance Companies

Mutual Funds

FPIs /Flls, /sub-accounts of Flls

Any other investor eligible to invest in the Debentures

All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential investors in the Issue may be subject to statutory and/or regulatory
requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities by such categories of
persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all regulatory requirements
applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requirements. Applicants ought to seek
independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.

9.15 Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

(a) The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DP's of NSDL/CDSL prior to
making the application.

(b) The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number and DP -
ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading "Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form".

(c) Debentures allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant's respective beneficiary
account(s) with the DP.
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(d) For subscribing to the Debentures, names in the Application Form should be identical to those
appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should necessarily be
in the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with the DP.

(e) Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by the
Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue.

(f) If incomplete/incorrect details are given under the heading "Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form" in the Application Form, it will be deemed to be an incomplete
application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the sole discretion of the Issuer.

(8) For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the applicant as
registered with his/her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the applicant. The applicant is
therefore responsible for the correctness of his/her demographic details given in the Application
Form vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer
would not be liable for the losses, if any.

(h) The redemption amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders whose names
appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date. In case
of those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not identified in the records of the R&T Agent
as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in abeyance the payment of the redemption amount
or other benefits, until such time that the beneficial owner is identified by the R&T Agent and
conveyed to the Issuer, whereupon the redemption amount and benefits will be paid to the
beneficiaries, as identified.

9.16 Depository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with CDSL and NSDL for issue and holding of Debenture in
dematerialised form.

9.17 List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each Record Date.
This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

9.18 Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with the
names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and the tax exemption
certificate/document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of the completed
Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority should be notified to
the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es) as may be specified by the
Issuer from time to time through a suitable communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a certified
true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along with other
constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making the application,
failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application in
whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and specimen signatures of
all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed Application
Form.

9.19 Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be made in
respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund/venture capital fund registered with the SEBI and such
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applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that the application made by the asset
management company/trustee/custodian clearly indicated their intention as to the scheme for which the
application has been made.

The Application Forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which
application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of:

(a) SEBI registration certificate
(b) Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions
(c) Specimen signature of authorized signatories

9.20 Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable:

(a) Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constitutional documents
(b) Resolution authorising investment

(c) Certified true copy of the Power of Attorney to custodian

(d) Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

(e) SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

() Copy of PAN card

(8) Application Form (including EFT/RTGS details)

9.21 Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant and the

magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of redemption amount

and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through cheque/EFT/RTGS.

9.22 Succession

In the event of winding up of a Debenture Holder (being a company), the Issuer will recognise the legal

representative as having title to the Debenture(s). The Issuer shall not be bound to recognize such legal

representative as having title to the Debenture(s), unless they obtain legal representation, from a court in

India having jurisdiction over the matter.

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of such legal

representation, in order to recognise any person as being entitled to the Debenture(s) standing in the name

of the concerned Debenture Holder on the production of sufficient documentary proof and an indemnity.

9.23 Mode of Payment

All payments must be made through cheque(s) demand draft(s), EFT/RTGS as set out in the Application Form.

9.24 Effect of Holidays

Please refer Section 8.1 (Summary Terms).

9.25 Tax Deduction at Source

(a) All payments to be made by the Issuer to the Debenture Holders under the Transaction Documents
shall be made free and clear of and without any Tax Deduction unless the Issuer is required to make

a Tax Deduction pursuant to Applicable Law.

(b) The Issuer shall promptly upon becoming aware that it must make a Tax Deduction (or that there is
any change in the rate or the basis of a Tax Deduction) notify the Debenture Trustee accordingly.
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(c) If the Issuer is required to make a Tax Deduction, it shall make that Tax Deduction and any payment
required in connection with that Tax Deduction within the time allowed and in the minimum amount
required by Applicable Law.

(d) Within the time period prescribed in the Transaction Documents, the Issuer shall deliver to the
Debenture Trustee evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee that the Tax
Deduction has been made or (as applicable) any appropriate payment paid to the relevant taxing
authority.

9.26 Allotment

The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures are allotted to the respective Debenture Holders and are credited
into the demat accounts of the relevant Debenture Holders within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI
Listing Timelines Requirements.

9.27 Deemed Date of Allotment

All the benefits under the Debentures will accrue to the Investor from the specified Deemed Date of
Allotment. The Deemed Date of Allotment for the Issue is June 15, 2023 by which date the Investors would
be intimated of allotment.

9.28 Record Date

The Record Date will be 15 (fifteen) calendar days prior to any Due Date.

9.29 Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be dispatched
within 7 (seven) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of the
application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the R&T Agent
shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys to the extent of
such excess, if any.

9.30 Interest on Application Money

Please refer Section 8.1 (Summary Terms).

9.31 PAN Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number ("PAN") allotted under Income Tax Act, 1961,
on the Application Form and attach a self-attested copy as evidence. Application forms without PAN will be
considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

9.32 Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s)/redemption warrant(s)/demand draft(s)/credit
through RTGS system/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list
of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the redemption amount by the Issuer on maturity
to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holder(s) on the

Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform NSDL/CDSL and accordingly the account of
the Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL/CDSL will be adjusted.
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On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the liability of the
Issuer shall stand extinguished.

Disclaimer: Please note that only those persons to whom this Placement Memorandum has been
specifically addressed are eligible to apply. However, an application, even if complete in all respects, is
liable to be rejected without assigning any reason for the same. The list of documents provided above is
only indicative, and an investor is required to provide all those documents / authorizations / information,
which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but is not bound to, revert to any investor for
any additional documents / information, and can accept or reject an application as it deems fit. Provisions
in respect of investment by investors falling in the categories mentioned above are merely indicative and
the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to invest as per extant laws, regulations, etc. Each of
the above categories of investors is required to check and comply with extant rules/regulations/ guidelines,
etc. governing or regulating their investments as applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way,
directly or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the
Issuer required to check or confirm the same.
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SECTION 10: DECLARATION
A. The Issuer has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made hereunder.

B. The compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder do not imply that payment
of dividend or interest or repayment of the Debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central
Government.

C. The monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in this
Placement Memorandum.

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Issuer vide resolution numbers 01 and 08 dated February 20,
2023, June 12, 2023 and June 15, 2023, respectively, to sign this Placement Memorandum and declare that
all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter
of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied with.

Whatever is stated in this Placement Memorandum and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and
complete and no information material to the subject matter of this Placement Memorandum has been
suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

Itis further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and legibly
attached to this Placement Memorandum.

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations/guideline issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Placement Memorandum is contrary
to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other applicable laws, as the case may be.
The information contained in this Placement Memorandum is as applicable to privately placed debt securities
and subject to the information available with the Issuer. The extent of disclosures made in this Placement
Memorandum is consistent with disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to the issue of securities
made by the companies in the past.

For Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

S
¥ o, (s ®
Gy o= (( )\

ey S
T

Authorised Signatory

Name: Shefaly Kothari
Title: Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 15, 2023
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ANNEXURE I: TERM SHEET

As provided in Section 8.1 (Summary Terms) above.
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ANNEXURE II: RATING LETTER, RATING RATIONALE AND PRESS RELEASE FROM THE RATING AGENCY

ICRA ICRA Limited

Ref: ICRA Fiacare Small Finance Bank Limited/ 09062023 /2

June 09, 2023

Mr. Keyur Doshi

il Financial Officer

Fincare Small Finance Bask Umined

Sth Floor, Bran Mercury, Kakondanabali,
Sarjapur Main Road,

Bengakary - 560102, wdia

Dear Sir,

Re: ICRA Credit Rating for the Rs. 180-croee Lower Tier il Sond Prograssme of Fincare Seall Finance Bank
Lissited

Moase refer 10 the Rating Agréemsant /Statement of Works dated June 6, 2023 and lune &, 1023 exacuted betwoen
ICRA Limitad ("ICRAT) and your company for Garrying out the rating of the aforeiaid Lower Tier & Bonds Programme.

The Rating Committoe of IKRA, after duo > ion, has assigned 2 ICRAJA | d a5 ICRA A] rating 10 the
Captioned Lower Twr & uml woaamm Instrements with this rating #o cossidered 1o have Jdeauane dagres of
afety segarding tmely g ol fi | obliga Such & Carry low Credit fsk. The cutiook on the

long-1erm rating is Positive.

1 afry of your pultlioty Mmaternial of CMY AOCUMEIT Wherived yOu are using the JBOW Jssigned rating, it shauld be
Qaned & [ICRAJA (Poditive). We would request if you can peovith your accéptance on the above Ratiegls] by
snding an email of signed Attached acknowiedgoment 1o us l1est by June 12, 2023 a5 JCCaplancs on the Jssigned

rating. In case yeu do sot 08 your /" of the xsigned credt rating, or o not
appeal agaist the asigrod fating by he aferesaid date, the rating will Be eated by us as not accepted and shal
e dscloned on iCRA'S website gl This is in with by the S ities and

Excharnge Board of ladia {SEBI) vide SEBI drcular dated January 6, 2023,

Any intimation By you about the abowe rating 10 any b ) authorg/stock
Sachange would LOMmInue use of this rating by you and shall ke amﬂ nmmo'mvm

This rating is specific 10 the taems and conditions of the propoted Ssue & was INSCated 10 u by you and any
change in the tarms o 2 of the (e would 0guine the rating 10 be reviewed by us. If thine & amy change i the
1orms and conditions of sixe of the instrument rated, as above, the SaMe MU b BIOUFRL 10 our AotiCe bifore the
65U Of the IStrumant. I ther & asy such change after the ratieg is ssigned by us and accepted by you, it would
NWuloou”wn“mnrﬂllnmmunmmiﬂwulmtmmrwmrwnmd/u
revise the abowe at any tise on the bass of new Nk o of info jon or such other
Crrunalanges, which I0RA bakeves, may hawve an impact 0n the rating assgned 10 you

The rating, as aforesaid, howewer, should not be treated a5 3 ecoMmmendation 10 buy, sel o hold the Bonds,

b and/ or ctier | of like nature 10 be issued By you.
- —
SulMing No A 2% Floar, Tower A Tl 421134 54000 Welsile: www wraln
DL Cybuw Ciey, Phase 11 CIN - LU I LOM T Exsail lsdoRaracadia com
Gorsgrwm - 120002 Haryana Helpdesk: +21 23347380
Reglomend (w1710, 2 Hoaee, 148 1 Shassts Nuadd Neow Dol 1320001 Tol +9111.2000T00-41

RATING . RESEARCH « INFORMATION
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ICRA

¥ou are also requested to forthwith inform us abowt amy default or delay in repaypment of interest or principal
amount of the nstrument rated, as above, or any other debt instrumeentsf borrowing and keep us informed of amy
other developments which may hawe a direct or indirect impact on the debt servidng capability of the compamy
including any proposal for re-schedulement or postponement of the repaymeent programmees of the dues)’ debts of
the company with any lender(s) / imeestar(s), ar accurrence af any significant development that could impact the
abilty of the company to rase funds swch as restriction imposed by any authority from rassing funds through
Issuance of debt seourities throwgh electronic bidding system. Further, you are requested to inform ws immediatety
as amd when the borrowing bmit for the instrument rated, as abowe, or as prescribed by the regulatory
authorityies) & excesded.

\ive thani you fior your kind copperation extended durng the cowrse of the rting exerose. Should you requine amy
clarfication, please do not hesitate ta get in touch with .

e look forsard to your commeaunication and assure you of owr best services.

iith kind regards,
Fours simcerely,

For ICRA Limited
itally signed
ANIL  smalcimm

GUPTA =z

194238 +05"30

Anil Gupta
Sendar Vice President

Co-Group Head -Financial Sectar Ratings

ani '!-'E wraindia.com
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ANNEXURE Ill: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

il i @lL
CL/DEB/23.24/327 Date : 12-Jun-2023

To,

TAHA HARARWALA ,

Fincare Small Finance Bank Uimited,
Sth Floor, Bren Mercury, ,

Varthur Hobli, Kaikondanahalli,,
Bengaluru,

Karmataka,

India 560035.

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Re: G to act as a Deb Trustee for Private Placement of Fully Paid, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Transferable, UnSecured, Non-Convertible Debentures of £ 49.00 Crores

We refer to your letter dated 12.06.2023 , requesting us to convey our consent to act as the
Deb Trustee for cap d issue of Debentures.

We hereby convey our acceptance to act as Debenture Trustees for the said issue Debentures,
subject to execution of Debenture Trustee Agreement as per Regulation 13 of SE8I {Debenture
Trustee) Regulations, 1993, thereby agreeing to execute Debenture Trust Deed and to create the
security if applicable within the timeline as per relevant Laws /Regulations and in the Offer
Document [ Information Memorandum / Disclosure Document / Placement Memorandum and
company agreeing / undertalang to comply with the provisions of SEBI ( Debenture Trustee )
Regulations, 1993, SEBI (tssue and Listing o f Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations 2021, SEBI
{Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements] Regulation 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
thereunder and other applicable laws as amended from time to time.

Fee Structure for the proposed transaction will be as per annexure A.

Assuning you of the best professional services.
Thanking you.

Yours fan-f;dlv, |

Name : Tamkeen Shaikh
Designation : Manager

CATALSEY LT s d
Nl O Wi Pt s Fon. 604, €T D Monlrns, Sanrrt I | Mmribont 000 B0 Tof 101 JC13 ) W13 OANS Fiua 90 B30} 002 0600
Sagut, G CAMA Shane F301 W 05 Snar oty ISOEL S MORL M 411 08 Tl ) IO ES0mm1 Fam o8| RIER| ESERNEYS

D OFSon O A I B P M B 0. Founir s Cltrndi Mg M w1 93080 Tl 11 433 THOVEE

=T O

e T Cneras
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ANNEXURE IV: APPLICATION FORM

FINCARE SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: 05/04/1995
Registered Office: 301-306, 3" Floor, Abhijeet-V, Opp. Mayor’s Bunglow, Law Garden Road, Mithakhali,
Ahmedabad-380006, Gujarat
Telephone No.: +91 7940011000
Website: www.fincarebank.com

DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORM SERIAL NO. I T T T T T T T T ]

ISSUE OF 4,900 (FOUR THOUSAND AND NINE HUNDRED) RATED, SUBORDINATED, UNSECURED, LISTED,
TRANSFERABLE, REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES DENOMINATED IN INDIAN RUPEES
("INR"), HAVING A FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH) EACH AND AN AGGREGATE
FACE VALUE OF INR 49,00,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES FORTY NINE CRORE) ("DEBENTURES") ON A PRIVATE
PLACEMENT BASIS (THE "ISSUE").

DEBENTURE SERIES APPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures: In words: only
Amount INR /- In words
Rupees: only

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:

Cheque / Demand Draft / RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transferred to the account specified in "Instructions" below on

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) INR /- (In words) Only

APPLICANT'S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS

ADDRESS

STREET

CITY

PIN PHONE FAX
APPLICANT'S PAN/GIR NO. IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

WE ARE ( ) COMPANY ( ) OTHERS (Please specify)

We have read and understood the terms and conditions of the issue of Debentures including the risk factors
described in the enclosed Placement Memorandum ("IM") and the private placement offer cum application
letter of the same date ("PPOA") issued by the Issuer (collectively, the "Debt Disclosure Documents") and
have considered these in making our decision to apply. We bind ourselves to the terms and conditions of the

66


http://www.fincarebank.com/

Placement Memorandum Private & Confidential

Date: June 15, 2023 For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

Debt Disclosure Documents and wish to apply for allotment of the Debentures. We request you to please
place our name(s) on the register of holders.

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)

Applicant's Signature

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Issuer in dematerialised form. Details of
my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL ( ) CDSL( )
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME
DP-ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft / Pay
Order / Direct Credit / ECS / NEFT/RTGS/other
permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

We understand and confirm that the information provided in the Debt Disclosure Documents is provided by
the Issuer. We confirm that we have for the purpose of investing in these Debentures carried out our own
due diligence and made our own decisions with respect to investment in these Debentures and have not
relied on any representations made by anyone other than the Issuer, if any.

We understand that: (i) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned above
would get credited to the extent of allotted Debentures, (ii) we must ensure that the sequence of names as
mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our Depository Participant, (iii)
if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also not in the same order as the
Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository Participant or if the Debentures cannot be
credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason whatsoever, the Issuer shall be entitled at its sole discretion
to reject the application or issue the Debentures in physical form.

By making this application, we acknowledge that we have understood the
terms and conditions of the Issue of 4,900 (four thousand and nine hundred)
rated, subordinated, unsecured, listed, transferable, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees
One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 49,00,00,000 (Indian
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Rupees Forty Nine Crore) in the form of subordinated debt eligible to be
classified as Tier Il Capital in accordance with the RBI's circular on "Master
Circular - Prudential Guidelines on Capital Adequacy and Market Discipline-
New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF)" dated July 1, 2015 of Fincare
Small Finance Bank Limited as disclosed in the Debt Disclosure Documents.

Applicant's Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note : Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

(TEAR HERE)
ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP

| (To be filled in by Applicant) SERIAL NO. | | | | | | | | |

Received from

Address
Cheque/Draft/UTR # Drawn on for
INR on account of application of Debenture
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INSTRUCTIONS
1. Application form must be completed in full, IN ENGLISH.

2. Signatures must be made in English or in any of the Indian languages. Thumb Impressions must be
attested by an authorized official of the Bank or by a Magistrate/Notary Public under his/her official
seal.

3. Application form, duly completed in all respects, must be submitted with the respective Collecting
Bankers. Cheque(s)/Demand Draft(s) should be drawn in favour of " FSFB -Treasury Internal office
A/c " and crossed "A/C Payee Only" Cheque(s)/Demand Draft(s) may be drawn on any scheduled
bank and payable at Bengaluru, India. The payment can also be made through RTGS as per the
following details:

Beneficiary name FSFB -Treasury Internal office A/c

Beneficiary account no. 17200000124746

Branch address 5th Floor Bren Mercury, Sarjapur Road,
Kaikondrahalli, Bengaluru

Beneficiary bank Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Account type Current Account

IFSC code FSFBO000001

The Issuer undertakes that the application money deposited in the above-mentioned bank account
shall not be utilized for any purpose other than:

(a) for adjustment against allotment of securities; or

(b) for the repayment of monies where the Issuer is unable to allot securities.

4. Outstation Cheques, Cash, Money Orders, Postal Orders and Stock Invest shall not be accepted.

5. Receipt of applicants will be acknowledged by the Issuer in the "Acknowledgement Slip" appearing
below the application form. No separate receipt will be issued.

6. All applicants should mention their Permanent Account No. or their GIR No. allotted under Income
Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Tax Circle/Ward/District. In case where neither the PAN nor the GIR
No. has been allotted, the fact of non-allotment should be mentioned in the application form in the
space provided. Income Tax as applicable will be deducted at source at the time of payment of
interest including interest payable on application money.

7. The application would be accepted as per the terms of the Debentures outlined in the transaction
documents for the private placement.
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ANNEXURE V: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ALONG WITH AUDIT REPORTS, SCHEDULES,

FOOTNOTES, SUMMARY ETC.

Balance Sheet

(Amt in Lacs)

As on As on As on
31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2021

Capital & Liabilities

Capital 22,078 22,078 6,361

Employees stock options outstanding 1,458 638 100

Reserves and surplus 107,835 97,471 95,329

Deposits 803,319 645,616 531,850

Borrowings 278,400 294,354 140,043

Other liabilities and provisions 33,679 29,999 23,024
TOTAL 1,246,769 1,090,156 796,707
Assets

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 65,438 111,679 103,650

Balances with banks and money at call and short 11,781 11,917 11,913
notice

Investments 252,284 215,163 127,936

Advances 870,242 703,696 530,112

Fixed assets 5,630 4,234 3,619

Other assets 41,394 43,467 19,477
TOTAL 1,246,769 1,090,156 796,707
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(Amt in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2021
I. Income
Interest earned 174,411.88 144,857.39 125,105.88
Other income 22,667.70 19,616.33 12,565.08
TOTAL 197,079.59 164,473.72 137,670.96
Il. Expenditure
Interest expended 65,367.53 56,978.24 55,004.80
Operating expenses 87,405.17 64,679.63 46,328.09
Provision and contingencies 33,942.80 41,928.83 25,024.23
TOTAL 186,715.50 163,586.69 126,357.12
I1l. Profit / (loss)
Net profit / (loss) for the year 10,364.09 887.02 11,313.84
Profit / (loss) brought forward 17,520.54 18,109.62 9,707.40
Year ended | Year ended | Year ended
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2021
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax 1,299.68 57.46 1,464.19
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 214.03 201.19 170.08
Amortisation of premium on investments 108.07 103.19 68.49
(Profit) / loss on disposal of fixed assets (0.22) 0.29 (0.08)
Employee stock option cost 81.91 53.80 9.97
Loan portfolio written off (net of recovery) 5,515.85 3,695.10 339.31
Provision for loan portfolio (1,626.83) 600.24 1,857.22
Provision for other contingencies 36.42 2.19 (26.67)
Provision / depreciation - Investments 45.14 56.11 (0.51)
Long term retention bonus expense - -
(Profit) on sale of investment in SLR2 securities (2.86) (53.95) (12.21)
Loss on sale of investment in SLR2 securities 64.16 28.41 9.94
(Profit) on sale of investment in mutual funds - (1.92) (2.93)
Operating profits before working capital changes 5,735.35 4,742.11 3,876.80
Movement in working capital:
Increase in deposits 15,770.22 11,370.80 6,645.67
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 492.60 1,318.58 408.98
(Increase) in investments (net) (2,044.24) (6,304.88) 116.50
(Increase) in advances (20,690.93) | (22,229.82) (6,996.81)
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Decrease / (increase) in fixed deposits 245.64 (375.16) (51.57)
(Increase) in other assets 542.15 (2,013.79) (2.05)
Cash generated (used in) / from operating activities 50.79 | (13,492.16) 3,997.51
Taxes on income paid, net (611.52) (395.36) (612.89)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (560.73) (13,887.52) 3,384.62
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (354.67) (263.59) (129.15)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1.20 0.66 0.88
Purchase of investments in Govt Securites (HTM) (2,452.43) (3,467.34) (2,906.21)
Proceeds from maturity of investments in Govt Securites (HTM) 570.00 915.84
Purchase of investments in mutual funds - (499.98) (1,799.98)
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds - 501.90 1,802.86
Proceeds from term money lending - - -
Net cash generated / (used in)from investing activities (2,235.90) (2,812.51) (3,031.60)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 1,697.07 -
Share / debenture issue expenses - - -
Repayment of borrowing under the LAF3 segment (560.00) - (470.00)
Proceeds from borrowing under the LAF3 segment - 5,400.00 -
Proceeds from loans availed from banks and financial
institutions 10,000.00 13,580.42 4,700.00
Repayment of loans availed from banks and financial (10,785.44) (3,549.34) (3,907.33)
institutions
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debentures - - -
Redemption of non-convertible debentures (250.00) - -
Net cash generated / (used in) from financing activities (1,595.44) 17,128.15 322.67
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the (4,392.07) 428.12 675.70
year (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11,856.44 11,428.32 10,752.62
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7,464.37 11,856.44 11,428.32
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SR. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Members of Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinien

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited ("the
Bank"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In owr epinion and to the best of our information and acceording to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as
well as the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and circulars and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of
India (REI} in the manner so required by banking companies and give a true and fair view In cenfarmity
with the applicable accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
“the Act”) read with Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and other accou nting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2023, its
profit after tax and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financlal statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(3As), as specifled under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilithes under those Standards are
further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section
of our report, We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfliled sur ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Caode of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinicn on the financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judament, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinien thereen, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context,

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters te be communicated
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibliities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report, including In relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, Including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basls for
¢ur audit opinien on the accompanying financial statements.

s
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| Wey aualt matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Igentifieation of Mon-performing advances and provisioning of advances:(refer note 2.4 of
Sehedule 17 and note 18.4 and 18.15 to the financial statemants)

Advances constitute a significant
portion of the Bank's assets and the
quality of these advances is measured
In terms of ratio of Non-Performing
Advances ("NPA") to the gross
advances of the Bank. As at 31 March
2023, the Gross Advances of the Bank
was Rs, 8,B77.37 crores, Gross NPA of
the Bank was Rs 2B8.47 crores and
Gross NPA ratio of the Bank was 3.25%,

The Reserve Bank of India’s ("REI")
guidelines on Income recognition and
asset classification and provisioning
pertaining to advances dated April 01,
2023C"IRAC) prescribes the prudential
norms for kdentitication and
classitication of NPAs and the minimum
provislon required for such assets
including restructuring.

Given the volume and varlety of loans,
judgement is involved in the application
of RBI Regulations for classificatlon of
Ioans as NPA. In view of the significance
of this area to the overall audit of
financial statements, it has been
considered as a key audit matter

Qur audit procedures included, among others the |
following:

Considered the Bank's policies for NPA
identification and provisioning in assessing
compliance with the IRAC

Obtalned an understanding and performead
walk through of key processes controls around
identitication of NPAs, classification and
provisioning

Evaluated the design and operating
effectivensss of key controls (including
application controls) around identification of
NPAS, classification of loans in the respective
assel classes viz., standard, sub-standard,
doubtful and loss with reference to RBI
Regulations

Performed account statement reviews on
sample basis for account slippages and
upgrades and identified customer accounts
availing more than one loan from the Bank and
test chacked that all loans avalled by a
delinguent customer are classifled
appropriately

Performed analytical procedures on various
financial and non-tinancial parameters to test
the completeness of accounts identified as
HPA

Performed test of details te test on
provisioning rates applied for respective asset
classes in lines with the Bank's policles
Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of provislen for advances
Assessed disclosures included in the financial
statements in respect of asset classifications
and provisioning, including specific disclosures
made with regard to RBI Regulations

Tested on a sample basls that the
restructuring of loans done during the year as
per IRAC norms was approved and
implemented and provisions made on such
restructured leans In aceordance with the
Bank's Board approved policy and the IRAC
RGrms

Infermation Technology (“IT") Systams

and Controls

The reliability and security of IT
systems plays a key role in the business
operations of the Bank. Since large

-

Our audit procedures included the following:

For testing the IT general controls, application
controls and IT dependent manual controls
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vaolume of transactions are processed
daily, the IT controls are required to
ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes made to
applications are made in an appropriate
manner, These systems also play a key
role in the financlal accounting and
reporting process of the Bank.

COur areas of audit focus included user
access management, developer access
to the production environment and
changes te the IT environment across
applications, networks | databases and
operating systems as these are key to
ensuring IT dependent and application
based eontrols are operating
effectively.

Due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, we
have ascertained IT systems and

relevant for financial reperting, we included T
specialists as part of the audit team. The |T
specialists also assisted in testing of the
information produced by the Bank's | T systems
Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
the Bank's IT access controls over the
infarmation systems that are critical to financial
reporting

Tested other IT general centrols {(changes
management and aspects of IT operational
caentrols)

Inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate  approval and authorization.
Further, considered the control environment
relating to various interfaces, configuration and
other application contrels identified as key to
our audit

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
certain  automated controls that were
considered as key internal controls over
tinancial reporting

Instances where deficiencies were identified,
tested compensating controls or performed

controls as a key audit matter. alternate procedures

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report including the Pillar 11l Disclosure under the
Hew Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel Il disclosures) but does not Include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance concluslon therean.

In cennection with our awdit of the financial statements, our responsibility Is to read the other
information and, in doing s, consider whether such other information Is materially incensistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to Those Charged with Governance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Bank's Board of Directors s responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparatlon of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies fAccounts)
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Fules, 2014 (as amended), the relevant provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the
cirgulars, guidelines and directions issued by RBI fram time to time ("RBI Guidelines'"} and other
accounting principles generally accepted In India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting palicles; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
Qive a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when It
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consldered material if, individually or In
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sutticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as frawd may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 14303XD of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the geing concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exlsts, we are required to draw attention In
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank
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to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achleves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identlfy during our audit.

We also provide these charged with gevernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended
March 21, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes pubdic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Balance sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash flow Statement for the vear ended
March 31, 2023, have been drawn up In accordance with the applicable accounting standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), the relevant provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the circulars, guidelines
and directions issued by the REI from time te time ("RBI Guidelines™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

2. As required by sub section (3} of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we repart
that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and bellef, were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be
satisfactory;

b} The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our netice, have been within the powers
of the Bank; and

€} The financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralized and therefore, accounting

returns for the purpose of preparing financlal statements are not required to be submitted
by its branches; we have visited 52 branches for the purpose of our audit,

3, Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repart that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the infermation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

by Inour opinicn, puoper books of account s required by law have been kept by the Bank so fai
a5 it appears from our examination of those books;
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{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proflt and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are In agreement with the books of account;

(dy In our opinion, the aforesald financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Sectlon 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules
(as amended), to the extent they are not Inconsistent with the guidelines prescribed by REI;

(e} In our opinion, there are no material financial transactions or matters that have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Bank;

(f} Onthe basls of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;

(g} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financlal statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 17 to this report;

(h} In our opinion, the entity being a banking company, the remuneration to the managing
director during the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid by the Bank in accordance with
the provisions of section 35B(1) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949; and

(i} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

8 The Bank does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at March 31, 2023- refer Schedule 12 to the financial statements;

ii. The Bank did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2023;

ili.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Bank;

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 18.35 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Bank to or in any other person(s) or entityies),
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatseever by or on behalf
of the Bank {“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Utimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 18.35 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Bank from any persom(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Bank shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Uitimate Beneficiaries; and
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c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material

misstatement.
] Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Bank.

As proviso to Rule 3({1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the

Wi,
Bank only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mumber: 101049W/E300004

éti‘lvvﬁ:‘:]\ 'vai-‘.

per Sarvesh Warty

Partner
Membership Number: 121411

UDIN: 231214 11BGWEFK2022
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: April 24, 2023
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ANMEXURE | TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMEMNTS OF FINCARE SMALL FINAMCE BANK LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fincare
small Finance Bank Limited ("the Bank™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Fimancial Controls

The Bank's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contrals
based on the internal control over financial reparting criteria established by the Bank considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate
Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent
conduct of 1ts business, including adherence to the Bank's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibiity is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note')
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143¢10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively in all material
respacts,

Our audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial contrals with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectivenass. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financlal controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a materlal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We beliave that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company’s Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financlal statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaln to the malntenance of recerds that, in reasonable

80



Placement Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: June 15, 2023 For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the banlk; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the bank are being made only in accerdance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the bank's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of Intermal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periads are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deterlorate.

Opinion

In owr opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, adequate Internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

For 5.R. Batliboi & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Mumber: 101048W/E300004

vk Tads .

par Sarvesh Warty
Partner
Membership Number: 121411

UDIN: 23121411 BGWEFK2022

Place of Slgnature: Bengaluru
Date: April 24, 2023
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023

1 Overview

Pursuant to the resolution passed by e sharehokders A the Extra-Drdnary General Mesting held on 19 May 2017 and the
Issue of small finance bank Icense by the Reserve Sank of India (REI") an 12 May 2017, Disha Mictofin Limited ("the
Campany') commenced its operatons as & small inance bank wih effect from 21 July 2017, Accerdingly, the name of the
Company was changed to Fincare Small Finance Bark Limited ("the Bank”). The Bank is a Banking Company goveenad by
the Banking Reguiaton Act. 1949,

The Bark has bean accorded the Schoduled Bank status by Reserve Bari of india vide Nobification No. DBRNBD. (SFB-
Fincare). No.8 1401 &/13.276/2018-15 dated 28 March 2019 and pubishod in fhe Gazette of indix on 13 Apell 2018,

The Bank's operation incudes ratall and wholegsle ua«m;mm These acthsties primanly include micro finance landing
activities to provide financlal 2 o of k “Muodcqwfumorganmnjon
ltabilty groups {'R.G'), with a wew of @nh of their Ivathoods in a fi iaby viable imarily in the rural
areas of India, Furthar, the Bank 5 engaged i providing dal wb"ﬂL lnmmemoneybmmem
Mha household incoma through loan against property. In addition, mamaﬁm:mhupmm mcluﬁnnlmlllmiwl
finance, gakd oan, two wheeler loans, atfordable housing leans and overdraft facilty against fixed d f prop The
Bank operates across various states and union territories of India.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 {i) Basis of preparation of i 8l ot i

The financial statements have teen prepared in accordance with requirements prascribed undar the Third Schadule of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1945, mmmuagmdmoom\gpohduotmalmwdmm,. paration of these fi |
statements conform to Generally Accepted A ing Principles in India (Indian GAAR), the circulars and guidetines |asusd
by Reserve Bank of India (R21) from time to time and %he Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companes
Ak, 2013 read with Comgpanies {Accounts) Rules, 2014{ &s amended ) 1o the exlen spplcable and praciices generally
prevalant in the banking industry in india. The Bank follows the histarical coet convenlion and accrual methad of accounting,
axcept otherwise stated, The accounting palicias adopied In the presertation of financial statement are consistent with those
followed in the previous year.

2.1 () mpact of COVID 18

Tha COVID-19 pa ic affected the workd y over the laat 2 to 3 years, b he op have now

10 normaley. The Bank continues So monftor and ass2es the impact of the pandamic on £5 operations and financials fmchidng
mped oh provision for losn portfolio), mmdmmmmdmaowmmmmom‘. mdhs.ummgm
things, any new Infarmation conceering the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, g el and and
he Banks responses thereto, Nlnfmﬂmwmmumﬂnmummhmbun omﬁdmdand adequately
deal with in praparation and p ion of these fnandal results.

2.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of financlal stalements iIn conformity with Indan GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Sablitics and the dsclosure of contingent Tabiities ol the dale
ol the finanaal mu and the results of operatons duting the reporting periods. Although these eslimales ams based

's best knowlodge of cumrent events and actions, actual resuits coudd differ from those eslimabes.
S-gdﬂmuﬁnmsuedhylhn = in the p lon of hese financial stalements indude essmates of the
econaomic uzeful lives of fixed assets, defored tax, accrual for employae benelits and provision for standard and non-
ueﬂormhg agsets. Differerice between the actual results and estimates are recognised in e pariod In which the results are

Jized. Any revision o sccounling estimatas is racognised prospecively in e current snd fulure panods.

2.3 Revenue recognition

(i i onlm:l: gni *hlhvMammmlmlmlwnp‘w'nmmoolmuuper
the i on performi uuls grizad only whan realegad. Any such income recognisad
before the asset b rlorming and v unreslized as on the date of being classified as non-parfoming

asset 8 revensed, as per lhe income m:onnmon and asae( cassification noms of RS,
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023

2.3 Revenue recognltion (Cont'd)
(4) Interest on dscounted nEtnaments s recognisad ovar e tenure of e Instrument on & constant Yield to Masunty mathod,

0il} Frocessing feesluptront fee, handing charges of simlar charges coliacted at te time of sanchioning or ranewst of
LeanvTacility s recognised at the Incegtonirenewal of loan

() The fees chargad on cabit card issuance is racogrised on an upfront basis

(V] The Bark enters nlo transactions for the sale of Priorty Secler Landing Cerfficates (PSLCs). In ¥he case of sale
vansaction, the Bank selis the priceity sector cbiligation through the RBI trading plavorm. There i no transfer of Neks of
loan assels, The fee received fof tha sale of PSLCs is gnised under M Income willvn Other Income on &
siraight-ine basis over e tenure af the certilicate.

(i) Inerast income on deposils with banks and finsnclal instkulions is recognisad on s time praportion accrusl basis Laking
into 1 the o ding and the rate spplicable,
(vii} Dividend Income is recognisad when the nght to recelve payment is estabished on the balance sheet dals,

(viil) Otner fows and commission inceme (incuding commisslen ncoma on 1hird party products) are recognize when due,
except n cases where the bark s uncertain of Ulimate cofection,

2.4 Advances
Classification

Advances are classified into performing snd non-peforming advances (NPA') based on the RBI guidelines snd sre stated
net of specific provisions made lowards NPAs. Further, NPAs are classfisd inlo sub-standard, doubtful and loss aasels
basad on NPA classification and provisioning policy of the Bank, subject (o e minmum ciassification and proviaioning level
prescribed by the RBI under the Income Recogniticn and Astat Classiication ('IRAC') norms.

As per IRAC norms prescrived by RBL a loan or an advancs is classifiad as NPA where, the interest andior instalment of
peinciple remains overdue for 8 perod of mors then B0 days in respect of 8 term loan of the account ramaing “out of onrder”
In respect of an overdrafiicash credit (ODICC) faclity,

“Overdue” refers to nteraat and | o inalalment remairing urpaid from the day i became receivable.

In casa of micro-finance loans, rural micro e loams, loan Inst goid, twa wh boares, stall loans and CASA
accounts with dabit balances, NPAs are classified ss sub-standard and doubiid assats 88 per RSI guidelines,

I case of secured institlulicnal finance &nd secured averdrafl aganst property, NPAs ars classified a5 sub-standand and
doubtul assets as per RBI guidelines,

In es28 of loan against property with registered mortgage and secured affordable housing loans, NPAs are classified ss
sub-standand and doubtiul sssets as per RBI guidelines.

Loss Assels

A loss assel Is one where loss has been identified by the Bank but the amownt has not been writen off wholly. In other
words, such sn sssel i considered uncallectable ond of such lifthe value that #5 continuance as a Bankable aszet is not
wamranted alihough there may be soma salvage of recovery vakse. All assats imvohing frauds would ganerally be treated as

loes assets.

Provisioning

Generyl provasion for slandard assets made in accordonce with RBI Guidelines is included under “Other Liabillies &
Provisionz-Others®,

Further, provision for subw-standard, doubtful and loss assels b case afl loan porticlio are provided bassd on NPA
classification and provizioning policy of the Bank, subject to P ing level p ibad by RBI under IRAC
notms.

Loan loes provisions in respect of NPAs are charged o the Proft anc Loss Account and inchided under Provisions and
Contingencias,

NPAs which have been fully provided for, are writtan off, based on management estimate and as per the NPA Provisoning
and Writs off Policy of the Bank.

Recovefies from bad detils wllen-off are recogrized in the Profit and Loss Accounl and induded under Provision and
contingency under schadule 18,15,
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedule 17 - Significant accounting pelicies forming part of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 Mareh 2023

2.4 Advances [Cont'd}
Prowision policy for securitised loans

Provision for losses arising in respect of securitisaticnfassignment af micro fnance partfolio loan is made in accordance with
Ihe provisioning policy for micro fmance cwm portiolin and in case of securiized portfalio of loan against propertyrural loan
againsi property |oans, i s made in accordanos with the prosisioning policy for loan against propertyforal lean against
property cwm portfolio, sulbject 1o maximuem guarantee (induding cash colixierals and unfunded guaranbae] given in respect
of these amangemenis.

2.5 Inter-bank participation exrtifieats (1BPCY

Thig Bank enters inta inter-park parlicipation with risk sharng as Issuing bank and In socordance with the RBI guidelines,
I aggregata amaurd of such paticipason s reduced fram aggregale advance cutsianding.

2.6 Investments
Classification
In accordance with e RE| guidelines on imeesiment classification and valuation, investmenls ase classifisd on the dale

of purchase into "Held for Trading® (HFT')L "Available for Sale® ['AFS) and "Held to Maturly® (HTM) calsgories
therainafer cabed ‘calegaries’

Sibsedient shifling &nmongsl the calegones is dane in accordance with the RB| guidelines. Under aach of Fiage cabsjoies,
invesiments ara furlther dossified under six groups {hersinafter caled ‘goups’) -

(&) Goviernirsant Securiies, (b) Other Approved Seowilies, (o) Shares, (d) Debanlores and Bonds, (2) Imasimenls in
Subsidiares!lainl Veriwes and {f} Char Investments.

Purchass and sale transactions in respect of all seourilies are recorded under “Setiiement Date’ of accounling,
Basis of classification
Irreesimants that are held principaly for resale within 80 days from the date of purchase are dassified under HFT categony.

Irvestiments which the Bank intends 1o hold 10 masurty are clessified 85 HTM sacufies, Imasiments which ane ot
classified in aither of tha abowa categories mme dessifind undar AFS catagory.

Acguisifion cast

Brokerage, commission and broken penod imerest on debes Instnements ane recognised in the Prafit and Less Account
wnd @re not inchuded it cest of scquisBan,

Dgposed of Nvesimenis

Profitioss on sale of investments under the aloresaid three calegories i recagnised in the Profit and Loss Account, Cost
of iwestments |s based on the welghied average cost method, The profl from sale of investneent under HTM category, nat
of taxas and rarster to statubony resanse, & Bppropriated fom te Froft and Loss Account to Gapial Reserde in accordance
with thie REI Guidelines,

Valuafian
Irreasiments clasaified undar AFS and HFT categonies are marked o mdarkel g par the RBI guidelines.

Traded investmaents afe valied based of The iades | guotas o the Fecognibed Mok exchanges, pics 15l of RB1 o D
daclared by Primary Deslers Assaciation af India (FDAF) joinlly with Fixed Income Money Market snd Darvetivas
Assoiation (FIMMOAWFinancal Bendmark dia Private Limited (FIBLY, paricdicaly,

The market valse of unguoted povemment securities which quallly for setermining the Saluiory Ligudty Rato (SLR,
Inciudad In the AFS and HFT calagaries, s corgubed as par the Yied-lo-aturily (Y TR} ratea published by FIMMDATFIBL.

The vaksalion ol Non-SLR securilies, ofhedban hose guatsd on he slock exchange, wherevar el 1o yiskd fo Maturity [YTM)
rabes, shall be with a mark-up {reflecting associabad crad? risk) aver the YT rates for povernmant secunties pu out by
FIMMDAFEIL,

Units of marhest funets are veluad & the latest repurchase price { net assal value decansd by The mutual fund,
Traasuny bils, commancial papars ard cerificabs of deposils beng dacounied inatrunsants, are valued at Camyng coal

Securilies are valled sip wise and depreciation'appreciation aggregaled for each group.Mel apprecialion in each group
By, balng unrealzed, is ignoced, whike ret depreciation is provided fer,
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2.6 investments (Cont'd)

Invesiments classified under HTM calegary sre carnied at thar acquisiton cost and rot marked to markes. Ay premium
on aoquisition is amaread over the remaining maturity peciod of the security on 8 constont yiold-to-maturty basis. Such
amoetisalion of pramium s adjusted against interest incoms under the head Income from Irvestments as par the RSl
guidellm

N Ingi are identified and deorecistion ( provision are made hiereon based on the REI guidelines, Any
dmlmdcn oﬂmlhonlummy in the vadue of such securfties is provided for. mmmcwnmawmmmmm
performing invesimearts are nol s1 off againel the sppreciation in respect of other part g on non-
perferming investmeants i nol recogricad in the Profit and Loes Account until recelved

2.7 Repo Reverse Repo transactions

Iu ncwmancevm.h the: RBI guidelines qu md Reverse Repo transactions in government securilion ore refecied ss
! @ Cost on repo lransacton is socountad for 85 interest expense
-‘dmmmmmon ‘loras

2.8 Investment Fluctuation Reserve {“IFR™)
With a view 1o budlding up of scequaie reserve to protect against Increase in ylekds, REI through circuler no. RBU2017-
18147 BER No 82 HC 102/71.04 048/2017-18 dated 02 Aprl 2018, advised all banks to create an IFR wilh elfect from
the FY 2018-19,
Amount transfemad to IFR 5 not less than lower of the following:
1) net profit on sale of vestmants durng tha year. ar

(i) net profit for the year lees mandatory appropriation, unil the amount of IFR & at least 2% of the HFT and AFS
portfodlo, on 8 contening bssie

The amoeunt is drawn down from IFR 58 per the guidelines prescribed by RBI

2.9 Transfer and servicing of assets

The Bank fers loans through secusitization'di t i The ferred loans are de-recognised
mhmm-mm:mmnm&nmcmuhm dertying securitized/d gnmant lcan coniract,

Cash profit ariging at the lime of securitisation/assignment of ban porffolio (Premium losn tar tiong) s
amortised over the lie of e underlying loan portfolo and the is discloeed 8s Deferrad within

'Other kabifies’ on the balance sheel

Contractual rights 1o receive a portion of interest (Unrealised profits’) arising =t the fime of sacuritisstion’ assignment of
leaan portfolio (PAR lransacticns) is recorded st il presest value and dischosad a3 'Inlerast sinp on secuntisation!
sssignmant of lcan portiola” within ‘Other assals” on fe balance sheel. In sccordance witn RBI guidelines, !e unrealised
profits In respact of securitised’ sssigned loan portfolio that is not due for collection 18 recandad at Its present value and
dedoaad o8 'Inurest strip on securifiation/ assignmant of ban portfolio’ within "Other Jabiities” on the balance sheet.

from steip ( ! spread) 18 gnised in e profit and loss account, net of any losses, when
rodeemed In cash,

210 Fixed assets {Property, Plant and Equipment)

Fixed asssls (PPE), capitsl work-n progress are siated sl their original cost of acquisition less accumulated cepeaciation,
Cot comprises purchass prics and any altributable cost of bringing the asset 10 its working condition for its Intended use.

Al oher expenses on exsting property, plant snd equipment, induding day-to-day repair and marnisnance expendlivee
and cost of raplacing parts, are charged to the profil and loss account for the perlod durng which such expensas wre
neurred.

Advances paid towards the scquisiion of langible sssets oulslanding al each Balance Sheel date are disciosed as capital
advances under Other Assets, The cost incurred towards tanglhile assete, but not ready for thelr intandad use before aach
Balance Sheet date is dsclosed as caplal work-n-progress, If any,

Gains or losses ansing from da<ecognition of tangbile assets are ed as the dife tha net dispasal
proceeds and the carying amount of !e assel and are 1ecogn(zed In the Prafit and Loss Account when the asset s
SRmgognzed
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241 Imtangible asssts

Mn imangible is recagnized anly when S coat can be measuned reably and it s probabils that the expected future ecanomic
benefils thal are atiributable fo il will New ko the bank. Intangible assets acquined separataly are measurnd on e inksl
recognition al cosk The cost of an intangible assels comprises it purchase price Includng after decuciing trade discounis
and rebates, any direclly atirbulable cost of beinging the iben to ila working condition for ks Intended wea follosing initial
recagnition, Intangible sssels are camied al cosl less any accumulated amori@ation and any accumulated impairmant
lobsas, IMargile aseels are amamzed over thair estimabed uashl lves an A straight-ine basis, commencing from the
dabe the Basel (& available to the Sank for B wea, Intangible Bssets Include compuler software, which s acquired,
capilaized and amortized on a slraigh-line basis aver tha eatimalad usai lile.

2.12 Depreciation and amostization

Dreprecialion on Fieed nssets is calculatsd on a straightdine basis using the rales arfved al based an the wedul lives
estimaied by ihe managemant. The Bank has used the following rales o provide depreciaion on ils langible assels:

Tanglble asset description B Ueaful life -
Ot aguipmenl 5 yoars
Compuber egquipmant 3 yeais
Furnilura and Toduras 10 years
Leasshold improvemsanis Cver lhe paricd of lease

Intanghle asscts are amortised, on a straight lne basis, commencing from the date the ssset is ovoilobis for ils e, over
theair s pective individisal astimated usahl lives as estimated by the management:

 Intangible assel description Useful life
Compiner soltaars ' A ypars

Depreciation | amorisation is charged on a proporionate basis for all assets purchased and soid during ®ie period.

243 Impairment of assels

The Bank aseesses 81 each reporting date whathaer thana ks an indicstion that an asset may be mpasnd, I any indication
wiats, te Bank eslimaies Te assal's mooverabie amount, An asset's recoverable amourd is the higher of an asset’s ar
cacsh-ganegating unit's (CGU) nat seling price and s value inuse, The recoverabiie amount is detarmined far an individual
apmp], unbess i asset docs nol generale: cash infipws that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assats. Whare tha camyng emount of an assel or CGU exceeds &5 recovereble amount, the asssl is considered
impaired and is written dowan io s recoversbls amound. In assessing value in use, the eslimated fture cash ows are
dscounted to their present value using a prestax dscount rate thal refiects cument markel assessmeanls of the time value
of monay and the risks specific o the asset. In delesmining net selling prics, recant markel ransaclions ane taken inbo
acoaurd, if avalabla, If no such rarsactions can be dentified, an appropriale valuation modal &= usad

Impairmeanl losses of continuing operalions are recognised in the prodt and loss accounl. Aler impairmant, depreciation
is provided an the revised camying amaount of the sl over ils remaining useful ife,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as fo whether fiere is any indicalion that previoialy recagiised impairment
lowses may mo langer axis! of may have deceased. IT such indicalion exists, (he bank astimsatas the aasets of cash-
geraraling unil's recowerabls amount. A previcusty recognized impairment loas B reversed anly I thare has bean a
change in the assumpBons wsed 1o delerming fe 3s3es recoverabls amounrt sinGs The last impalmmant loss was
recognised, The meverzal i Bribed a0 1hal tha carying amounl of e sasal dobs nol sassd it reowarable amount, nor
axceed the camying amount that would have been determined, net of depresiation, had no impairment loss been
repaqrised for the sssel in pror yean.

.14 Employes benefils

Expenses and lisbfilies in respect of employes benefits ame reconded in scoondance with Accounting Standard 15
Eanafils,
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2.14 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

The Bank contributes to the statulory o MUMRMFMHFWC Wi, n i with
the Emplayees’ Providant Fund md Mizosls johe Act, 1852, The plan is & defined contribution plan ard
contributon paid or paysble is d 83 an in tha period in which services are rendered by the employee.
Gratuity

%Wlslmtmlwmmnrdls-mwnaw The liability recognisad in the Balance Sheet
represents tha present value of the cefined benefit cbig: at the Bal Sheet date less the fair value of plan assels
(f any), together with ary 4or unrecogni rial gans of losses and past serice cosis. Any 85561 resulling

from this calculaion is fmited |0 past service cost, plus the present value of avalable refunds s reductions In fulee
contributions ta the plan. Independent achuaries using he Projected unit credit method calculats the defnad banefit
obligabon annually.

Actuarial galrs or losses arising from and ges i actuanal sssurgbons are credited or
chargod to the Profit and Less Account in the yurnwhthwchgm or losses arses.

Compensated absences

Labiity n respect of P abasnces b g due of expected to ba avadled within one yaar from the balance
sheet date Is recognised on the basis of ur wed vake of < amount required to be paid or eslimaled value
of banafit expected to be avalled by the amploy Liabdity/Asset i respect of eamed leave becoming due of expacted
% be avalled more than one year after 1ie belance shee! 0ale I1s estmated on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the
balance sheet date.

Othar short-tarm benefits

Expensa n respect of ofmer shor-tarm bensfits smckidi I 5 gnised cn the basis of amount pald

mpamrummmmmmmmmwmmm
Other jong-term empioyee benefits- Deferred cash varlable pay

As per palcy, A minimum of 60% of Tatal Variable Pay shall be under deferral arangement. At lesst 50% of the Cash
camponent of Variable Pay shall be under deferment. Also, n case Cash Varioble Pay o 3 performancs peciod is below
Ru.25 |akhs, deferral may not be applicable. The NRC shall tske a dedsion on the veatmant of the defarral on an annuat
basis, The delatral period shall be for three years from the and of performance period. The defars! shall be an a peo-
rata basis i.e. 13¢d of deferred compenent and shall vast st the end of each year for the next three years, Vasting shall
lake place on o yearly basis sfler n proper ssseesment of paformance by he NRC and adiusimants can be made hasad
on gclual results, For varlable pay pertsining to Finencial Yesr 2022-23, wil be paid in Financial Year 2022-24, 100% of
non-cash verable pay and S0% of cash pay was undar defaral. Tha deferred cash varable pay has been recognisad as
sabiity at presant value of the desined benefit obigation at the balance sheet dale, as required by AS-15 on Employee
benafits. Tha prasent vakie has baen o inad using actuaral valuation after fartorng in assumpticns of attriton and
Giscounting.

2.15 Employee Share Based Payments
Equity-settied schome:

The Employees Steck Option Scheme (the Schame) provides for grant of options on Uve Bark's equity shares o
employees and Managing Direcler of the Bank. The Schame provites that empioyses may be granted an opticn 1o
subscribe 1o equily shares of ma Bank mu shall vest as per lhe veuhq schedule determined by Nomination and
Reamuneration Commilles, The op 0, may be Gaad within 3 spedified padod, n accordance with the
Guidance Note on Accourting lu Employoe Shafe-oned naymarn. tzsued by The kstitute of Charterad Accountants of
Indis, e cost of aguity settled trar has been r d using fhe far vaiue mathod, Datads regarding the
oemnmoﬂlmmlrvnmeoﬂhem are set out in Schadue 13.2%. The fak value of the opions determined as at
tha orant dats s gxp don a Mwl’mmnngpnmnosodmmamneﬁnmdnqu!y
Instruments thal wit eventually vest, mb a conesoondng cradit to Employ ding account. The
Impact of tha revision of the orginal astimates, If &y, umcognhﬂdlnwwubﬁswmtmmnmmm
raflects e revised estimate, with a cormesponding adjussment to the Employee stock op '
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2.15 Employee Share Based Payments |Cont'd)

The aplicns that do nod vest bacause of falure o satdsfy vesting condilion are reversed by 8 credil o employes
compensation expense in *Payment to and provision for emplayee®, squal io the amarized poriion of the cost of lapeed
option. In respect of the onlions which expine unexercised the batance slanding 1o the cradil of Employes shock options
auistanding account is ransfered fo Geneval Reserve.

.16 Taxes an Beoma

Tax gxpanss comprises cument and dederred tax, Gumenl income-tax is measunred &l the amount enpected lo be paid o
fhis 182 authorities in accondance with the Incoma-1ae Act, 1561 enacted in India.

Dreberrrad incorme laxes reflect i impact of liming differances batween 1axabbs mooms and accounting inoome onginating
during the cumant year &nd reversal of timing differences af the eerier yeams, Dedermed tax is measwred based on the tax
ratas and the b laws enaced o substantively enacied &s o the reporting date,

Datarrad bax iabilities sne recogqnized for all taesinle bming diferences, Defered tax assois amn recopnized for deductible
lirni g ciffarancas anky 1 ha atord hat here is reasonable atainty that suff clant fulre taxable income will be available
against which such defemed tax asseis can ba realized. In siuafons whera the Bank has unabsorbed depreciation or
canry loraarnd tax losases, all defarmed tax aseals are moognized only i there |s virual certainty supparted by convinoing
evidenca that ey can be realzed sgainst fulure 1axabie profits,

AL sach reporing date, the Bank re-sasessss unrecognized defermad tax assats, I recognizes unmeognized defamed tax
sas6t b0 e extent that it has become reasonably cenaln or vidually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future
tamable income will b avallable sgalnst which such daferred tax assets can be realized

Thia carrying amount of delermed Lo pasets ane revieasd at each reporting date. The Bank writes-down the carmying
amount of datermad tax assed o tha sebenl $hat it is no longer reascnably cartain or virually carlain, as the case may be,
et sulficient Mulure taxable income will be avallable agains! which defermed tae asset can be realized. Ary such write-
dawn |8 reversad 1o the axtent thet 8 becomas reasonably cartain or wirually certain, as e case may be, thal sufficient
furlure Beable ncoma will be avallable.

Dafeared tax assats and defarmad ta llablies are aftset, i a legally enforceable right exlsts o seloff corrent o assels
against cysrent tax Iabilties and the defared fax assets and deferred 1ems relate o the same laxable enfity and the
same laxaton authority,

24T Fereign currency ransactions
Ininial racognition

Foreign currancy transactions are recorded in the reparting curmency, by spplying to the forsign curency amaunt the
axchange raia batwaen the reporing curency and the foraign surmency at the date of e fransaction,

Comvaraion

Foreign currency monetary bams am repared using the closing rale as &l the Balancs Sheet date, Non-monalary ems
which are carmiad in berms of kistanical cast deramingied in a foreign curmancy are reporied wsing the cachange rate at
the data of tha ranasttian,

Exchenge diferences

Exchange differencas arsing on the satilement of manetary iems or on reporiing Bank's monetary Bams &t rates diffarent
frofm those &1 which they ware inlialy recorded during the vear, of repomed I previces firanciol stabements, ane
reogrisad 8 iNGOME oF 88 EXPEnsas in the year in which hay arse. Non- monalary Bams which ane moasuned at fair
value of olber sirilar valie denominated in forsgn curency are ranslabed using the exchange rates at the date when
such vakie is delermined

218 Provisions and conlingent labiliies

A provision is recognised when an enlerpaiss has & pressnt obligalion a5 6 result of & past event and i is probablo that
an culllow of resounces will be raguired o sellls (ha cbligation and in respect of which B rellabile esimate can ba mada,
Provigions ane nol disccunled to thair presant value and are datesmined basad on basl eslimates required 1o sette the
chligalion al th balancs sheel date, Thess @ reviewed ai each balance sheed date and adusied to reflect the ourment
baEl esimabas,

& corgmgent Baldily 18 8 possible chligation that Arses from pasl events whose exisionca will be confimed by the
OCCUITENSA O NON-JCCUMence of ane of more uncertain fubsre events beyand the contral of the Bank or & press=nl
wglifigation thal is not recogrised becausae it & not probablle that an outfiow of resources will be requirsd o sstlle the
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2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities { Cont'd)
A contingent ksbilly sleo arises in exremely rare cases whare thers is a lability ?at cannct be recognised betause it
cannol ba measured raliably, Tha Bank does not recognize a contngent kablity bul discloses s existence i the fnancial
siatements,

Conlingers assels are nol recognized in tha financial siatement,

2.19 Borrowling costs
Barrowing casts that are to the andlor tion of qualifying assals aee capitalised s paet of
the cmloi such assets, in uwinncc with Accounting Standard (AS) 16, Borrowing Costs. A qualfying assat Ia ona that
y takes a § period of time 1o get raady for its nlended uge, All oher borowing costs ae charged to

hcpmﬁandhnsxmnuirwwnd.

2.20 Eamings per share

Bask eamngs per share & caloulated by dlviding the net peohit or loss for the period atiributable to squily sh 3]
{a%er deducing altributabie taxes) oy the weightod average number of equity shares cutstanding during Te yeer. The
waighted sverage number of aquity shares outstanding during the yoar iz adjusted for events of borus Es0e; bonus
alement In a nghts Issus 1o exsting sharchaklers; share spit; and reverse share split {consolidation of sharas),

For the purp of g diluted Ings per share, the nat prafit or loss for the paroed stirbutaie 1o equity
sharehoiders and the weighied average number of shares oulstanding during the pariod are adjusied for the effects of s
dikitve potantial aquity shares.

2.21 Transaction cost
Transaclion cosls (including loan orgination costs) am Incremantal costs that are directly atirbutable to the acquisition of
finenciat isbiities, T cost fees paid 10 advi and levies by reguistory agencies, inchuding taxes and

duties, Transaction cosls Inclered towards:

i, ROC fees paid to mcrease the authorized shaee capltal Is expensed to the profit and loss account.
. Acquesition of borrowings s expensed fo the peofit and loss account in e year in which thay are Incured,

2.22 Leases
Operafing loases
Lenes vmero the fessar nlkclhnly fetaine subslaninu all the ricks and benefils of ownership of the leased tem, am
d a5 op: g leuses, p lease are gnised 88 an expense in Me Proft and Loss Account

m-mahllmbmuvcr"nhuscmﬁe loduncefiod)

2.23 Cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivalants for the purposes of cash flow statoment comprises of cash in hand, balances win RBY,
balances with other tanks,

2.24 Segmont reporting

The disciosure releting to segment information 5 In accordance with AS-17, Segment Reporting and as per guidelines
ssued by RB1,

Business segments have been identified and reportad taking Into account, the customer peofile, the nalure of products
and sevices, the difering risks and retums, fie arganisation struclure and Bie guidaines presaibed by RBI. The Sank
operates in e following segments:

8) Tressury
Tha trasswy segment primsaeily Ists of andra | t porticlio of the Bank.
CorporsteVholesale banking

Wholesale banking nciudee ab advances to companies and statutory bodies, which are not included Under Retal
vanking,
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2.24 Segmant raponting [Cont'd}
@) Fslail banking includes
() Digital Barking includes aur 101 product and digital ranches

1.101 Product is a digilal product where anboarding of custamers 1o any prodict o Senvice delivary 1o cusiomens ane
pesformed digitally there is no human inlervention on any of the process cycle in 101 product,

2. Digital Branches are fnose branches whers all the brandn related activity like opening of customer account o amy
cther bank branch aclivity are parformed by Machine withoul and ary human inlersaniion.

Wige Its giroular deted Aprl 7, 2022, on establishment of Dighal Banking Units {DBUs), the RBI has prescribed
reporing of Digital Barking Segment as a sub-sogment of Retal Banking Sagment. During the year anded March 31
23, the Bank has commenced operation at two DBUs and has identied one product bype of deposils calegony asa
Digital Banking Product.

{6} The relall banking segmeent cthers - serves refall customess through the branch netwark jother shan DELU),
" Exposures are o Assified undar ralall banking taking into account the siafus of the bormower (orentation crlerion), the
rarhure of produwct, granulanty of the expasure and the guansum thereof, Revenues of the relail banking segment are
primarily derived from interes! and fees aarned an relail loans, interest on deposils placed as collabersl with banks and
financial irsfutions. Expenses of this segment primarily comprise intsres! espens= on borrowings, deposits,
infrasfructure and premises axpenses for operating the branch nebwork, personned costs and ofher direcl overhaads.

d) Other banking operatons

Daner Bardng apamtions includes all other banking operatons nat coversd under Treasury’, Winclesals Banking' and
‘Ratail Banking' segmants. |t also include all ather msidual cperations such as para banking ransactions! aclivitbes.

Einca the business oparations of the Bank are primarily concentrated in Indla, the Bank Is considered 1o operate anly
in the domastic segman,

2,75, Bhary lesue Expanses

Share lsams axperses ofher than ROC fess paid o incraase fe aulhodzed share capilal am adusted from Securties
premium aceount as pemited by secion 52 of Companies Acl 2013
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 29 Senapafl Sapat Marg
Chartered Acooantsrts '-1JT‘5E-| - 400 023, Indla

Tel: +91 22 6519 E0D0

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Fincare Small Fimance Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited (“the
Bank'), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the 5tatement of Profit and Loss
and the Cash Flow 5tatement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
imcluding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinien and to the best of gur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as
well as the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act™) and circulars and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of
India {REBI} in the manner so reguired by banking companies and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the applicable accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™)} read with Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014 {(as amended) and other accounting
principles generally accepted im India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2022, its
profit after tax and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{SAs), as specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the "Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 2.1} of Schedule 17 to the financial statements, which describes the
extent to which Covid-19 pandemic that continues to impact the Bank's operations and its financial
metrics including provisions which are dependent on uncertain future developments.

Owr opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our proefessional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming ouwr
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how gur audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
im our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. including in relation to these matters.
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Accordingly. our audit imcluded the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters | How owr audit addressed the key audit matter

Identification of Mon-performing advances and provisioning of advances: [refer note 2.4 of
Schedule 17 and note 18.4 and 18.15 to the financial statements]

Advances constitute a significant
portion of the Bank’s assets and the
guality of these advances is measured
in terms of ratio of Mon-Performing
Advances {"NPA") to the gross
advances of the Bank. As at 31 March
2022, the Gross Advances of the Bank
was Rs. T339_T6 crores, Gross NPA of
the Bank was Rs 573.23 crores and
Gross MPA ratio of the Bank was 7. 79%%.

The Reserve Bank of India's ("RBI™")
guidelines on Income recognition and
asset classification and provisioning
pertaining to advances dated October 1,
202 1" IRALC™) prescribes the prudential
norms for identification and
classification of NPAs and the minimum
provision required for such assets
including restructuring. Also, Resolution
Framework for Covid-19 related Stress
dated August &, 2020 (“Covid 1.0
framework™) and Resclution
Framework-2.0: Resolution of Cowid-19
related stress of individuals and Small
Business ("Covid 2.0 framework™)
prescribes the prudential morms for
identification and provisioning of
restructured cases due to Covid-19.

Given the volume and variety of loans,
judgement is involved in the application
of RBI Regulations for classification of
loans as MPA. In view of the significance
of this area to the owverall audit of
fimamcial statements, it has been
considered as a key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, among others the

following:

# Considered the Bank's policies for NPA
identification and provisioning in assessing
compliance with the IRAC, COVID 1.0
framework and COVID 2.0 framework
{collectively, "RBI Regulations™)

- Obtained an understanding and performed
walk through of key processes controls around
identification of NPAs, classification and
provisioning

+ Evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls {including
applicatien controls) around identification of
MPAs, classification of loans in the respective
asset classes viz_, standard, sub-standard,
doubtful and loss with reference to RBI
Regulations.

« Performed account statement reviews on
sample basis for account slippages and
upgrades and
identified customer accounts availing more
than one loan from the Bank and test checked
that all loans availed by a delinguent customer
are classified appropriately.

* Performed analytical procedures on various
financial and non-financial parameters to test
the completeness of accounts identified as
MPA

&  Performed test of details to test on
provisioning rates applied for respective asset
classes in lines with the Bank's policies

#  Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of provision for advances.

« Assessed disclosures included in the financial
statements in respect of asset classifications
and pravisioning, including specific disclosures
made with regard to impact of COVID-19
pandemic and related RBl Regulations

&  Tested on a sample basis that the
restructuring of loans dene during the year
under the resclution framework was approved
and implemented and provisions made on such
restructured leans in accordance with the
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Bank’s Board approved policy and the
Resolution Framewark

=  Obtained the management analysis for the
additional provision created durimg the year
owing to the potential impact of COVID-12 and
evaluated the management estimates and
assumptions used considering our
understanding of the risk profiles of the
customer of the Bank.

Information Technology ("IT') Systems and Controls

The reliability and secuwrity of IT Qwr audit procedures included the following:
systems plays a key role in the business | «  For testing the IT general controls, application
operations of the Bank. Since large controls and IT dependent manual controls
volume of tramsactions are processed relevant for financial reporting, we included IT
daily, the IT controls are required to specialists as part of the audit team. The IT
ensure that applications process data as specialists also assisted in testing of the
expected and that changes made to information produced by the Bank's IT systems.
applications are made in an appropriate | «  Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
manner. These systems also play a key the Bank's IT access contrals over the
role in the financial accounting and infermation systems that are critical to financial
reporting process of the Bank. reporting.

# Tested other IT general controls (changes

. B management and aspects of [T operational
Owr areas of audit focus included user controls).

access management, developer access
to the production environment and
changes to the IT environment across
applications, networks, databases and
operating systems as these are key to
ensuring IT dependent and application-
based controls are operating

* Inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate  approaval and authorization.
Further, considered the control environment
relating to various interfaces, configuration and
other application controls identified as key to
our audit.

+ Tested the design and operating effectiveness of

effectively. certain  automated controls that were
considered as key intermal controls over

Due to the pervasive nature and financial reporting.

complexity of the IT environment, we # [nstances where deficiencies were identified,

have ascertained IT systems and tested compensatimg controls or performed

contraols as a key audit matter. alternate procedures.

Infermation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other informaticn
comprises the information included in the Annual repert including the Pillar 1l Disclosure under the
Mew Capital Adequacy Framework {Basel |l disclosures) but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In conmection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such cther information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
reguired to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
paosition, fimancial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies {Accounts)Rules,
2014 (as amended), the relevant provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1249, the circulars,
guidelines and directions issued by REI from time to time ("RBI Guidelines™} and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going comcern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thosze Beard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud er error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is mot a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements cam arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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= Obtain an wnderstanding of internal controd relevant to the audit in order to design auwdit
precedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has adeguate internal
fimancial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

*  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up ta the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank
to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Ewvaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in 3 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during owr audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we hawve complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Fram the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2021, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements on June 14,2021,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Balance sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash flow Statement for the year ended
March 31, 2022, have been drawn up in accordance with the applicable accounting standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) read with Companies
{Accounts)Rules, 2014 {as amended), the relevant provisions of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, the circulars, guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India (REI) from
time to time ("RBI Guidelines™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India

2. As required by sub section (3) of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report
that:
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a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be
satisfactory;

b} The transactions of the Bank, which have come to ouwr notice, have been within the powers
of the Bank; and

c} The financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralized and therefore, accounting
returns for the purpose of preparing financial statements are not required to be submitted
by its branches; we have visited 39 branches for the purpose of our audit.

3. Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Bank so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{C)} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Less and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 {as amended), to the extent they are not inconsistent with the guidelines prescribed by
REI;

(&) In owr opinion, there are no material financial transactions or matters that have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Bank;

{f} Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act;

{g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 17 to this report;

{h} In cur opinion, the entity being a banking company, the remuneration to the managing
director during the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid by the Bank in accordance with
the provisions of Section 338 (1) of the Banking Regulation Act, 194%; and

(i} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in ouwr opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Bank does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at March 31, 2022;

ii. The Bank did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2022;
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w.

There were ne amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Bank.

a} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 1B8.35 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Bank to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Bank {"Utimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 18.35 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Bank from any persom{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{“"Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Bank shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Utimate Beneficiaries; and

) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that

the representations under sub-clause (a) and {b) contain any material misstatement.

Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Bank.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sarvesh Warty
Partner
Membership Mumber: 121411

UDIN: 22121411 AJQGCGT244

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 26, 2022

138



Placement Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: June 15, 2023 For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE | TO THE INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINAMCIAL
STATEMENTS OF FINCARE SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fincare
Small Finance Bank Limited ("the Bank™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote om Awdit of Internal
Fimancial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI™). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Bank's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Owr responsibility is te express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our awdit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Mote™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, tothe extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial confrols with reference te these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Owr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and ewvaluatimg the design and ocperating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinicn on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain fo the maintenance of records that. in reasonable
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detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made enly in accordance with authorisations of
management amnd directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to errer or fraud may eccur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference te financial statements to future
pericds are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our ocpinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and swuch internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
fimancial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Mote issued by the ICAL

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mumber: 101049W/E300004

per Sarvesh Warty

Partmer

Membership Mumber: 121411
UDIN: 22121411 AJQGCGT244

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 26, 2022
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Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022

1 Dwarview

Pursuant o the resolution passed by e shareholders at the Extra-Ondinary General Meeting held on 19 May 2017 and the
Issue af small finance bank license by the Reserve Bank of Indla ("RBF) on 12 May 2017, Disha Microfin Limited (“the
Company”) commenced Es operations as a small finance bank with effect fram 21 July 2017, Accordingly, the name of the
Company was changed o Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited (“the Bank™). The Bank Is 3 Banking Company govemed by
the Sanking Reguiation Act, 1948,

Tne Bank nas been accorded the Scheduled Bank siatus by Reserve Bank of Indla vide Maobfcation Mo. DBR.NBD. (SFB-
Fincare). Mo.B140A116/13.216/20156-19 dated 28 March 2019 and pullished In the Gazette of Indla on 13 Aprl 2019.

The Bank's operation Inciudes retall and wholesale banking aciivities. Thaga activitizs primarily Include mizro inance lending
activifles 1o provide financial asslsiance to women bomowers of economically weaker soclety, who are organized as joint
llaiitty groups (LG}, with a view of enhancement af thelr Ivelinoods In & financlally viable manner, primarily in the rural
areas of Indla. Further, the Bank Is engaged In providing financlal assistance to the bomowers to use the money o augment
ine nousehald Incame through loan against properly. In asdition, the Bank offers ciher products. Incluging Insélbtional
finance, gold loan, fwo wheeler loans, affordable housing loans and ovendratt faciity against fxed deposits or properties. The
Bank operates across varlous states and undon temitories of ndla.

2 Summary of glgnificant accounting policies
2.1(1) Basis of preparation of Nnanckal statements

The financial statements have been prepared In aceondance with requirements preseribed under fe Thind Schedule of the
Banking Ragulation Act, 1949, The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank used In the preparation of these financial
staftements confom o Generally Accapted Accounting Principles in India (Indlan GAAR), the clrculars and guidelines lssued
by Ragerve Bank of indla {RE1) frem fime fo tme and the Accounting Standards natiled under SecSon 133 of a Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014] as amended ) to the extent applicable and practices generally
prevalent In the banking Industry In Indka. The Bank follows the Ristorical cost convention and acerual method of accounting,
except olhersise stated . The accounting policies adopéed In the presentation of inanclal statement are consistant with those
fallowed in the previous year.

2.1(1l) Impact of COVID 13

Indla has winessed muliple waves of COVID-19 pandemie since mid-2020 leading fo signiicant volaiiify In Indlan inancial
markets and a slgnificant decrease in local economic aciiviles and India s still emerging from the COVID-18 pandemiz,
cul’l‘Eﬂ'ﬂj’, Wwhile the number of e COVID-19 cases have mﬂimml‘lﬂj’ and the Gowernment af Indla 16 Im the Process
of withdrawing COVID-19 related resticlions . the full extent of Impact of the pandemic on the Bank's operations and financial
metric (inciuding Impact an provislon for loan partfello) wil tepend on fulure developments, Including, among oiher things,
any new Informatien conceming the severity of the COVID-1% pandemlc, governmental and regulaiory measures and fhe
Bank's responses thareto, which are kghly uncertain at this Sme.

Tne Bank continues to cammy an addilonal contingency provision of ¥ 670 Iakh a5 at March 31, 2022, which Includes the
adithonal prowiksion Tor the accounts resiniciured under RBI Resoluton framework. Furlhver, during the current quarter, the
Bank had created an addiional provision of 3 4,322 lakhs.

2.2 Uss of sstimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Indlan GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that afect the repartad amounts of assets and labiities and te discasure of confingent Iabilites 3t the date
af the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting perods. Alhough these esmates are based
upan managamenrs best IHD'HIEﬂgE of current events and acons, aciual results could differ from those estimales.
Signincant estimates used by ihe management In the preparation of nese nancial siatements Include estimates of Me
acansmic useful Ives of ieed assets, defemed tax, accrual for EMPWEE pensfiRE and prm'lslun for standanrd and non-
peroming assets. Diference between the aciual resulis and esfimates are recognised In the perod n which e results are
inawnimaterialized. Amy revision to accounting estimates |s recognised prospeciively In the curment and future periods.

‘mall Finance Bahi REW#REE recognition

Saten le the liancit sistwngif= Interest Income on loans ks recognised In he Profit and Loss Account as It accrues by applying the rate of Inferest as per
P T ihe agraement. Inferas? INcome an non-perferming asset Is recognised only when realsed. Any such income recognised
siration of descsits, sdvasces, sppspape S MESNet became non-performing and remalning unrealized as on ihe date of being classtied as non-performing

dlion of depouits asse! |5 reversed, a5 per fe Income recognition and asset classication nomis of REIL
[ B om B om
21 Mawch 2 A1 Masch 2021
e daznd: TEH] BE 1
gl o dfaril b of heiSly e depeikn 15 ok depois S e Bas 17T B0

Enndian of pvances
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2.3 Revenus recognition (Conf'd)
{Il) Interest on @scounted Instrements Is recegnised owver the tenwre of the Instrument on a constant Yield o Maturity method.

(W} Processing feesiupiront fee, handing charges of similar charges colizcied at the Bme of sanctioning or renewal of
Loanfacliity s recognised at the Inceplionirenewal of loan.

(v} The fees charged on debif card ssuance Is recognised on an upfront basts [v) The Bank enters Into fransactions for the
sale of Priority Sector Lending Certficales (PSLCE). In the case of sale fransaction, the Bank sells the  prioety sectar
ebligation through e REI trading piatiarm_ TRere IS no fransfer of MiSks or 0an assass, The fee recefed far the sale of
P=LCs Is recognised under MisCellanecus Income within Gther Income on a stralght-ine basls over fhe tenure of the
cericate.

{¥lj Imterest income on Geposits with banks and Ninancial Insttutans Is recognised an 3 Bime propartion accrual basls faking
Into account the amount outstanding and fhe rate appiicabie.
{vIl) Dividend Incame |s recognised when the right io recalve payment 15 establlshed on ihe balance sheet date.

{wil} Other fees and commission Income (Including commission Income on third party products) are recognlze when due,
except In cages where the bank Is uncertaln of ulimate collection.

2.4 Advances
Classificanion

Advances are classMed Into performing and non-performing advances ('NPA') based an the REI guidelines and are stated
net of specific provisions made towards NPAS. Further, NPAS are classed Into sub-standard, doubiful and I0Es 355ESs
based on MPA ciassiication and proviskoning policy of the Bank, subject te the minimum classHication and provisioning kevel
prescribed by the RB1 under the Income Recognitian and Asset ClassMcation (IRAC') noms.

AE per IRAC narms prescribed by BN, a loan or an advance s ciassMed as MPA where, e Interest andior instalment of
pﬂm remaing owerdwe for a FEI'.:H] of mare tham 20 {Hj’E In IEB-FEBI of 3 tenm lpan ar (e account remalns “out of omser
In respect of an gverdratticash credit {DDACC) faclty.

“Owerdue” refers to Imterest and £ or Instaiment remaining unpakd from the day it becamse recalvable.

In case of micro-inance loans, rural micre entenprise loane, loan against gold, tewo wheeler lpans, s loans and CASA
accounts with debit balances, MPAS are classiNed as sub-standard and deubtul assets as per ARSI guidelines.

In case of secured Institutional finance and secured overdraft agalnst property, MPAS ane classified as sub-standard and
doubifl assets as per RAI guidelnes.

In case of Inan against property with registered mortgage and secured affordable housing loans, NPAS are cassifed a5
sub-standard and doubsul 3s5ets 35 per RBI guidelines.

Loss ASSeIs

A los6 asset Is one where k056 has been Identfled by the Bank but the amount has not been wrkten off wholly. In other
Waords, such an asse! Is considered uncollectabde and aof such Ilttke value that Its confinuance as a Bankable aseet |5 Not
warranted athougn inere may be 50Me EaVagE OF rBcovery walue. All 3s5eis Invalving rauds waulkl genarally be freated a5
055 aEelE

Provisioning

General provision for standard aszels made In accomdance with RBI Guideines |6 Included under “0Other Liabilies &
Provislons-Cthers”.

Further, provision for sub-standard, doubtful and loss asssts In case of loan portiollo are provided based on NPA
classHication and provisioning policy of the Bank, subject to minimum proviskoning kevel prescribed by RBI under IRAC
Mianmes.

Loan Inss provisions In respect of MPAS are charged fo the Profit and Loss Account and included under Pravisions and
Contingencies.

MPAS which have been fully provided for, are wiitien off, based on management estimate and a5 per the MPA Provisioning
and Write off Palicy of the Bank.

Recoveries from bad debis written-off are recognized In the ProSt and Loss Account and Included under Pravision and
contingency under schadule 18.15.
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2.4 Advances (Cont'd)
Provision poicy for securiised loans

Provwision for IXEEEE aNsing In respect of securitisatonassignment of micra finance portfallo laan is made in accordance with
the provisioning policy for micra fiNance own portiodo and In case of securizad porfalio of loan against propertyirural loan
agalns! property loans. It Is made In accordance with the provisiening policy for loan against propertyinural loan against
property own portfolie, subjectto maximum guaranies {Including cash collaterals and unfunded guarantes) given In respect
af these ATangements.

2.5 Inbar-bank participation certificate (IBPC')

The Bank enters Inta Inter-tank participation with risk sharing as Issulng bank and In accordance with the RS guidelnes,
ihe aggregate amount of such paricipation are reduced from aggreqate advance cutstanding.

2.& Investments
Classificanon

In accomance witn the RBI guiselines an Invastment classiication and valuation, Imvestments are classifed on e date
of purchase into "Held for Trading” (HFT'), “Avallable for Sale” (AFS') and "Held fo Maturky™ (HTM') categories
[hereinafter called ‘ateqonies’).

Subsequent shiting amongs: the categories Is done In accordance with the RBI guidelines. Under each of these categaries,
Investments are further classHied Unoer sIx groups (hereinafter called 'groups’) —

{3} Govemment Securities, (b) Other Approved Securflas, (¢} Shares, (d) Debentures and Bonds, (2) Investments in
SubsimariestJoint Veniures and (1) Other Investmants.

Purchase and s3le ransacbions In FEE‘]EH'BTE" securities are recorded under “Setiement Date’ mamwnmg,
Basis of elassiNeanion
Investments that are hald principally for resale within 00 days fram the date of purchase are classBed under HFT category.

Investments which the Bank Intends to hald @R maturity are classMed as HTM securities. Imvestments which are not
classMed In eiher of the above categories are classifiad under AFS category.

Acquisition cost

Brokerage, commission and broken peried Interest on debis Instruments are recognised In the Profit and Loss Account
and are nat Included In the cost of acquisiion.

Dispasa! of nvestments

Profitiiess on sdle of Investments under the aforesald three categories 15 recognised In the Proft and Loss Account. Cost
of Investments I based on the welghted average cost method. The profit trom sale of Investment under HTM category, net
0f taxes and fransfer to statutary resenve, |5 appropriated fram the Profit and Loss Account to Capital Resenve In accordance
with the RS| Guldelines.

Valvarion
Investments classMed under AFS and HFT calegories are markad to market as per the REI guidelngs.

Traded Invesiments are valued based on he trades / quotes on the recognised stock exchanges, price kst of REI or prices
deciared by Primary Dealers Association of indla (POAIY) joinby wif Feeed income Money Marist and Dervatves
Assoclation {FIMMDA'VFinancial Benchmark Indla Private Limited (FIBLY), peradically.

The market value of unguoted govemment securities which guallfy for determining the Statutory Liquidity Ratie 'SLR),
Included In the AFS and HFT categories. ks computed as per the Yield-to-Maturity ("W Th') rates published by FIMMDAFIBL.

The valuation of Non-SLR securlties, atherthan those quoted on the sinck exchange, wherever let to yieid to Maturlty [YTM)
rates, shall be wih a mark-up | refiacsing associated credlt fsk) aver the YTM rates for government securiies put out by
FIMMDAFBIL.

Uinits of mufual funds are valued at ihe latest repurchase price [ net asset value declared by the mutual funa.
Treasury bllis, commencial papers and cerfcate of deposits being discounted Instruments, are valusd at camying cost.

Securifles are valued scrip wise and depreclation/appreciation aggregated for each group.Met appreciadion In each group
I any, being unrealized, |5 ignoned, whils net depraciation Is provided far.

Investments classified under HTM category are carmied at thelr acquisiion cost and not marked to market. Any premium
on acquistion is amorised over the remalning maturty period of the Gecurity on a constant yield-io-maturty basis. Such
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2 & Investmeante [Cont'd)

amartisation of premium |5 adjusted against interest Income under fhe head Income from Investments as per the RBI
guideiines.

Non-performing Investments are ientMed and depreciation | provisian are mase thereon basad on the REI guidelines. Any
diminution, oiner han temporary, in the value of such securities Is provided for. The depreciation f provision on such non-
perfomming invesiments are not 5et off against the appreciation i respect of aiher perorming securities. Inferest on non-
perfoming investments |6 not recognised In the Profit and Loss Account untll recefved.

2.7 Repo Reverse Repo transactions

In accordance with the RBI guideines Repe and Reverse Repo transactions In govemnment securifles are refiecled as
bamwings and lending transactions respeciively. Bomowing cost on repo fransaciion Is accounted for as Interest expensa
and revenue on reverse rpo Is accounted for a5 Interest Income.

2.8 Investmeant Fluctuation Reserve [FIFR")

WIth a view to bulkling up of adequate reserve to protect against Increase In yiekds, RBI Mrough clroular na. RBIE201T-
13147 BBR.N0.5P.BC. 102:21.04.043/2017-18 dated D2 Apel 2018, advised all banks fo create an IFR. with efect from
the FY 2018-19.

Amaount iransferred to IFR Is not less than lower of the Tallowing:
{Ilj met praft on sale of Investments during the year. Or

{llj nat praft for the year kess mandatory appropriation, untll he amount of IFR Is at keast 2% of the HFT and AFS
particllo, on 3 continuing basls.

The ampunt Is drawn down from IFR a6 per the guidelines prescribed by REI.

2.5 Tranafer and ssrvicing of azsets

The Bank transfers keans through securilzationdirect assignment transactions. The transferred loans are de-recognised
whan the Bank surrenders the rights to benafits specified In the underiying securlizedidirect assignment loan cantract.

Cash profit ariging at the Sme of securfisation/assignment of loan portfollo (Premium loan transter transactions) Is
amertised over the Ife of e undertying laan porttolio and the unamartized amount Is Msciosed a6 Deferred Income wihin
“Otner lablities’ on the balance Eheet.

Contractual rights to recelve a partion of Interest (‘Unrealised profits) arising at the me of securlisation’ asslgnmant of
loan porifollo (PAR transacions) Is recorded at Me present valuz and giclosed s ‘Interest siip on securibisations
assignment of laan partisilo’ within ‘0fer assats” on the balance sheet. In accordance with RBI guidalines, the wrealised
profits In respacd of securlised’ assignad loan portiolio that Is not due for callection Is recorded at Bs presant valws and
disclosed as ‘Interest strip on securilisation’ asslgnment af loan portiolio’ within *Other lablities” on the balance sheet.
Income fram Interest sirip (excess interest spread) s racognised In the prafit and loss account, net of any lesses, when
radeemad In c3Eh,

2.10 Fixed azsafs | Properly, Plant and Equipmant)

Fheed as5ets{PPE), capial work-4n progress are stated at felr onginal cost of acquisiion less accumulated depreciation.
Cost comprises purchase price and any atfributable cost of bringing the asset to ks warking condltion for it InMended use.

Subsequent expendibure retatzd & an Hem of property, plani and equipment |5 added iz Is boak value only ¥ It Increases
ihe fulure benefis from the extsting asset beyond ks praviously assessed standard of performance. Al other expensac on
existing proparty, plant and equipment, Including day-to-gay repair and maintenance expendiiure and cost of replacing
parts, are changed to the proft and loss account for the peried during which sUch eXpenses are Incurmed.

Advances pald iowards the acquisition of anglble assets outsianding at each Balance Sheet date are disciosed as capital
advances under Oiher Assets. The cost Incumed towands fanglble assets, but nat ready for thelr Intended use befare each
Balance Sheef date Is disciosed as capial work-in-progress, ¥ any.

Galns or IosEEE ansing from de-recognifion of tangible assets are measured 35 the ofference befwesn the net disposal
proceeds and fhe carmying amount of the assef and are recognized In the Profit and Loss Account when the assst s
derecognized.
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2.11 Intangible seasis

AR Infangibie |5 recognized only whan BE cost can be measured rellably and It Is probabie that the expected future econamic
benefis that are akfoutable ta It will fiow to the bank. Intangible aEsets acquired separataly are measured on Me inikal
recagnitien at cost The cost of an Infangible assess comprises Its purchase price Inclsding afer deducting trade discounts
and rebates, any direcily atinbutable cost of bringing the tkem to fis working condition far He Inended use following Inal
recognitlon, Inanglble assets are camled at cosi lese any accumulated amorizafion and any accumulated Impalment
losses. Intangible asseis are amorized over thelr esfimated useful lives on a siraight-line basls, commencing from the
date the aseet Is avallable o the Bank for Is use. Intangible assets Include computer sofiware, which Is acquired,
capitalized and amoritzed on a stralght-ing basks over ihe estimated usesul Ise.

2.12 Depreciation and amortization

Deprecliation an Flxed assets 16 c@lculated on 8 siralght-ine basls using the rales amved at based on e ussful lives
esiimated by the management. The Bank has used ihe following rates to provide depreclation on iis tanglble asssts:

Tangible agast description Usetul |ifs
CMce equipment 5 years
EI:IITIF'IIH Equpmen‘t 3?535
Furniure and fxiues i0 years
Leasehold Improvements Ower the penad of lkase

Intanglble assets are amaortised, on a stralght line basls, commencing from the date the asset Is avallable for Its use, awer
their respective iIndividual esimated wseful lives a6 eslimated by the management

intangible assst description UaeTul |ife

Computer software 3 years

Depresiation / amoriisation is charged on a proportienate basks for all assets purchased and sald during the perind.

2.13 iImpalrment of asasts:

The Bank assesses at each reporiing date whether there Is an Indication ihat an asset may be Impakred. i any Indication
exlsts, the Bank esfmates the assets recoverable amount. An assef's recoverable amount s the higher of an aseet's or
cash-generating uni's (CEU) net salling price and s value In use. The recoverabile amount IS determined for an individual
as5et, unless the asset does not generate cash Inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. Where the camying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds |ts recoverable amount, the assef Is consldered
|I'I'I|}3|I"Eﬂ and Is writien down (o I recoverable amount. In EE-EEEG'IQ valuee In use, the estimated fuiune cash Nows are
discountad o thelr [JI'E'EE'I'IT value uslrhga erm: discaunt rate thal reflects current market assessments of tha time value
of money and the risks spechic to the asset. In delermining ned seling price, recent market ransactions are Eken Ino
sccount, I avallable. If no such ransactions ¢an be Mentifed, an appropriate valuation model s wsed.

Impalrment losses of confinuing operations are recognised In the profif and less account. Atter Impalrment, depreciation
I6 provided on the revised camylng amount of the asset ower Its remalning useful lEe.

An aEsessment |5 mage at each reporting date as to whether there ks any Indication that previously recognised Impalment
o211 may no Iunget axist ar may have decreased. If such Indication exlsis, the bank estimates the assals or cash-
generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impalrment loss ks reversed only I there has been 3
'E-H-MBE In the EEELII'I1F|T|I:I15 u=ed to determdne the assel's recoverable amount since the last |I'I1PHITI'I'H1| lo=E wWas
I'Eml"iEd.THE reverzal Is “'Ediﬂmﬂtmﬂmg amount of the asset goes nat exceed K6 recoverabile amount, nor
excead fhe carrylng amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. had no Impairment loss been
recognised for the asset In prior years.

2.14 Employss baneflis

Expenses and labillties In respect of employee benefis are recorded In accordance with Accounfing Standard 15
Employee Benefits.

Prowigent fung
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2 14 Employss baneflis [Cont'd)

The Bank contributes ba the siatufory provident fund of the Reglonal Provident Fund Commissianer, In accordance with
the Employees” Provigent Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The pian Is 3 defined contribution plan and
coniripuion pald or payable Is recognised a5 an expense In the peried In which services are rendered by the empioyee.

Gramuny

Grabully = a post-employment benefit and |s 3 defined benefit plan. The Nablity recognised in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date legs the falr value of plan assets
(If any), together with adjusiments for unrecoagnised achuarial gains or lcsses and past GenviCe COBES. ARy assed resulsing
from this calculation Is Imited to past service cost, plus the present value of avallabie refunds and reductions In fufure
confrbutions ta the plan. Independent actuanies using the Projected it credit methad calculate the defined benast
oiligation annually.

Actuarial gains or I0Es=E arising fram experience ad|ustments and changes In aciuarial assumplions are crediied or
charged o the Prost and Loss Account In the year in which sUch gaine or 06526 arseE.

Compensarad absences

Liabiity in respect of compensated absences becoming dus or expecied to be avalled within gne year from the balancs
sheet date |5 recognised on the basls of undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be pakd or estimated value
of benafi expecied to be avalled by ihe employees. Liablliy/Asset In respect of eamed leave becoming due or expacted

{0 be FWalled more iNan ane year aner e balance sheet date ks esimased on the basls of aciuanal valuation as at e
balance shest date In @ manner similar to gratulty labliy.

‘Orher short-perm benefits

Expense In respect of other short-term benefits Including performance Incentive Is recognised on the basis of amount pald
of payabie for the period for which the employee render services.

Orher long-Term employes benefits- Deferred cash varable pay

As per policy, A minimum of 60% of Total Varlable Pay shall be under deferral arrangement. At least 50% of the Cash
component of Warlable Pay shall be under deferment. Alsa, In case Cash Varlable Pay for a performance period ks below
Ri6_25 lakhs, defarral may not be applicable. The NAC shall fake a decision on the treatment of tha deferral on an annual
basis. The deferral perled shall be for three years from the end of pedormance period. The deferral shall be on 3 pro-
rata basks Le. 1/3rd of deterred component and shall vest at the end of each year for the next thrae years. Yesting shall
take place on a yearly basks afler a proper assessment of performance by the NRC and adusiments can be made based
on achual results. For varlable pay pertaining to FY¥-21, pald In FY22, 100% of non-cash variable pay and 50% of e3sh
pay was under deferral. The deferred cash variable pay has been recognised as lablity ai present value of the defined
baneft obigation at the balance shast date, a6 required by AS-15 on Empioyes benefits. The present value has been
getermined using actuaral valuation after factaring In assumptions of atirttion and discounting.

215 Employss ghare based Payments

Equity-semied schame:

The Employess Stock Option Scheme (he Scheme) provides for grant of opfions on the Bank's equiy shares to
employees and Managing Director of the Bank. The Scheme provides that employees may be granted an option to
subscribe to equity shares of ihe Bank that shall vest as per the vesting sehedule defermined by Mominafion and
Remuneration Commitee. The oplions, post westing, may be exercised witnin a specified penod. In accordance with the
Guldancs Mate on Accounting for Emplayee Share-based payments, issued by The Instttute of Chartered Accountants of
India, fhe cost of equily setfied fransactisns has been measured using the falr value method. Detalls regarding the
getermination af the falr value of the options are s out In Schedule 18.21. The falr valuz of the cpbons determined as at
the grant date |s expensed an a strlghidine basls over the vesfing peried, based on the Sanks estmate of equiy
Instrisments thad will eventually vest, with 3 comesponding credit ta Empioyee stock opfions outstanding account. The
Impact of the revishan of the arlginal estimates, If any, Is recognised In profit ar less such that the cumulative expenss
refiects the revised estimate, wiih a correspanding afustment to the Emplayee stock opiions outstanding accound.
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215 Employess ghare based Paymente [Cont'd)

The options that do nof vest because of fallure to sallsty westing condiion are reversed by 3 credit to employes
compensation expense In “Payment fo and provision for employee”, equal io the amortised porfion of the cost of lapsed

opfian . In respect of the opiflons which expire unexercised the balance standing to the credit of Employee stock opiions
outstanding account |5 fransfemed to General Reserve.

2.16 Taxese on Income

Tax expense comprses current and deferred tax. Current Income-tax 16 measured at the amount expected to be pak ta
the tax authorilles In accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted In India.

Deferred incame taxe6 refect the Impact of #ming dfferences between taxable Income and accountng Income originating
during the current year and reversal of timing differences of the eanler years. Defermed fax |6 measured based on the tax
raies and fhe tax |aws enacted or subsianiively enacted as at the reporting date.

Deferrad tax lablifles are recognized for all taxable timing diferences. Defemed tay assets are recagnized for depuctibl
fiming differences only & the axtent that there s reasonable ceriainty that suficient fubure taxable Income will be avallabis
agalnst which such deferred tax assess can be realized. In sEuatians where the Bank has unabsorbed depreciation or
carry forward tax logses, all deterred tax assefs are recognized only If there Is virtual certainty suppartad by canvincing
evidance Mat they can be realized against future taxable profts.

Af each reporting date, ihe Bank re-as5es5e5 Unrecagnized defemed tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized oetemed tax
asget to the extent that it has become reasonably cerfain or virually certain, as the case may be, that sufclent future
taxabie Income will be avallable against which such deTerred tax aseeis can be realzed.

The camying amount of defemed tax assets are reviewed at each reporiing date. The Bank writes-down the carmying
amaount of deferred tax asset 1o the extent that K Is no longer reasonably ceriain or vifually certaln, as the case may be,
that sufficlent fubure taxable Income will be avallable against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-

down i reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably cerialn or virually cerailn, as the case may be, that suficlent
Tuture @xable income will be avallable.

Deferred fax assets and defemed tax lablifties are offsed, IT 3 legally enforceable right exlsts to 6et-0ff cument 15x as5e6

against cument tx labilibes and the defemed tax assets and defemed taxes relale io the same taxable enbiy and the
same tavation authorty.

2 17 Foralgn cumrency tranzactions
Inftial recognition

Forelgn currency fransaciions are recorded In ihe reporing currency, by applying fo the forelgn currency amount the
exchange rale bebween the reporting curmency and the forelgn currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversian

Foralgn currency monetary feme are repartad using the closing rate ac at the Balance Sneet date. Mon-monetary tems
which are carried In t2rms of historical cost denominated In 3 forelgn cumency are reparted using the exchange rate at
the daie of the iransacton.

Exchange giferences

Exchange differences anising on the setfiement of manetary Hems or on reporting Bank's monetary tems at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported In previous financlal statements, are
recognised 36 Income or a5 expenses In ihe year in which they arise. Mon- monetary lem which are measured at fair

value or ather similar value depominated in foreign clmency are tranclated using the exchange rates at the date when
such value Is determined.

2.18 Provielons and contingent lablittles

A provision ks recognised when an enferprise has a present obligation as a result of a past event and i ks probatde that
an cutfow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and In respect of which a rellable estimate can be made.
Provigions are nof giscounted to thedr present value and are defermined based on best esimate required to setile the

obligalion at he balance sheel date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet dale and ad|usted to refiect the cument
b=t esdmates.

A contingent Nablity 15 3 possible oblgation Mat anses from past events whose existence will be confirmed by fha
CCCUMMERce ar non-gocumence af one ar more uncertain future events IJE!‘[H'IH the confrol of the Bank ar a HEB-EI'I'[
ciligation tat is not recognisad because i 15 not probable that an outow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation.
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Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements for the
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2 18 Proviglons and contingent llabliifiss | Cont'd)

A contingent llablity also anises In extremely rare cases where there 15 a lablify that cannot be recognised because i
cannot be measured rellably. The Bank does not FECognize & confingent labliy but discioses Its extsience In the financial
statements.

Contingent assets are not recognized In the Ananclal statement.

219 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are afributable to the acquisiion andior construcfion of qualifying assets are capitallsed as part of
the cost 97 6uch assels. In accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 16, Borowing Costs. A qualifying asset |s one that
necagsanlly takes 3 substantial pedod of tme fo get reay for He Intenden use. ANl piher barmowing costs are charged to
the Fll'ﬂ'l and hoss accownt @5 Incuned.

2.20 Eamings par ghare

Bagl: eamings per ehare |6 caleulated by dividing fhe net proft or Ioss for the periad atiributable to equity shareholders
{atter deduciing attributabile taxes) by the welghied average number of equity shares cuistanding during the year. The
welghtad average number of equity shares oufstanding dunng the wear |5 ad|usted for evends Of DONUS [S5US; DONUE
element In a rights Issus o existing shareholders; share spiit; and reverse share spitt (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculaiing diuted eamings per share, fhe ned profit or lass for the period attibuiable io equity
sharehaiders and the welghted average number of shares cutstanding during the period are ad|usted for e efects of all
utive potenial equity shares.

2 .21 Transaction cost

Transaciion costs (Including loan orgination costs) are Incremental costs that are directy atiributable o the acquisiion of
share capital and Nnancial labikles. Transacdon cost Includes Tees pald o amvisors and levies by reguiatory agencies,
Including taxes and dulies. Transaciion costs incurred fowards:

I.  Issuance of share capial and debentures 16 expensed to the prost and loss account.
0. Acquisiion of borrowings Is expensed ta the profit and loss account In the year In which they are Incumed.

2.2 Leasag

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effeciively retains substantlally all the rsks and benefits of ownership of the leased temm, are
classiMied a5 operating leases. Operaiing lease payments are recognised a5 an expense In the Prof and Loss Account
on a stralght-line basis over ihe lease tamm | 1.e. lock In period).

223 Cash and cash equlvalants

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash fliow slatement comprises of cash in hand, balances with RBI,
balances with ofher banks.

2.24 3agment reporiing

The disciosure relating to segment Information Is In accordance with AS-17, Segment Reporiing and as per guideings
Issued by REI

BusINEsE segments have been IdendMed and repartad faking Inta account, the customer prafile, the nature of products
and services, the diferng riske and retwms, ihe organisation structure and the guidelines preseribed by RBIL The Bank
operates In the following segments:

a) Treasury
The traasury segment primarily conslsts of entire Investment portfoli of the Bank.
b} Comoratefsholesale banking

Whalesale banking Includas il advances to companias and statuinry bodies, which are not Inclded under Retal
banking.
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Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements for the
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224 Sagment reporiing|Cont'd)
£} Reiall banking
The retall banking segment senves retall customers through the branch network. Exposures are ciassified under retall
banking taking Inte account the siatus of the borrower (orientation criterion), the nafere of product, granulartty of the

EXpasure and the quantum thereof. Rewenues of the retall banking segment are primarily derived from Interest and fees
eamed an refall loans, Interest on deposis placed a5 collateral with banks and financial Institutions. Expenses of this

segment primarily comprise Interest expense on borrowings, deposis, Infrastnucture and premises EXpenses far operading
the branch network, personnel costs and ather direct overneads.

Since the business operafions of the Bank are primarily concentratad In Indla, the Bank Is considered to operate anty In
the domesilc sagment.

2.25. Share lsgus Expanses

Share IssUE eXpenses are adjustment form Securiles premium account as permitted by sectlon 52 of Companies Act
13,
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Independant Auditor's Report

To the Members of Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements
Opinion

1. Wa have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited [the Bank’},
which comgeise the Belance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then endad, and a summary of the significant sccounting policies and olher explanalony
infarmaticn

2, In our apinon and 1o the best of our Information and according 1o the axplanatiors given 10 us, e alonssid
financial stademants give the infermation required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1940 as well as the
Companiss Act, 2013 (Act) and cinculars and guidelines issued by the Resarsa Bank of india, in the manner
so required for banking companias and give a ree and fair view, in conlomily with B accounling princples
ganarally accepled in India including the Accounting Standards prescribed under saction 133 of tha Act, read
wilth rube ¥ of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended), of the state of affairs of the Bank as al
31 March 2021, its profit and its cash Rows for the year ended on thal date

Basis for Opinien

3. Wa conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the
Act. Our responalbilites under those siandards ara further deecribad in the Audlor's Responsiblities for the
Audil of the Financial Statements seclion of ow report, We are independent of the Bank in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issuad by the Institute of Charbered Accountans of India (1CAI) together with the ethical
requinements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rubes thersunder, and we have fulfilled our lher edhical responsibilities in accordance with these reguinements
an the Code of Eihics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriste o
previde a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matber

4. We draw atiention o Schedube 17, Mote 2.1 (i) 1o the accompanying financial staterments, which dascribas the
economic and social disruption the Bank is facing as a result of COVID-19 pandemic. In viaw of thessa
ungarlainies, the impact ol the pandemic on the Bank's operations and financial metrics will depend on Tulure
davalopmenis which ars uncertain at this time

Qur apinion is not modified in respect of this I'I"Iﬂ].ﬂr'
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those malters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in cur audit
of the financial statements of the current penod. These matlers were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial stalements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and wa do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described belaw to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Koy audit matter

Information Technology system for the financial reporting process

How our audit addr d the key audit matter

The Bank is highly dependent on its Information
technology (IT) systems for carrying on its operations
which require large volume of transactions to be
processed daily in numerous locations, Furlther, the
Bank's accounting and financial reporting processes
are dependent on the automated controls enabled by
IT systams which impacts kay financial accounting and
reporting ltems such as lcans, interest income,
provision on loans, deposits, interest expense on
deposits, investments, income on investmenis
amongs! others. The controls implemented by the
Bank in ils IT environment determine the integrity,
accuracy, completeness and validity of data that is
processed by the applications and is ultimataly used
for financial reporting.

Qur areas of audit focus included user access
managemenl, developer access to the production
environrment and changes to the IT environment
across applications, networks, database and cperating
systems. Further, we aiso focused on key automaled
controls relevant for financial reporting.

Accordingly, since our audit strategy included focus on
key IT sysiems and automated controls due fo
pervasive impact on the financial statements; we have
determined the same as a key audit matler for current
yoar audt.

We included specalized IT auditors as part of our
audit team to perform audit procedures which
included, but wera not fimited to the following:

« Obtained an understanding of the Bank's IT
related conlrol ervieonment and conductad
risk assessment and identified IT applications,
networks, databasas end operating systems
thal are relevant to our audit. Also, cbtained an
understanding of the changes that were mada
1o the identified | T applizations during the audit
period and tested those changes that had a
significant impact on financial reporting;

« Tested the design and operating effectivenass
of the Bank's [T controls over the IT
applications as identified above;

« Tested IT general controls particularly, logical
access, changes management and aspects of
IT operational conlrols  Tested that requests
for access o systems were appropriately
reviewed and awlhorized, tested controls
around Bank's parodic review of access rights,
inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization;

» Tested related Interfaces, configurations and
olther applicaion layer controls identified
during our audit and report logic for system
generated reports relevant to the audit mainly
for loans, inlerest inceme, provision for loan
assets, deposits, interest expense on deposits,
Investments, interest income on investments
amongst others, for evaluating completeness
and accuracy,;

= Where deficlencies were |dentified, tested
compensaling controls  or  performed
altemative procedures.
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COVID-19 related measures

digclosuras in the financial statemants.

Identification and provisioning for non-performing assets (‘NPAs’) including implementation of

As al 3¢ March 2021, the Bank reporled total gross advances (gross of NPA prosision) of INR 550,630
lakhs, tctal gross- non-performing advances (NPAs) of INR 35,359 lakhs and a provision for NPAs of INR
20,518 lakhs. The provision coverage ratio as at 31 March 2021 is 73.68%.

Rafer note 2.4 for the accounting policy relating o NPA and note 18,4, 18.10E and 18.16 for the related

| Koy audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The provisioning for NPAS is made is accordance with
the aforasaid accounting policy which is higher than
the RB! Prudental Norms on Income Recognition,
Assat Classificaion and Provisioning perlaining to
Advances (RBI IRAC norms’). Based on our risk
assessment; following  significant factos  are
considered in assessment for idenlification and
provision of NPAs:

« Completeness and timing of recognition of defaulls
in accordance wilh the criteria sel oul in the RBI
IRAC norms;

s  Measurement of provision being dependent on the
ageing of overdue balances, secured/ursecured
status of advances and valuation of collaterals

Implementation of COVID-19 related measures

During the current year, RBI has announced various
relief measures for the borrowers which were
implemented by the Bank such as "COVID 18
Regulatory Package- Asset Classification and
Provisicning” announced by the RBI announced by the
RBl on 27 March 2020, 17 April 2020 and 23 May 2020
and RBI circular on "Asset Classification and Income
Recognition following the expiry of COVID-19
regulatery package' dated 07 April 2021 (cobectively
referred to as 'the RBI circutars'), and “Resolution
Framawork for COVID-19 related Stress™ (the
'‘Resclufion Framework') Issued by the RBI on 6
August 2020, which were collectively considered by
the maragement in identification and provisioning of
NPAs.

Iimplementation of the RBI circulars also required the
Bank to implemenl necessary changes in s
informadon technology syslems.

On the basls of estimates made by the management,
an addilional provision for NPAs amounting to INR
5,907 lakhs has been recognised by the Bank owing lo
the potential impact of COVID-19 as on 31 March 2021
based on the information avaitable as on date

-:C"fﬁ— =
g‘i’rﬂiL‘SJ?;'_

{ wiwas ‘g

Ouwr audit procedures Included, bul were not
limited to the following.

Evaluated the Bark's accounting policies for
Identification and measurement of NPA in
accordance with RBI IRAC norms;

Assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key controls over
completeness and accuracy of the loan
provision computaions,

Tested the automated controls and system
generated reports used by the management
for identification ard measurement of NPAs n
lina with the RBI IRAC norms;

Re-performed the calcalation of provision for
NPAs for all loan portfalios in accordance with
the accounting paiicy adopted by the Bank
including asset classification and ensured
completeness of undetying data. Compared
such outcome 1o that prepared by the
management  and  investigated  the
differences, if any;

Verifled on a samgle basis that the loan write-
offs during the yaar were in Ene with the
approved Board policy;

Obtained an understanding of the Board
approved policies formulated pursuant lo the
RBI circulars and Resclution Framework and
ensured that such colicies were in accordance
with such RBI requirements;

Tested on a samole basis thal the
restructuring of leans done during the year
under the Resolution Framework was
approved and implemented, and provisions
made on such restructured loans in
accordance with the Bank's board approved
policy and the Resolution Framework;
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Considaring the significance of the above mattertothe | «  Varffied on a sample basis thal the
financial statements and significant auditor attention moratonum granted to the customers during
required 1o fest the identificaion of NPAs and the year was in ascordance with the Board
management estimates arcund provision on NPAs approved policy forvarious products, For such
followed with additional complexities involved in the samples selected we further tested that
currenl year owing to the impact of COVID-19 ; this has identification of NPAs, provisions created, and
been identified as xey audit maller for current yesr asset classification for such loans were in
audit. accordance with tre requirements of the RBI
circulars and RBI IRAC norms;

+ Obtained the maragement analysis for the
additional provision created during the year
owing 1o the petental impact of COVID-19 and
vorified the aopropriatencss of the
management estimates and assumplions
used considering cur understanding of the risk
profiles of the customars of the Bank and
other relevant publicly avaidable macro-
economic factors pedaining to impact of
COVID-19;

= Assessed the appropristeness and adequacy
of disclosures as per relevant accounting
standards including disclosures relating to
RBI circulars and Resohtion Framewaork.

Information other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

7. The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the other infermation. The other information comprises the
informaticn included in the Annual Report including the Pillar 11l Disclosure under the New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel || disclosures), but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial slalements, our responsibility is o read the other Information
identified above and when it becomes availabls and, in doing so, consider wheher the other information s
materially inconsistant with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears t be materially misstated,

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude thal there is a material misstatement thereln, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financlal Statements

8. The Bank's Board of Directors s responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial stalements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting prinziples generally accepled in
India, incuding the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the
Companiles {Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended) and provisions of section 20 of the Banking Regulation Act,
1948 and circulars and guidelines Issued by Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') from time fo time, This responsitiity
alen includes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and delecting frauds and other irregularities;
seleclion and application of appropriate acccunting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate iniernal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compieleness of the accounting records, relevant
1o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or amor.

9. In preparing the financia stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability fo continue
as a golng concam, disclosing, as applicable, mallers related to going concemn and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to ceasa operations, or has no
realistic aternative bul lo do so.

10. These Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Banks's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

11. Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statemants as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and o issue an audilor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantes that an audit conducted In
accordence with Standards on Audiing will ahways detect a material misstatament when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error ard are considered materia i, indiidually or in the apgregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

12. As part of an audil in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exerdise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material méisstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for cne resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inlentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order 1o design audit procedures that are
appropriale in the circumstances. Under section 1433)i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining
our opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal financial controls with referenca to financial stalements
and the oparating effectivanass of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenzss of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

t/4 2

hl,( N
YEN

Page 5of 9
Cratusat Mooute'ts Vakar has s & Co LLP b rojsiered
wh maed Dby Wi e iSoason
Oioss i Dorgahors, Crantpid, Cvonss, G, Hpdesbad Ka0x, Noicra, M, Vew Delly, ke sed Pus. e AAC-ZZET sred hea ks reghalared

ofee @ LAY, Conmaugin Creas, Our
Cingle, Baw Doy, 110021, Ingin

190



Placement Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: June 15, 2023 For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conciude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to deaw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosurgs are inadequate, 10 modify ocur opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our suditor's report. However, fullre events or conditions may
cause the Bank to cease to confinue as a going concem.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and wheter the financial statements represent the underdying transactions ard evenls in a manner that
achieves ‘alr presantation.

13. We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other marters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compliad with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatiorships and other mattars that
may reasonably be thought lo bear on our ndependence, and where applicable, rmlated safeguards.

15. From the matters communicated with those cherged with governance, we delermine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are thecefore the key audt
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report uniess law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thal @ matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adversa consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public Interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1948 and section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Rules), 2014 (as amended).

17. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knawledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

b) the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the Bank;

c) the financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralised, and therefors, aczounting retumns for the
purpose of preparing the financial statements are not required to be submitted by the branches. We have
however visited 27 branches during the course of our audit.

18. With respect to the matter to be included in the auditor’'s report under section 19716} of the Act, we report that
since the Bank Is a banking company, as defined under the Banking Regulation Act, 1349; the reporting under
section 197(16) in relation lo whether the remuneration paid by the Bank i in ac:ordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act and whether any excess remuneration has been paid in accordance with the aloresaki
section is not applicable.
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Further, as required by section 143 (3) of the Ac:, based on our audit, we repont, to the extent applicable, that:

we have sought and obtained all the infeemation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

in our opinion, propar books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as il appears
from our examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in aur opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amendec), to the extent they are
not inconsistent wilth the accounting policies prescribed by RBI,

on the basis of the writtan represantations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being apointed as a director in terms
of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financia stalements of the Bank as
on 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Banc for the year ended on
that date and our report dated 14 June 2021 as par Amexure | expressed an unmodified opinion; and

with respect to the other matters 1o be included In the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i, the Bank does not have any pending liligations which would impact s financial position as at
31 March 2021;

ii. the Bank did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contrack for which thers were any
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021;

¥, thare were no amounts which were required % be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Bank during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were applicable
for the period 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant 1 these financial statements.
Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:001076N/N600013

Manish Gujral
Partner
Membership No: 105117

UDIN:21105117AAAADOS735

Place: Mumbal
Date: 14 June 2021
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Fincare Small Finance Bank
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘th Act)

1, In conjuncticn with our audit of the financial staterments of Fincare Small Finance Sank Limitad ('the Bank') as
st and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial cortrols with reference to
financial statements of the Bank as at thal date,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for estabishing and maintaining intemal Snancial controls based
on the intamal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Bank
considering the essential components of intemal control stated In the Guidance Note cn Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting issued by the Institlute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').
These rasponsibilities include the cesign, impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
conlrels that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Bank's business,
including adherence lo the Bank's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevantion and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeress of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial Information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls wth Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on the Bank's intemal financlal controls wilh reference o financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued
by the ICAl prescribed under Section 143(10) ofthe Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with referance to financial statements, and the Guldance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with elhical requiremenis and plan and perform the audil to oblain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate inlemal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
esiablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matericl respects.

4, Our auditinvotves performing procaduras 1o obtiin audit evidence about the adecuacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and eveluating the design and
operating effectiveness of intamal control based on the assessed risk, The procecdues selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, inchaling the assessment of the risks of matenal misstaiement of the financial
statemens, whether due to fraud or error,

5. We believe that the audt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opirion on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference Lo financial slatements .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financlal Statements

6. A bank’s internal financial controls with referance to financial statlements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rekability of financial reperting and the prepatation of financial statements
for external purpeses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A bank's Internal financial
controls with reference 1o financial statements Include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable delal, accurately and faidy refiect the Iransactions and dispositions
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | {Contd)

of the assats of the bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepiec acceunting principles, and
that receipls and expenditures of the bank ere being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timealy
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the bank's assels that could have a material effect
on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent Bmitations of internal financial controls with reference Lo financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management overnide of controls, material misstaterments due 1o error
or fraud may occur and not be delected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the inlemal financial controls
with refarence to financial statements to future periods are subjecl 1o the risk thal the irlemal financial controls
with reference 1o financial statements may bacome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with referance to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal
financial controls with reference fo financial statements criteria established by the Bank considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit o Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 001076 N/INS00013

c

Manigh Gujral
Partner
Membership No: 105117

UDIN:21105117AAAADO5735

Place: Mumbal
Date: 14 June 2021
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(A1 amounts in ¥ bkite sccedt clherwiae alied)

At As ot
Schodule 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2000

Capitad and llabRtes
Cagita 1 L6 6961
Errplogens sock apiors custancing 100 >
Retnnes and supius 2 95,330 B4,016
Dapoals a 539,080 465343
Boromngs 4 140,043 136816
Omar badi Hins and prowsions 5 22,338 18041
Totad Capital and Libilities 736,622 3187
Aancls
Cash and balances wih Resorve Bank of inda 3 103,550 106,851
Balanons with haeke nd maney al el and shed netica 7 11912 240
bwestrianty s 127956 100,606
Advancos e 530,112 451,55
Froed pseats 10 Agie 4,00
Ofhwr 3536 n 18,392 17.047
Total Assets. 790,823 111,837
Corlicggunt lnbiltias 2 07 1,837
B for colection . -
Sigoificant Rzeouning palcks and notes 10 accounts WEs
Echatus refarmed abave form an integral part of the Balonoe Sheet
As per our fepee of even die
For Walker Ghandlak and Co, LLI® For and oo Sehall of e Bcad of Diieclors of
Charterad Accourtants Finzare Small Finance Bark Limied
rbmnngmi;nm;omommmoon 3/
Manish Gujeal Yacav Pramod Kabea
Parrar and CEO Déragne
Meombership No - 106117 = DIN: 00191370 OON: 02202403
Mumbal Bangshim Mumeal
14 Jure N2 14 Jane 2021 14 Ane 221

Vray Baljal Koyir Dot

Direchr Chied Financal Officer

DIN: 07516398

Mombai Barcda

H dwe 2021 14 Jne 2021

Shetaly 1

Comparry

M Ko, F7698

Bengoiun

14 Jusg 2021
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al nmounts 0 T lkhs croept GROTwne waled)

Yoar ented Yoar ended
Schedule 31 Masch 2021 31 March 2020
L Incaomu
riorest earmod 13 125100 107 026
Olher income 14 1218 G
Total Incoess 137,641 121,572
1. Expeanciiture
Ierest axpanded 15 65,009 45150
Operaing coparnses 113 A5 A2k 426812
Provisicn aed condngencas (refnr notn 18.18) 25,198 19,854
Tolul Expenditure ﬂﬂg‘l 107,227
L. Profit\leas)
Net profit for the year 11,594 14,345
Proft brought forward 0707 (613)
Total Profit a1 631 13727
W. Apprepeiation/tramsfers
Transier 9 sialviory reseeves 2,819 3jrar
Transler 1 0Far e 2] a3s
Transler ¥ Govemmentipronoaoed dvderd - -
Hatance camng over to e betanca shsal 18,1¢a aqur
Total 21,011 13727
Signifean secouning poscka sed netas 10 AU e
Earnings per squity share of € 10 unch (refer note 18.54)
Base () 17.7% 2642
Diused (2] nme 2443
Faca vako per share (T) 10.00 10.00
Schadules refesred above fomm an inlagral par of fhe Proft and Loss Acocourt
A3 per cur mport of even dole
I'or Walker Chandiok and Ce, LLP For and on bubal! of the Soed of Drecton of
Chartered Accountnms Fincare Savall Fisance Bong Lmilod
Flom R, M?ﬁ No: CO0MENINSC0013 it
' &« W
"

Gugen! Yadav Pramod Kabra
Parvar wd CEO Direccr
Mambership No 105117 DN 00111379 DN 02252403

Murbai
JAne 2021 M Jne 2021

) =) -

{ MNTOuRg ) | Vinay Baljal Kupre Doshi

\ [ Chie' Finarcisl Offcer
LG DI 07556330

Mumzal Baredn
4 e 2021 W Jwn 201

mﬂ”)

cthart

Compary Secretary
M No. Fieis

Bengalunu
M une 2021
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al anounts in ¢ lakhs exoepl olherssss sled)

Yaar ended Year endad
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A Cash flows fromijused in) cperati
Prant before txx 14642 2021
Adjustneents for ©
Dopr and J 1,01 1600
Empkyea Stok Option Cost 100 -
Amonistion of pe on SLR in HTM camgory €55 160
{Prolitioss on dspagal of fixed assets (1) 7
Loan portfolo wiitlen off 3,503 4544
Provition on peafolio bans 18,572 8210
Provizion for ather conlingandes (e67) (153)
F e -1 (5} L]
[Profit) on salaof invesiment In SLR o iies (122) (13)
Loz on za'e o imvestmanl in SLR securnities @ 13
(Profit) on sale of nvesiment in mutual funds 128) {405)
Oparming peclits before working capital charges 38,763 35,612
Movement In working capital:
Increate in deposis 66457 1002
Increpzedcecreane) in offwer iabdes 4000 (r.613)
(Increase) N investments (nel) (27 897) (30.757)
(Increase) in asvancos (68.955) (208.420)
U o In feed degosits (316) 6427
(Increase) in ober assels 21 (847)
Cash guneratzd from operaling actvities 10,%13 56404
Twms onincena pad, nt (6,120} (7,066)
Net cosh g ted from op g activith 4,784 40,958
8. Cosh flows gererated from [ (used In) investing activities:
Purchase of fioed ossets (1,192) 12,435)
Proceeds from zalo of fomd wisets 1} 7
Purchase of Investmerts o mukasd funds {18.000) (42,000)
Proceeds Yo sale of imestments In mutual Ands 18,129 48,1C6
Proceeds ¥om larm morey endng 3 8,999
Net cash (used in) generated from investing activities (5 6670
€. Cash flows ganerated from { (used In} fimancing activities:
Proceeds from lssus of equily shaes - 9,452
Proceeds from bommowing urdar the LAF segment - 10,300
Procesds from boans avaded $rom Banks and Snanclal insthusons 47,00 42,800
Repaymen! of lkans avaled fom banks and financial Fatiutions (39073) {50,041)
Repayment af borrowing unde: (he LAF segment (4,000) -
Proceeds from issue of non-cormentitle debantuies . 10,000
Redamption o’ non.cormertitle debeniues . {4,250}
Net cish g from f % th J_!-ﬁ 17,941
Net incresse n cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C) 275 71,558
Cash and cath equival at 1he beg g of the year 107520 35,968
Cash and cash equivalonts t the end of 1he ynv' 11% 107,526

1 Wekatos cash and bank batinoss with Rezane Bark of Inda Feler Schadubs 6], balarces vith Barks in curment account ard monsy af call
and short nosca Fefer Schadua T(INR) and 7(K)bY a= on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd)
(Al s in 2 Sakhs comept otharwise slaled)

Year snosd Yoar wded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Components of cash and cash aquivalents

Cash and balances with Reserve Banic of India 106,650 105,853

Badanoes with barks and money at call and sheel nofca 6504 4,673

0,288 il
—

As per our report of ewn dae
Foe Walker Changiok and Co. LLP For and an teball of e Board of Dirsctors of
Chartered Accountants Fincare Smull Financa Bank Limited

Fims Regstration No: JOS076NMNSL0013

‘ O e

h Gujral Yadav Pramod Kabea
Parres and CEO Dirpotce
Membership No.: 108117 DIN: 00111378 DiN. 02252403
Mok Baegalury Mumbat
14 June 2029 14 Jure 2021 14 Jrm 2021

A
Vinay Baijal Kayur Doshi
Direcior Chiaf Finandal Offizer
OIN: 07516353
Mok Baroda
14 June 2021 4 June 2021
VT
Shat: arl
Compeary Secmlary
M No. F7608
Bangakru
14 Juna 2021
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Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Scheduies foeming pan of the Balmoe Sheet as st 31 March 2021
(A1 Becurts In 2 lakhs excapt ot ivise staled)

As ot Asat

TR - Crpitet 31 March 2021 31 Maroh 2020
Authorised capital
300,600,500 {31 March X0 1€0,000,000) equty shares of ¥ 10 weh 32000 10,000
Issued, sstiscribed and fully pald-up capital
3,610,461 (31 March 2020 63,510,481) agquity shares of 2 40 each @361 6,381
Total Cagial 6,201 6351

Notes

1 Rights and peos of squity sharcholds

Ench halder ol an oquily shom & ertifnd 1o cos ueta par sharo. The Bank chdame fed pays dvidend N indan Rupses. Tre dhdend poposed by the Bowd of
Croclors s zubmd to $w spgeoval of the sh dors b the ing Anrusl Moling, wacepd imesim daidend. In the evert of lqudson of #e Bark, the
Wnammmumlnmnmnmaatsullmasm.mu" fib of ol pr | € any. The dstriticn wit b in
proparton ¥ the aurber of equiry shases hokl by T shad\ooers.

Asal As

Aohadulez and et 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
L Siatutary reserve
{Craatad pursuent 1o Section 17{2) «f Barking Reguiation Act, 1543)
Qpeoing blvrce 6,587 3,000
Addticns during the year 2,619 20867
Deductions during the yeor - -
9,416 6567
Il Shaes pramivem
Dpaning balance ear7 56262
Addbiors during the yoae . RTYG
Deductions during the yo .
GEATT 66,577
M, Germed reserves
Opening balanos 1 1
Adatons dueng He yoor - .
Duductons during #e you - -
1 1
. levesiment Bectuation reserve
Opaning balorce T4 am
Addiions durng the yeur 2 433
Deductions during the year - -
nrs 744
V. Bsance i profit and loss accownt 18,108 ar?
Total Resorves and surp us 95330 34,016
Asat Asat
Behiaie 3~ Daposis 31 March 2031 31 March 2020
Al Demand doposits
) From borks 1,006 TS
i) Fromethas 4568 2919
_sem 3,905
I Swavings bank depeails 120,758 Gzsn
W, Term deposits
i} Frombarks 148,085 167.023
W) From ofrars 250,907 242204
“nsam 400,007
Total Dsposits B3 17—
B 1. Doposts of branches in Inje 631,850 465,593
IL Oeposts of beanches cuts da Inda -
Total Deposis 303 __tn
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fo
SN0 ¥ BT 31 March 2021 31 March 228
L Borrowings in indis
1) Ressarww sk of inda 54800 10200
0 Ofwr barks' - 1000
) Othar iratiulons 4nd AQenads . .
) Goamnasent of Inda - -
) Frarei resusons” 114,443 1m,516
) Bawowigs 0 ihe s of bonds and deton ke - -
(erchaleg wbi-crdraied debis)
v} Une d b 20020 20,000
(tr-cndinaied dast inchuciod 0 Thr Z capital)
Tomal Borrowings in bedin 140,043 138,616
I Borowings cutside india -
Tohl Borrewiage 14008 ]ﬁ]ﬁ
1 Secuned Loraings NOLEed in | abowe ks T 337 kykhes (31 Narch 00 2 724 lohhs)
& b As ol e st
bdaaaind el 31Warch 2021 31 March 2020
I Bdcpartiv .
0 bleofbos pfustants frat) 1;” 682
0L beteests acoued
W. Gunaral peosision for stondand sszads (Refer nchodule 184 E) 11,161 106%
V.  Othors (ncheting providsns)’ 10,308 78
Total Other 1akiRtics and provisins 226 13841
thers As o Axal
1. Ctacs el iing suvisioee) 31 March2024 31 Mawch 2020
Triosest s49p on eacurtisalion)ssssgnmnt of pedicls bam - arr
Payod towards encirisatinedesegn meel of ans »
Fromsion lor other condrgences k2 an
Tirk ded e ] 3t s pirpatie 40 )
e o
wepensee
Jecrund ompiopre mepeesn 1510 1A
Provisim tor eatuty {forber sctwdub 1615 A) 167 At
Provsion ke comp 4 [Raker scheduse 10,15 C} 100 s
Other ksbdiben a4 1554

Sehedule 6 - Cosh and balances with Rexsrve Bank of ndia

I, Cashin haed {bcusing fecogn cemoncy notes)'
I Ralances sy Rosory e Bask of Inda

RIGETTE e

¥ nother oz

Total Cosh ad balances with Resascvs Bank of indis

ey

B5.200
TR

1 Tha Buark dces not hive any foreign carency nate Bedsnces ua on 31 Masch 2021 and 39 March 220

Schodulo 7 - Balwncos with barks and meonwry & call and shoc notice

Al
31 Marct 2021

As at
31 Moroh 2020

I lninga
1) Bawnzic with hanks
0 I curint eocounts
b) W other doposit scounts

) Monay al call and short notice
a) WWh barkis
b) W ol er ssens
Tota!
Il Outside Inda
0 In cusreet acoowrts
i) cthor depasd accounts
8) Monay s il And shod nalica
Total
Total halsecus with Banks and moody at call and shert nolice

1 Inchades T 20 Gikhe {31 March 20000 € 290 békies) B imirhed Wwast o
Maich 2020 T 406 tykhs) phaced in i ‘

L
1280

3998

11913

ho0s wezied bom Snancial
of
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Sohadule § - Invndnsels

Lo
31 March 3021

vesanent b Inda in

I} OCowarment securibes

%) Cthar apg ovod securtios

W) Shares

W) Devesures od bootks

¥) Suteisiores ondVor jolel venbuna
i) Ofers

Tatst bwastmarts b Indio'

Irvestmernt cutskio Indis in
<] atie {nchding oosl

1) Subekbysys ancice ot wanawss aboard

i) Cthers

Total lmastnents oulsido Indes

Youul investrents'

Imvosaments

Ivestments o indla
Goges valuo of Ivestiments
Lose: Aggeegpen ol x
Nat ewastmente
lervsdlenants Outskie Indin
G wadie ol rwestnents
Less Apyrogake of Wi
Not lrrasstments
Total irsimants’

1 Refor schnin 152 A - Iwasimnts

19798

127,536

3- A (emt of p |

Asal
31 March 2021

Fox ok
31 March 2620

1} N prerchaed and decounted

0 Cieh csedts, avescrals ond loorns ngspdlie 00 dennd’
i) Tems oaes’
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Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2021

1 Overview

Pursuant 1 the resclution pesssed by the sharehokiers af the Extra-Ordinary General Meatng held on 19 May 2017 and tha tssus of smab
Ninance bark icense by he Resenvs Bank of India ["REI%) on 12 May 2017, Disha Microfin Limied (“the Company®) commanced lls operatons
s 2 seredl finaecs bank with effect fom 21 July 2017, Accordingly, tha name of the Company was changad ko Fnzare Small Financa Bank
Limitesd (*the Beei®), The Bark is a Barking Comganty govemad by the Banking Ragulafion Act, 1949,

The Hark has been accorded the Scheduled Bark stalus by Reserve Bank of India vide Nolification Ho. DBRMED. (SFB Fincare),
No.B 140V 1613.21602013-19 daled 28 March 2019 and publishad in 1he Gazelle of India co 13 Apd 2019,

The Bank's operation indudes retal and wholesale barking acinilies. These activiles primariy include mivro Snance kending activites o
provide fremos ssisiencs 10 women al il Ker sockely, wha are organized s it Ratdity groups {JLG), with a
view of ennhancement of ther Inedihoads in @ financially viable mannes, primary in the rurgl sreas of Indla. Further, the Bank is engaged in
prowiding financlal asststance 1o the borowers 10 use the money to augmeant the househok incoma theough loan againet property, In addition,
the Bank ofers ather products, inclding instiutional Bnance, gold loen, two wheelss loans, affordable houing kerrs and overdraft faclity
agains fixed deposits of propenies. The Bank operales acroes varous sleles and unicn sermmanes of lndia

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1(1) Basls of preparaticn of financlal statements

These inancial slaterments of !e Bank consisling of baknce sheet a8 at 31 March 2021, the peofit and bss accoun, e cash Mow stalement
for the yoar endad 31 March 2021, and a summary of significant scoounting policlas and other explanatony Notes have been prepered in
3 wath the requi nis p ibed under e Thind Schadula af the Banking Regulation Acl, 1949 The accounling and reperling
polics of the Bank uzed in (he preperalion of these financial statements conform o G y Accepiad A ing Principies in Indla
(Indian GAAR), the guicelines ssued by Rasarve Bank of India (RBI) from lime to $ma and tha Accouniing Sardads notiied undes Seclion
133 of the Companise Act, 2013 read together wilh paragraph 7 of ®18 Commanies {Accourts) Rules, 2014 o the exient applicable and
praclioes genarslly provalant in the banking induelry in Inda The Hark folows he historical cost comention and accrusl method of
sccounfng, sxcapt In the case of nterest and othor iIncome an non-perfarening assels (NPAs) whane il |5 recognis=d upen reafisalion.

2.44il) Impact of COVID 19

(1) The Cowid- 18 pandemic has beted to a sgnficant decine and voliily in 1he eccoomic activity, i the ghobal and Indian markets. The
n:lion—widelocwoummpneodlnlﬁemolwﬂammyzmmﬂnglumuwlwlmudIMMvubus
bus W quently impacing the Bank's rgutar aparations including lending and collectk ties due W reglictions on
the mavement of empkyees Scross Alferand states 1o raach (he orowers,

The easing of e lockdown beequently led 0 a g I Impe in the economic acwity nd progress towards nonmaiy,

The current second wave ("Sacond wave”) of Covid-18 pandemic, whise he ber of new cases bas ncragec significantly in Inda, has
rasuted in reimposition of ncalsedireglonal lockd ed in parts of the country.

(#) Inaccordancs with the REI guidelies relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dstad 27 Masch 2000 and 17 Apeil 2020, the Bank granied
a of three monins on the pay of ak instalments and | o interast, s applcabie, faling due betwean 1 March 2020 and 31
Maxy 2020, Lo &l eFgible barrawers. In kne with the addifonal Reg y Package guidelnes datad 23 Mey 200X, tha Bank granted a second

molmrmmmﬂwraloﬁmmmlalmundlorlntm.‘sl,asapubabb.tollmduem(nJuazoeommmwmm

hmw%mpwahgmmndmiobmumuamswmmmkﬁldm&ws.wmunmmmbml
in & significant Increase n credit risk for such bomowars. The hal extent of impsct of the pandemic on the Bank's oparafions and financlal
matnc (Including impad on provision uhwmm)wlmmnmdmwmktlummﬂemﬂwnlhmmdwiﬁunuy
increased the number of cases In Indis, governmertal and reguistory Measures and the Bank’s responses therdo, which are uncertain A
s time.

The Bank had made an additinal provision amounting fo ¥ 6,250 lakhs owing fo the probable impect of Covid-19 {Cowd- 19 related
provision”) during the year endad 31 March 2020. Further, the Bank made Covid-19 relaled provision amounting to 13,142 lakhs during
e year ended 31 March 2021, (Refer Scheduie 18.4 ),

(r-)mwmmewmmmammmwawwmammmmwumwo-wemoadm
asM’AulstMws!?muﬂmbadoc\mdaswmlluwm.mmwlmumm,mBstnsanotcmslhdnny
mmlm-nsmnlpkasofsiN.wﬂzozoaspahRBInormo.eshPAnMr!iMguﬂm&mw,mawwaudea
mmmmumnWMmmmam, g and included such provision In above d Covid-
19 re provision.

The intevim otder gramed to not dedare accounts 3= NPA stood vacated on 23 March 2021 vide the judgamant of the Hon'ble SC in Ihe
matter of Smadl Scale Industrial Manufaclurers Association va. IO & Ors. and olher connected matiars. In tis connecton, (e RB1 vide ks
Groular daled 07 April 2021 has pronided extant insinctions to ol lending nssiulions for assal classifiztion of # borfowes accounts
subsequent (o the above mantioned judgement. The Bank has socordingly classiied thece bOTOWEr BCCOUNS &G par Fre extant IRAC norms
wilh effect fram 01 Sapamber 2020 and uliisad tha above Covid-19 raiated provision Lowards provision on hese aocounls. Accordingly, és
8l 31 March 2021, the Bank held an aggregala Covid-19 relaled provision of T 5,907 Wkhs (included in Genesal provision for slandard
assels)

(V) The Bank has assessed the impact of the Coda-19 pandemic on ks bauidly and abiity to repay s abligatons 25 and when they are due.
The management & confident 1at coliections wil impeove, though al & lowar lewel than carlior with the relacalions in the lockdowns. Bazed
o the foregoing and necessary stress lesls considering varnous scenanics, the,
obiigations as and when these doé in the & bie future.
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2,141} Impact of COVID 19 (cont'd)

{¥) Tha Bank has put i olace a Beerd apgeoved pobcy for rastruciusing of asses in ke with the guidaines |aid down by the RBI n the
Prudantial Framework for Resoltion of Stressed Assels issued on 7 June 2019 and Resclulion framework for COVID 19 stressed assels

Esued on 6 August 2020, The detalls of restructuring done by the Bank undar the mspective | th bas been provided in Schedue
1848

2.2 Usc of estimates
Tha praparation of finzncial stalements in confonmity with GAAP requires %o make esli and plices that alfect the

raparted armownts of asets and labilies snd tha disdosura of contingent liabillies 3l the 0ate of the financial 5 atements and the results
of operations durig the reporting pedods, Alhough these estimates are based upon a0 's best edge of current events and
actions, actusd rasuls soukd ciffier from those estimates. Sigrificant estimates usad tiy the o in the lion of these financial

I 5 Inchuxka af the sconomic uselid Tves of Sxed assets, deferred tax, aoaual for emphyee tanelits and pravision for
slandard and non-performing assets. Ditferance betwean the actual resls and esSmates are ecognised in the pariod in which the resulls
are knownimstenalizel. Any 10 80C ing is recognised prospectively in the cument and future periods.

2.3 Revenue recognition

{i) Intesest incoma on lcans s recoanised in the Profit and Loss Account 86 It Scenues by apphing the rale of a5 per the &9 i
Interest income on nan-parforming asset s recognisad only when realised. Any such recognisad befors the asset bacame non-
partorming and remaining unresdizad a8 on the dale of being thad as non-performing assel s d. as ger the recognition
and asset classiicatixn norms of RB1

[ii) Wrlerest on discounted Instruments is recogrised over the Lleaurs of 1a Instrumant oa a constant Yiedd to Naturity method
(i} Loz p ) fees ia gnisad on an uplrant bass when il becomes due,
W) Tha tees chaeged an dablt card issuance is recognisad on an uplron! basis

{v} The Bank enters into transactions for the sale of Priovily Secloe Lending Certificates (PSLEs). In the caze of ssk ranaaction, the Bank
sala the Amliment of priarity sector obligation (heough the RBI ksding platiorm. These ks mo trarsfer of risks of loan assels, The fes
recaved far the sale of PSLCE i racognised under Miscslaneous income within Othear income on & siraighl-Ine basis over he tenure of
the certificate.

(W) Interest incoma on copasits with banks and financis! Instidions |5 recognisad on 3 lime propodion Scciuel bads taking ino account the
amount outstanding and e rale spolcable.

(vil) Dividend incoms Is meognisad when the right 1o receive payment is estabilshad on the balance sheed daks.
(il All other fees and income are sccounted for as and when they become due.

24 Advances

Ciassification

Advances ane classified o per: 9 and noa-perform h (NPA") based on the REI guidelines and are staled nat of spacific
provisions made towards NPAS. Further, NPAs ae fied nio sub fard, doukdful and loas assets tased on NPA classficalion and

provisicning policy of e Bank, subject 1o the minimum classification and peovisioning lovel prescribad by the REI undes the Income
Recognilion e Assa Clasification ['IRAC) norme.

As per IRAC noems pregciibed by RBI, 8 loan or an advance is ciassilied &= NPA wheee, Ihe andlal ¥ af pinciple remaine
overdue(ocapemofmmnnwuyshmspmdanmhmwhucouﬂmmm‘wo!om&'iumpedolanomanfeuh
credk (CONCC) faclity.

*Overdue” refers 16 intarest and / o instalment remaining unpaid from Uhe day il became receivabla,

In case of micro-frssnce loars, rursl Micro enterprise loans, kan against gold, wo whesker kans, stafl oans and CASA accounts with debit
belancss, NPAS are dassifiod as sub-standard assets as per RB| guidelines. Further, such NPAS which ocone overdue for more fian
180 days 6re classiliad as loss assels.

In case of sacured insstutional and i drall against property, NPAS ame classhied as sub-standard and doublfst 855815
a2 por RBIgu L . NPAs due for more than 820 days ane classied as koss assels,

In carze of loan againd proparty With reg gage and secured alfordabie housing kans, NPAS ar classified as sub-standard and
doubliud sssets @ par REI guidak Ho , NPAs due far more than 1,134 days are classfied &S 0ss 355315,

Provisioning

General provision for standard assets made in sccondance with R8I Guldelines is included wnder "Olber Liskillins & Provisions-Others”.

Further, pravision for subrstandard, doubilful and ioss sssels in ¢ase of loan porfale are p d based on 4 U's bes! eslimat
subject 1o minimum mavesoning level prascrbed by RBI under IRAC neems,

Laan kes proveions i mspect of NPAs ara to the Profil and Loss Accoun and ded under Peovi wrvd Coanting
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24 Advances [cont'd)

NPAS which have been fuly provided for, are writlen off, bazed on management estmala and o per the NPA Provisioning and YWrite off
Palicy of the Bank.

Recoweries from bad debls wilten-off are recogrized In the Profit and Loss Account and included under Mol within
Other Income.

Provision pokcy & seconlised faans

Proviskon for lossas arising in respact of socuritisaiondassignment of micra fnanca partiaio kaan & made in accormance with the
provizioring pakicy foe micro finance own portfolo and in case of ather securilized portiohio aans, it ks made in acoordance wih (he
provisioring policy %o loan against proparty own subject 1o maxmum guaranies (Including cash collaterals and unfunded
guaranies) givan in raspect of these arrangenents.

2.5 Inter-bank participation cartificate (YBPC')
The Bank enters inlo intar-bank perticpa®on with sk sharing as issuing bank and tha aggregate amaunt of parkcipedon are reduced from

agoregate advance cutstanding

2.6 Investmants
Classiication
In sccordance wit the REM guidelings on investmant classification and valuation, investments are cixssifid on the dale of purchase Into
*Held for Trading® (HFT"), “Available for Salo® (AFS) and “Held 1o & Y 'HIM) ws (hereinafler calied categories')
Subsequent =hifling g8t the is done in 8coonisnce with the RE| guidelines. Under each of these crlegones, irvesiments

are further clssaifind andar six gvoupsfmmnu caked ‘groups’) -

(a) Govemment Seandies, {b) Other Approved Seaurities, (¢) Shares, {d) Dabantures and Bonds, (@) Investments in Subsidariestond
Ventures and () Othar Invasimonts.

Purchase and sale imnsactions in respect of all securities are recorded under ‘Settloment Date’ of accounting,
Basis of classicatioo
Invastments thal are bad principaly for resaka within 90 days fom tha date of purchase are dassified under HET categery.

Invesimants which fha Bank iends ta hold 1l maheky are dassified as HTM secuities. Investments which aee nol classified in emher of
he abava categorie: are classifiad under AFS category.

Acguisition cost

Brokerage, commission and broken penod Interest on debls ingruments e recognised in the Prof% and Loss Acoount and e not
Inchuded in the coel of BcguUisEon,

Nsposa of nvestments

Profiiass on sake of imvestmants undar the aforessid threa categories is recognissd in 1he Prodil and Lazs Account. Cosl of inveslmants
is hasad on the weizhtad average cost method. The pralil from sade of investment under HTM calegery, nel of 1axes and Wanséer o
statutory reserve, ig 3pprogrisled Yom the Proft and Loss Account 10 Capital Resenve in socordance wilh the RBI Gukdelines.

Vakmtion
Irvestrments clessificd under AFS and HFT catagories are marked 1o markel a5 per (ha REBI guidaines.
Traded mvesiments ae valed based on the rades | quotes on e anied stock e, price sl of RBI or pricas declared by

Primary Desters Ascocialion of Indla {'PDAF) jointly with Fixed Income Money Markel and Dervalives Assacition {FINMDA Winancial
Banchmerk India Private Limtied (FIBL'), paricdically,

The markel valos of unquoted govemment securkies which qualify for datermining the Stalutory Uquickly Rana ('SLR'), included in the
AFS and HFT categanies, s compuled a5 per the Yicld-lo-Maburity (Y TAT) rates published by FIMMOARBL.

Units of mutual funds are valad sl ;e lalest repuarchase peica | nel asset vae declared by the mulual fund.
Tressury bills, commarcial papers and ceetificate of daposits being decounted instumants, are valued s cary ng cosl

Net dapreciation in the vatue, F amy, compared to the acquisiicn cost, in any of Me groups, Is charged % he Profl and Loss Account. The
nel appreciaticn, if any, in ary of e groups s not racognisad except 10 the axtant of depradation akeady provided,

Investments diaasified under HTM calegory ére carmed at their acquistion cost and not marked to marke. Arry preamium on acquisition Is
aver the ning ity paricd of the security on s conslant yikl-to-maturity bases. Such amsetisaion of pramium ks adpucted
against Intecest inco v under the head Income {ram Fvesiments 88 par tha REI guidelines,

m»mﬂumlnqmmnzmmwwow;unnlwvhbnmmaommnbmdmmnslgwm.nwdopcm
{ provision an such non-pedorming invesiments are not sel off gaNst the app jon in respect of olhar p ng ¥
on nan-pefaming vesiments |s not recognisad in the Proit Leoss Aocount unil recaied
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2.7 Transter and servidng of assets {cont'd)

The Bank Lranslers kens thiough securifzationidirect sssgnment transactions. The ¥ansferred loans &e da-recognised when the Bank
samranders The rights lo benefils specified i he underying secuntizedddrect azsignmeant ken coelract

Cash profil aising at the lime of securitsation/sssé 1 of loan poetfclio (Premium loan fiow | dions) s aver the lfe
of the underying loar p ko and the ur e | L is disclosed as Deferred Income wilkin ‘Dmar labilges’ on the bafanca shoal

Conractual rights to receive 8 portion af interest (Unrealised profils’) arising ot e ime of secunlisation astigneent of foan portfolio
(PAR warsaclions) ks recorded at s present value and disdosed as Tlerest sinp on =ocuifsaton assgnment of loan portfolio” wilhin
Ofher 355615° on e balance sheet. In sccordance with REY guideines, the unrealised profits in msped of sxcurbmed’ amzighed foan
poetfolio that ts not due for collecion & dad ot 5 p value ard discosed s Tnlarest strip on securitisation/ sszignenant of loan
porifolic’ within ‘Other Fabilifes” on the bal sheet. | from ¥ 1 strip (i L pread) is gnised in the profs and
loss account, net of eny hsses, when redeemed in cash

2.8 Fixed assats

Fined sasels, copilal work-in progress are staled al iheir cagnal cast of acquisition less accumufaled depmciaion. Cost comprisss
purchade price and ay attributabls cost of binging e assat Lo its working condilion foe iis intended use,

Subseguent expandibare redaed 12 an tem nlpmpeny,plulwequpmemnnwwilsbookvauemﬂixmmﬂmbmem
from the axdsting asset beyond s previousty assessad standard of perk Al olher exp an g property, plant and
oquipment, Including day-to-day repair and maintenance axpandiure and cost of repiacing parts, are charged (o e profil und Kss ccount
for tha pariod during which sUch expenses e Incurmd.

Advances paid towards the acquizition of langibie assels cing at each Bal Sheet date sre dscisad 2= capilal Advances uncer
Other Ascets. The cost incurred towards 18ngibka as5ats, but not resdy for Iheir inlendad usa bafora each Balance Sheet dale is disclosed
a5 capifal woek-in-progress, ¥ any.

Gains of losses ansieg from de-recognilion of tangitie assels are meazured 35 the dilfeconce bt the ral dsposal p ds sl the
canmgmmmldtnmawmwmhhmetommwﬂwhsnn\nnmkdam

2.9 Intangible nssets

In ible assels are ar d aver thar eslimsled usadul tvas on a ghiine basis, g ¥rom the date the sssel is avaiabie
to the Bank for k= ume. Frangible 8ssals inchide compuler softaare, which is acquired, capltalized and anceizad on 8 lraight-ling basis
over the estimated useld Ma

2.10 Depreciation and amortization

Dop«xsmmmunouaameieemmma*ignmebasnmhnheremamdumdmlnmddlmoeumawm
managament. The Bank has used the following rales Lo provide depreciation on is langble assets

Tanglbl: asset description Usaful iife
Office equpments 5 yoars
Comgasier equipments 3 years
Fumbure and fxhires 10 yaars
Leasehold Improvements Qvor the paricd of lease
Intargible asseds are liead, mnaﬁnﬂﬂmbﬂs.mmemhnlmImanlnmnassﬂ'sma'lamelornawo.wetlmkrespeclhc
indnidual estimated usetul ves as estimated by (he mansgament:
Intangible asset description Uscful life
Compuler soflwere 3 years

Dapreciaiion | smonsation Is charged on a proporionale basis for al assels purchased and sckd durdng De yesr.

2,41 bnpairment of assets

The Bank assesses ot cach reparting date whether thee is an indication that an asset may be impalred, i anyincication exists, the Bark
essmales the assel's recoverable smount, An ssset's recoverable amourd is the Mgher of an asset’s ar cash-generaling unit’s {CGU)
nel seliing price and s velue in use. The bie amourd is determined foe an assel, unkss 12 855l doRs Nol ganerale
cazh iflows thal s largely dependant of thase Irom other assets or groups of assels. Were tha caening amount of an asss of CGU

ds s b L, the asest i considerad impaired and is writlen down 10 it5 recovarabie amcunt. In sssecsing value in
use, he estimated fulure cash Sows are discourted o their present vasa Using a pre-tax dscount rle ral reflects cument market
aszeszrwents of the Time value of money and the risks specific 1o tha assel. In delermining net sxling pice, moent market ransactons
are 1aken Into ancount, f avadabie. Il no sLch ransactions can be identied, an appropriate valustion maded is used,
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211 Impairment of assets (cont'd)

Imparment losses of coninuing opesalions ane recognised in the pealil and koss L After impaiement, dep: N P an
the revised canying amount of the asset over Ils remaining weful ife.
AN assassment s mads & sach reporling dale as 10 whether thers is any indicafion that dowst isesd imgal 1 logses may

10 longer cxist or may have decreased. If such indicalion exists, the bank esfinates the asset's or cazh-gensraing unil's recovemnmble
o - A previoasly "mmommlsm«mdoﬂlummhuhonnnchugehﬂwmmwmuadmmlnem
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impaiment 1055 was recognsed. The reversal s limied so hat the camying smount of the
assl does nol excend s recoverable amount, nor axceed the carrying amount hat would hava bean deterined, net of cepreciation,
had no impalment oss been recogrised for the asset in prior yoars.

2.12 Employee benefis
Expanses and labillies in respect of empioyse banelils are recorded in sccomiance with Accounting Stndard 15 Employes Benefits.
Providen! hind
The Bank contributes fo the ststulory prowdent fund of e Regicesd Provigant Fund Cammissicoar, in accordance wih the Employees’

Prenident Fund and Miscelareous Provisons Acl, 1952, Tha plan Is a defined conlribution gisn and conlrbution paid o payatde is
recognisad &3 an epense in the penod in which senvices are rendared by the employ

Grahnty

Grality is 8 post-employment benefil and is 8 defined benclt plan. The Eakidity recogrised In the Balance Sheel représents the prosent
value of tha defined benefit cbigation 8l ha Balance Shect dale kess (e fair velue of plan assels (if am), tog:ther wilh adasiments for
unmeognied acluansl gans or losses and pasl senice Coss. Ay 855 resaling from this calculition s linled to past sarvice cost,
pls the present va ue of avalabic refunds and reductions n ure contributions to the plan Independal actianes using e Propctad
wnit credit mathod cakulate $ie defined banelil obiigation annuaty.

Actuarial gaing of Sses arsing from expesi w nis and changes in it assumplons are oredind or charged Lo the Profit

and Loss Account i 1he yoar in wech such gains of 0sses artses.

Compansadod absoncas

Liabiily in respect o comp [ becoming dua or expected 10 ba susiled within cna year froe (he balance sheed dale 5

recognised on the basis of und tad value of esti d | required 10 be paid or estimated /alue of banelll expecied to be
fed by the ernpioy Ushiity/a in respect of eamed leave bacaming due o expected Lo be asalled moee than ane yesr aller

|he baknse shool date s astmaled on the bagis of sctuanal vakuation as al the balance sheet date in a ranne: simiksr 10 Qraduty lablity,

Offver shorttam benalls

Expensa in respec, of other shorl-lerm banelits inchuding perk incentive is gnised on the bases of amount pakl or payabia

Tor the period for which the employes render services.
Othar fong tarm amployee banefls- Defred cash variable poay

Aspevlheeat‘scolcy.imem:ral.dmdmmmM(‘m«ulummamdwdmwun)danyunpmdwmwl
vest 3 !e end of perfanmiance period and the remaining 0% shall be under defamal amangement.

The deferred cash variable pay has been recognised as liabiity al present vake of the defined benedt cbigation o the balance sheat
dale, 88 requied ty AS-15 on Employes banefils. The present value has been determined using actuanad aluation afer faclonng in
assumplions of atsticn and discounting.

2.13 Employee share based Payments

Equiy-sotliod schane:

The Emvployees Sixk Option Scheme (the Scheme) provides foe grant of opfices on the Bank's equity shares fo employees, ncuding
Directar and Whele Time Direciors, of the Bank. The Scherme provides that amployees may bs granted an option to subscnbe
loeqdlyshamso“l\aMMMvemmurwmuhwnaWGWNmsmwmmmmw.The
npuom.poslmlm.uybomrdsedﬁﬂha»eduodpemd.lnaa:o-dm\-uhmf‘“ Nate on A ting for Employ
Share-Dased paymerts, issusd by The Irsbtute of Chartered Accountants of India, tha cost of equils sellixd transactions has been
meﬁ.ndun'mms(alrvmmmDnuﬂsmgamlhodelumdlhokivamdwowomuowommScmduielazﬁ.
nnbivaluodhopnmdalemindasalmwmkoxpemedonad:alghﬂtnbashwwhovaﬂnnmmd.baaedonu
Bank's of 2quity ¥ 1 that will auentualy vest, with 3 coresponding cradi to Employee stk options oulstanding account.
The impact of the @vision of the criginal dany, & gnized In profit or loss such that $i2 sumu ative copense reflecs the
revised estimale, with & corespanding adjusiment to the Employee stock cplions outslanding account,
mwnmmmmwumummmmmmmmwnmm ploy P

in *Paymert Lo 30 prosvision far employee”, aqual 1o the amerized portion of the cost of kspsad option . In respect of e wlions'hﬂch
expire e the bok ing to the credit of Employee slock optiona outstnding account istranskred 10 Genaral Resenve.
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2.14 Taxes on income (zont'd}

T % copanse comprises ourent and deferred tax, Curment Incoma-tax is meazured at the amount axpecledio ba paid 1o he tax authorites
in accordance with e Income-lax Acl, 1951 enacted n India.

Dieferred income $acws reflect the Impact of timing dlleunces betwaen taxable income and fing incoma orkg g during the
current year ang reversal of timing differences of the esrfer years. Deferred tax &= meamured bagad on the tax rtes and the tax bws
or s ety d 8% al he repoting dale.

Deferrad 1ax Rabiltes are recognized for all tastle Sming ditercnces. Doferred tax aszsts are recognized for deductible liming
differancas only 10 the exient thal there is reasonatie carainly that sufficient future e wil b ble against which such
delerred lax assets can be realizad. In siluations where the Bank has unabeorbed depreciafon of canmy ‘ooaad tax losses, all defared
{ax assels are recogaized only I there 15 virtual i pported dncing that they can ba realizod against fulre
taxable profils,

Al aach reparting date, the Bank (e-33365565 unmecognized deferred lax assels. I recognizes unfecognized defered tax sssel ko the
extert #5al i has become reasonably ceran or wrivally cerlgin, 83 [he cose may e, Ihat sufcient future faxabhk income will ba avatable
agsnet which such detemed tax assels can be reaized

The carrying amaunt of defarrad tax 3356ls 8ra ravewod 2t aach reporting date. The Bank wiiles-down he carrying amounl of deleerad
tae el (0 the extent 1hat it 5 no longer reasonably ceaEin o vitualy cansin, as the case may be, thet sullicieal fulure laxabie income
will be availabio against which deforred lax a5l can ba regized Any such weite-down s reversed to the exent thal it becomes
10880NaY cortain or virtally oarain, 3 ta cas5e may be, that sufficient future taxable income wil be awilable,

Deaferred l3x a2ools and detarad tax lablities are olfsat, f 8 legally enfarcaabie nahl exists to sel-all cuvent 18x 85585 agains!t curment
Lax lisbilties and the deferred tax assets and defered taxes relala 1o the sama laxable entity and U same taxalion authority,

2.15 Forelgn currency lransacions
It recoguion

Foesign curmency 1@nNsactions are recorded in the repariing currency, by agplying 1o the fareign currency anount the exchange mate
betwesn tha reporing currency and e foreign currency & Me date of the fransacion.

Comversion

Foreign curency monelary ilems are reportod Using Iha closing rate as a the Batanos Sheel gate. Non-monetary Hems which are carred
n 1orms of historica cost denominaled in a foralgn currency are seporled Lsing the exchange mie al thedate o the ransaction.

Exchange oViennos
Exchange differencs arising on the setloment of manetary fems of on repeing Bank's monetary bome at rales differant from those at
which Iy ware inkally recorded during the year, of reported in pravious financial s, e grised as oF A5 openses

in I year in which they arise.

2.16 Provisions and cantingent liabilities

A provigion (8 secognised whan an ererprisa has 8 prasant ablig 25 a resull of a past event and 1 is pobable that an cutflow of
reawtcnswlbnrqu'radwmmowwnmmdmmammemﬂmaemmm.Pvummnoldacoumd
to their preant vake and sre datamingd based on best eslimate raquired 10 sellle the obligation =t the balance sheet dala. These ae
raviewed at each halance sheet dale and agjusted 1o refact e cusrent best estimales,

A confingent liabiity is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existenca vall be confirmead by [he cCONTENca of Hon-
occurrence of 0ne of More uncertain fulurs evants bayand tha control of e Bank or a prasent ctligation that 1s nol recognised because
il is not probakie that an outflow of resources will ba raquired 1o settie the obligation. A confingent Tabilty also anses n extremely rare
c6565 whare there is a Estdity hal caneot be recognised because i cannol be measured relably. The Bark doss nol recognize a
coetrgent liabilly but discloses ks adsience in the financial stalements.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Barrawing costs thal sre alvidutabin to the acqusition andfor constiuction of qualiling assets are capdsised a3 pewt of the cost of such
sssets, in sccordance with Accaunting Standard (AS) 16, Borowing Costs, A qualifying asss! i one (hal nacessanly takas a substantial
pariod af ime to get ready for ils inlended use. Al olher borrowing cozts are charged W the prolil ard loss account 2 incurred

2.18 Earnings per sham

Baai:mingspcrﬂwoscalwuedbyavidhglhmlpmfnnrlossfovMmuwmloqumuﬂum
attributable laxes) by v weightod avarage number of equity sharee oulstsnding dering the yaar. The weghled average number of ooty
shares oulslanding during 1ha year is ad for events of borus Esue; bonus alement in a rights Esue (o exisling shareholdiers; share
+pil; and revarse share sphil (consolidation of sharas)

lehuwpoeoolcolwldhgdmdminpwrm,imndmﬂluhmhhmdwmwequllymmmm
weighted average of shares oulstanding during the paricd are adjasted for the efacts of all diutve potential equity shares,
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2 19 Transaction cost

Tranadclion sosta (icleding loan criginalion cosls) are incremanial costs thal ane direcly sliibulabie i e pequisition of share capilal
ard fingrcial ablites. Tmrsaction cost inclides Teas paid to edvisors and leies by requisiory BRancs, induding lawes ard e
Trangaclion costs incunred fowanda:

i |asuance ol share caplial and debenbures js expansad 1o tha profit and loss aceaunl.
i, Arquisition of bemawings I8 expansed b0 the profit and loss account in Bhe year in which they we incared.

2,20 Leases
Cparating kaases

Luases whens e Ber effectivaly relains substantialy all the risks and benelits of cwnership of fhe leased 18, ara cassfied os
aperaling leases. Operaing Kase payments are recognised a3 BN expensa in the Prafit and Loss Account on & sinight-line basis aver
1he lesse tamn

.21 Cash and cash equivalonts

Camh and cash aquivalants for tha purposes of cash Tkee slstemant comprses of cash in hand, kot wilh REL bl wilh other
beeris ared meeery 8l call and shorl nofice.

223 Segment raporting
The disesire ralaing 0 sagment infarmalion is in scoordancs with A5-17, Segmenl Reporting and = per quideines isseed by FEl

Butzingss segments have been identified and repaced laking into acoounl, the cesiomer prodls, b nalmeof products amd senvices. the
differing risks and rurms, e organtsation siruiure and ihe guidelings prescrbed by REIL The Bank openstes 0 the Tolkeirg segments:

gy Treasury

Thie wesrsury segment primarily consisis of enlire invesimenl porifolie of the Bank

0 Gomporaleifialesake barking

Whakesale barking includes all advances Lo companies and slalulory bodies, which are iol ieluded unier Relall hanking.
¢} Retal banking

The retail banking segment serves relail cuslomers through the branch network. Expedures & o classifies under retail baming taking ina
accaunt the slals of he bamower [ofanlalion crierian), the nature of product, granulanity of the expesure and he quanium thamod.
Reenues of the el Bankieg sogment are primardy derived from inleresl and fees eamed on etal lnans, leres) on deposils plhaced
an colateal wilh benks ard fnancal instiutions, Expanees of Tis segment primarily comprise infenes! aepanss on borowings, depedils,
infrasiruciure and mremisas axpenses: for opsaling tha beanch netwark, persoresal e and othar dires! owerheads,

Sinpe the business operations of the Bank are primariy concaniraled in india, ihe Bark is consdend o oparale onky 0 tha domesdic
i, s
) Mo
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04 - Capeal

A Cophalto sk Vighied Asset Ratk (CRAR)

Tha fobowin iatve mets fosth, bor fhe yuses b Lation of caplisl i por e REBIg: { Feal Iy

s As
Poivbvs 31 Mach 2921 21 March 2029
Carmmon equity S | capital tin (%) M0 2346%
Tiat & copital rabo %) M0 2346%
Ther 2 copid rafo %) A.65% ans
Total Capital Rl o (SRAR| %) 25.56% _29ae
AMourt of ity ol ssed (DO NG thavo premaam} . GA2
Amouni of Additional Tier 1 copitel rosed; of which:
Pometual Nen Cumutatan Frolroncn Shasss (PNCFS) . -
Fompotual Detst Irgmusmmats ('04) . -
Amcunt of Tiee 2 capkal ralsed; of whiofc
Outt coplol batruments (dhosunied vahie)' 13,000 17.020
Preforence Sham Cagatal Pempetual C Shans (PCFSY Radeomatie Nan . -
Cymaserbon Prides: oz Sraas (RNCPSY (& F Eheres (RCPSH

| Subardinued deld (corgigdesed I Tier 7 caplhal) ostatanding as & 51 Masch 2021 s € 20,000 ik (S5 Macch 2020 ¢ 20,000 bihs)

B Capital Whsicn
Mu.‘l'ﬂl0M3|mm2‘.mmh-mhw“|(3‘ March 2009 7,174 500). Deltuts of muviar el i P pokd up eqaly sham capdal 4 a3
bebow

As 0131 Morch 2071 As ot 31 Morch 2029
e Equiy Stares __ Aresunt (7) Equly Ssares Sewour €]
Equity shares 3 e teghrng of Fa yuir 03610451 361 46455 961 n
AIion gusuant 1o equity thares Issved dang he - . 7474 500 nr
yoa
Equity shaces cutstasding at the nod of S yeor TTRRBIAR W1 [ERSEEEL [
16.2 - bnastmonts
The fotiowing fabes sels S, for 180 pains inds the detabs ol and the 0 oowis om M) Ioments SUCoiation on insestiments of fin Bank
A of ang n pr ks degeeciation on
b of As 3l
St 31 Marcn 2025 31 Wiweh 3030
o) Valus of iovestmonts;
1) Groees widun of Imcsimarts
#l o W2 es 100,704
b} Outakon Irafia - .
e ITTISY 100.70¢
¥} Provision for dopreciation
o} Inlndin o 5
b Ouics Inety p ¢
[e) [UR
i) Net vl of invesiments:
&) Inirdi 127,908 w0008
B) Outside nda - a
127,858 050
) of Pl lomards ! on
1) Oparing babanie L] .
i) Ade Prowshn made durng e yeer 3 L]
i) Less: Wrike 0l MTle back of eorssa proveesn durieq the peor {81 .
v} Closing blsrce 3 []
Catogery wise dataile of {net of prodsion for sonl:
T e 3T Haroh 3600
HYN AFS HTH S
) Goremmant secxies L . ERRaT] LR AL
W) Ot approved secuiing - 3 -
M) Shaces - R .
W) Diebwtriunics a0 bonds - a -
v) Satcdchanies an dOr joist venhres . - -
wi) Othwars - - - *
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Tri - Party Repo | Reverss Ropo
Menimum
Maelsum Daily Averape
Pertcsters g heyeor oy oussedng curvg e 733 UTEE
the yea 2020-21 yus 202021
02011
Boaurities sokd undar revarss repe’
L Gowmment soouties smr 40,626 npn 5307
i Coporale dele securbies - - c -
Socurilies perchivsed under revarse rups’
i Oovemment sourtios 2% 132519 LN 20533
1. Coponats dels secinises - 2 -
Winkeimm Micimum Cally Avarnge r o ai
Pariouars owring v yeor during during 5034 Mareh 2020
2"“.’ Ihe ynar 201520 your 201820
Securite seld andar rrvieso rego”
I Govemmant sacuises - Mz asr o087
1L Corporats ched! sscert by . - - .
Secuilihes purctased under reverse repo’
& Geverriment seculbes 135,530 (bt 85503

i Corperale dobd soourbios % z

1 FAivouia iopored aro bazed o e vansm of wecurlan Under Hopo and Roserss ANpo

Qualitative disobsure

Trs Bark appiiod %0r he sagment of Repaitesare 1o pos! secoipt of schedeled bank Scarme from u REL and 90! the approval 151 o sk engment. Tha Eank

16 commencad the fnpo and Aeverse reps cperaion walt 071 fagus! 2019 er requisse coliamal oed defaut nds wees b placy

Tiw socuibos providediolotied % the Mark i date for raverso apo #750280ns arm a1 kssund by Gavermment of g n a0 form of goessrensol secushes, ating

% bords and T8

C.  NonSLR imostman ponfolis
) leauiy Compos tion of Kon-S1LR mastmants

A5 91 the yeor oreod 37 March 2021 and 31 Masoh 2020; them am no ing Nen - BLR Area i
&) Keevporforming Non-SLR investmants
Duirg the yoar ended 31 March 2027 sead 31 Mareh 2000 there are no non g 7 Non - SLR il

D. Sde and Transhr to¥eom NTM Category
Dusing the yeesr sndad 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, there win me 3 sbe ard bl to¥rom HTM calegory.

183 - Dartvatbeis
Dustng $1i year eaded 31 Naech 2021 and 31 March 2020, e Bank has ot wmy sihon s 3 005 Bom s al the yesr
ondl Heace, refated % fory (iderest rate swop 203 exchange ynced ienst 1o derdvatios om not provided,

184 - Assol qualty
A Noapesforming sssats'

Tro foloaing tabin mobs fosh, for 16 yasns ho detads of I esets (NPAs), rel NPAs mod provsors.
Ax ok Asal

Paitatos 51 March 2021 31 Moroh 2028
(1} Not NPAS 10 Het Advarnces (%) 8% o4%
(1) Merouimmnt &f NPAS (Gross)
(] Opening suece 441z 3580
(o] Ackiicns duing o your W2 TAX3
() Redwetions dring the yoor AB25 6550
(d} Chosing takoe B 4412
1) Movarmt of Net NPAs
() Openting bakince 1§70 %50
() Ackd Bms durn e yeor 15012 4538
(€] Redusars dxing the year PAL 3513
() Chosing bakroe 1441 1978
") of pi for NPAS wdlrvg provision on msots)
(ah Opasing batrse 1497 2840
(b Proveion made dorng e ywar 21,108 4840
() Wiide o ariie toack of eainss growkien sa7 4509

Closing tabyrce 20,518 2497

hwm_hwﬂmnmvm-lmmm
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0. Partosers of accoasts sestiuotured 1af Ihe par andad 31 Narch 2024

Type of Rentructenieg Urcer COR Mactanism Under SNE Dutt Résactuning Nechanism Cthwera Tout
St Bub
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S I — % @ T E e - i
o
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fared stanSied CNNLYY  Amourt - - n - . s A . . - - - - -
BUring e year - - .
s D . - - - - . - - - - ) - - - .
o - -
R sardae  ho o ~ a = = - = . = e r = = " o
advarces whlch cesat ¥ Eyooer o - o . e > - - » o = _ a = - -
aracs Nghee pooaisioning
w00/ or yodtioel rigk % re - = " - - e = - - T - - -
welptalIe erd of e .
year 3ad rence need rot be
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1811« Seciorowiie ddnences

P A5 91 39 Worch 101 Fa w31 weh 2830
Parsentage of Peroertage of
Cutatanciog Grovs KPAS 1 Outstanding Groms NPAs to
Toa Ausscas COIPRE e svarces Tewl Agvarces  OTPRNPR ) sovances
N than 3ecTor N I secte
Aty S
AQVae V0 3RO SChVes 21012 10482 B2 08 any 0%
B & vl Fameer 237 403 14229 a2e% a6 1238 DA%
AroadreCarers L ez anen 0665 D:; ’2271:
P P 05 3606ty 1e00er hnsng EH 1 10ET% 16 570
Saraoe e 2m 7N EEEER Y WSS a9 085%
Parond i e e 120,267 A am 06 Eo Doe%
Suooul () LIaFii N T L 52 =
0. Non Prizrty Sector
AGrostre ard sl et i £ AN T . 0cen
ndery 1,953 17 14T 183 I60%
Sarices 6991 © 100% 1 26%
Persoapi iGers. bl b 3 R3] s neTes 1%
Sutstow (2) S > 4 S ) 77,
Total |4*8|

1 Geoms ol preencn on Gronx NPA T 20 510 lakna (31 March 2015 2 2,407 ko)
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Patcuan Querted ended Quarted ended Qeerted ended Cuartec srdec Tuarted ended
2 Jure 2020 32 Septemder 31 Dacenter 37 March 2021 31 Narch 2020
20 ww
Tetal Total Weighied Tatal Totsd Weigy Teos Toud Verighied Toead Tosal Welghtzd Towl Tow Weighaad
Uerawighned Vabae * Lrrweighasg Valso " Vel * Uswegiied Valoe* Urseightsd Vol *
Vit Vduw * L Vakae " fwsarson Vahe* (worrman) Valse* (xerree)
dassrenel

) Tonsd High Guaily g Assets (HOLA} NA 30 A 1A hA e NA 107468 MA 141 572
Caxy cutflzwn - - - - - - . - - -
2Rl eooits and deoasta Pem aTall Buaneo aslones, of whift .
- 518 depcalds . . - - - . . - . -
~Lass satls depouty 2e00% 24810 04T 27047 e »n TR0 12N wWasaT 3054
) Uspaoured wholale Liading, of which: - -
=K kl  jad L B (IR 10 aan e oo 5337 ey HETe 0av
N3 . - > % . A < A . 5
=Unoecres det - - - - . - - - -
<) Baond Mo facng 0.8 80 WA wae e 255 100 st 18803 a9
51 A338aal mgsremanhy, of ntich - - - - - - .
» Cuthires et aied 1 O g ctwe
- Outtows relaied 12 lotx of Lndag a9 dide poSaes . - - . - - - . - -
=~ Cragit ang Wity teclities s 4 19 2108 a7 a8 28 e nn e
) Crrer contramuel funeing sbigetons - - - - . - - . * X
7] Ctrar Sontingat! Sndng cigatere . 5 g . o s . < - .
) Tedst Cont Outfiows. NA AN NA 13 wA 10.L665 NA R e42 MA R
Cash Wioas
4 Secured ending |63, Swerss 1moe) s ' S50 - .04 . o - e -
10) wfows Fom Ly geronming Saaosres nraz m 6o i paAs ) 13668 ESRE (LA mne m
11) Qe cush rfkown AL e 15246 12255 s 583 e 2494 a3z M
12) Totsl Cash irrfones nuLree a8y samn 1550 122220 1nsn 1"awt wnm 0475 BN
13) Tots! MOLA NA 208342 NA 17300 A 20220 NA 197408 NA. AERF- T
14) Total Net Caany Oatfiows NA. s e NA 10159 NA. 2008 NA A NA $#00
13) Ugnd ity Coverage s (%) NA, 241.22% NAL TR NA e NA, 2a100% NA Pl

“The $usonsrs b arhepd txidag It 3czoant o rple sverage of sach of e e fn of LOR comaenents over 50 daps of aach qearier of yedr o 31 Wareh 2001 4r0 31 Mareh 2020, 17 cOmat g P abrve Irioersaden, Soti ESSANOINS B0J LISTEER bave Sean Tade

by P management atich Raue bass rdad LUpaT By e asciies.

Quaizariee Dinciseuen arcens LCR

48] the mak devers of their LOM reacity ond the cvahrbon of 1he soriniasBos of 14 fAns 10 1he LLK'S Cacuanan over time

Thw Sk baa adceted e Sacel 11
RNdam

o lawioty

by e RN for pating LER. The ahesthve of LCR 5 20HuTe 1AL e SO0k mursana ) Ace3sne aiack of srancurbuned HOUA 1 SUVRE 3 Ggitant | Ruidiy arees el og for 8 pesad of
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(AT wmouThs i 2 s eetupt aberws SIaN)

1512 « LUQuidty Soverage oo (contd)
Quattathes Otschaswa rownd LR (cont'd)

(B) Intra gericd changes aa well 33 hanges cver frne

The LR 1 cakelnne by SWicing e amount of Mgt Cuaiy Licukd cnascarbeses Addaty (HOLA] by e £S3YAISE 168 G0 OUTOWS Goa” 3 STeases 20 calercia day petad a3 per M 531 O Mriven LCR tor amafl Bnance barks 5 100% by 31
Javaary 221 2rd 2% by 01 Jorwayy 2020,

The ewieis SUR nas bost rechared e HIALA ouer 30 € aboes the mandatory basks markat vabat wity ¢t fron 1 Oonter 2018 0o 3 contanad v batie.

TR U amepand s U TGaN -

HOLA COMEraes of 002h 8 NINE, 8ess CRR, sesess SLR pacustx rmasirmum kuadty ety ibowd by L0 M55 under Manpral Smandag Faciity [MSF) anc Facity to Avil Liguaty & Uesidty Coverage Rafo [FALLER)

Tra ret caad oufions sre asoluied by aosyng e RS pr » fa vareus bl et |fapodts. s hovieg g o, el gerd MSOLES, DONIafy OONAL Dy WIGWS PO SEpeta reataneg Wit 50 y3
|} cencertration of fusding sourcex
Trie maje sources o Andng Ix tere dasses by setef cxairrars i wirl &b S99 wd reeance nd BRC,
Mumazzn for LEN 11 enoens of miniosum regelaiony maucamant are ae foliowe:
The LER perzariage i sbove $a svenn Braihold [redofbed for Smal Fnancs Rarks atich incicatas corrortse My profic.
b n

* Az per to ROIgrdeink W mevrers LOR regead 1 02 N Sark gt Fon ) Januay 2016 25 pven balaw
By Jesuary 1, Aaary 3. ] By ey 1. Janzary 1,

| Yoar i Cecamter 31,2017 | #7 e i = ey

L W L W I Ry

(%) certvarten exponares and polestisl colistersl oty

NSt azgdoatie

0 curmercy mismatch (n 12 LCR

Noe

fsha of the degree of Faatinn of Byuieiny e and betwaen the growp's writs

ot acoicase

() cther nfows and cutiows In fie LCR oscuietinn Mhat o nat captersd le e LOR conmon tamplate Sut which the ke Ita liguierty prefie

het appicate
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W ne stwled)
1813 - Exposren
A Exposuro to Rl Eslate Sector
The Bark has n expoaiss of ¥ 5205 lakha as o 31 March 2029 {31 Mo 200 - € 2,054 hicha) 1o Raal Estide Sackr,
5. Expoauns 1o cipil sl arkat
A 0 31 Mordh XI21 a0 39 March 2020, e Gark doms nat harve any aspasuse 5 cagtal mankal.
C. Risk catopory viso country sxpasun
The Sank's psponures s concumtudes n ks oy, B noe courkry S5 eeposwe s of 31 Nowch 2021 s 31 March 20004 N
0, Detalie of sirgo borrowar bt [SGLY group Borrower mit (GIL) oxc eeded by the Esnk
During thee yoi wndied 31 March 2021 and 31 Mach 2020, e Bak’s ored| gap W g b ard g worn wilhis B kit
pisecsbod undu the catont RBI guideines.
E. Unsecured adances

Thae Eask hia ro! any whete the w55l sudhh 36 @ Charge over rights, Roensos. auhorzatans, ok, The ussecund
advences of TOG41 bk (31 Mach X090 !3MNW-|&Mh MMOBMUOW-!V&-I-:—W

F. Inlra group exposure
The sk doe snat hiree 2imy I group stviress, hence ifns grusp 0ot a5 3L 31 March 2021 arg 31 March 2000 & W

18,14 - Obclowurn o Penalins iogosad by the RBI
N0 penadies hawo bein linded &0 1ha Bank By he RE! durng (he yoor ended 31 March 2023
Apmwuunuumm-lmmmwuammmwmo‘msmmmmnomwnmzsmmlsm
seceu of 2 Saghe Nslance of SGL bonce o 100 2010 mare tken bry the Bonk indemaly 0 provend suchy
TGLN0ES oM BoTUnence.

1615 . Employos benalits

A Gratuty
Trae Bark hic a dufived tamefl grosy plan. Eviry anployes wie has comphaled e poaes o more of sonvion 15 eigtie foe grasuly sn caescabon of
omplesont ant t s compuded ot 16 daye exdey (el deswn ssksry) 01 Gach compioted pear of cenvion. The scharme & nded wih st Fiurancs cospang 0
0 fom of 3 galfyng Nsuraros pofcy.
Tre Mooy e of net Lonaft expenso mcognisnd i Pa Mofl nad Loss scccunt ard the kndod stalus and amounns
wnmwauwummm

Year enced Yuour onced
b 31 March 221 31 Mareh 2029
Thae amounls seogrised in tha Profit and Loss account aro me fcliows:
Senvioo cost xn anr
Imasest cost &1 45
Expecied retrm on plon sesehy (99) Q9
Nt acty iriadgaln on phas sesels {1 wa
Paet servicncost 1 1)
Exponse recogrisad i the Profil and Less acooent 164 a4
Asar As ot
vy 35 Mason 2021 31 March 2020
™ o oihe Sheat ae 25 foliows:
Prossan vats of e obégason as of he end of the year 195 1068
Fak vilos Ofpten assemn o3 3 the end of o yeor 103 (1
Nt liah ity recngnined s the Balasce Shoat ur an
Charges In 1 peesent vaue of defined beselk obigation;
Detsed bend cbiigation 3t he bagnng o he ywsr s €11
Sorvice oot R 37
Wierost cont o &%
Ackosf gor (e 118
Benedts pak A} B3
Defined bone® oblgation al the end of the year 1,196 06k
Changos In the 1air vakm of plan axsets:
P valie W3t Baginning of ihe year 647 143
Eapactind sudarn 00 phan s o ® 20
Arhur! Gaehass) o) "
280 W00
Emmprages doct benaft payments 38 -
Eene®s pak B4} (33)
Adnin erpisestixces poud from plan st (L)) (1)
Fair vikee a5 & the ond of the yeor 1230 BT
Assumptions ised i the above walusions e s under:
Désconr rox 887 s0a%
Expectnd mbm on plan waaets 603% TA2%
Future sodsey iscrescn 1000% 11.00%
Anibon esla 000% WO0%
Fouk riment ige [yRars) &0 Yrs ) Yes
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(AR AMoUNs In € Lk oce(e cthienal ve slided)

18.45 » Employe binelits (cosk'd)

Experience adusimonts;
Partizulars Your anded Vear aded Your ented Yoar anded Yoar unded

31 March 2021 SIMFONZ0Z0 M March 2018 31 Mareh 2018 M March 2017
Culrne beneintigation 1,166 1,068 & 7 200
Plan assus 1069 BAT 142 144 135
Excess\Defict) 147 o AGE s 65
Exparience adjstreects on 22 1 (L] 0 23]
Tabtiiies - gain (loas)
Experience o i (L} 1 o (U]
ase - (gavn) toss

. Defined contrieution glen

Thae st mdock COOTUNG 10 the stabdory provident fund ax por lhe Employmas’ President Fonds and Mscolirecy s Provsions Act 1062 Tri b & dafeod

feade during Ina yoar onded 31 March 2021 amountecio ¥ 1278 whis {31 March 2020 -2

phan as per )15 Cx

1067 biche)

C. Comparaatadabsances

The ackarl Bty 1 eepost of pribign Save Gakid 3 empoyeis of Ho Bank 2nd culstancng as al 31 Manch 2021 & ¥ 1,000 Wita (39 March X0 ¢

T i)
As o ot
Assumptions sod in tha above wkilioes ar 3s under: 3 March 2021 31 March 2020
Dissount rale SETH S0%
Tl sbwry b rsise 00 1.00%
18.16 - Provision svd eontingoncies
Proveson s s kegen cos secognsed in the Pt and Loss accourt somprisn:
Yaar onded Yeaor endec
Ptichioee 31 Macoh 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Provieson foe kcoms bee
-~ Qument fax 6,960 LA
- dedoned Sae (rodk) ke sctefis 13,30} 12632} [80)
< MAT cond etitlonand - 1,00
Proviion for shndond aesats. 12979} 2.0
Prowiscn for nevperfonting ss0ls (nokides bad detes writes of 21,130 4407
T 3303 lekhs 51 Woech 20200; T 4,544 b
Provision for deerechtien in vidaa ol b . 3
Prowkson o e anmats (sebur schedubs 16 48) 181 (o]
Provision for ueadged Seegn cunncy Gapiase . *
Provision for ountry rek . 3
Provison for gher conkrgen cs 189 {738
26134 YN
1817 - Floatieg prwviascn
Darieg tha yaa endod 31 March 2021 and 31 Nesch 2000, he Bt was not esed any foating provision
1618« Draw downfrom resorves
Db e year €ndad 31 March 2021 and 31 Masch X000, thers wers ro drivadoen fom reserves.
1619 - Disclosure M Gomglaints
A Comtamer sompliants
Yo codad Yeur ended
R 3 March2021 1 Maech 2020
)} No. of comininty pareting o Ba bageang of he yoar b} 7
(b} Mo, of comizents e had diskng the pear 418 01
(] N of complaints sedsscad during the yoir 451 469
(0} Mo, of comssdnts. pening o Ba end of the yeor [ »
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18.19 - Disciosure o complaints (coal'd)
B, Lowards posied by the Banking Ombucsrman

Yeour anted Yoar ondod
Particulars 31 March 021 31 Morch 2020

{2) No. ol urdrgsarsomad dncads i he begonng of he yoar

{b) No. of awcs passond (g e Baeking TRussmen dwing the e
(€3N0, of s rgisinied duricg the you

{d) No. of urimgsmantod smvirds o 10 end of the yoar ]

oo

RN

C.ATN reated complaings

Your coded Yo ended
Partiou s 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(] Mo, of compaiits pending al the Segianing of the pesr 2 ’

(L} No. of compaints re ceived dusng ha yoie 13 104
(0] No. of campa s rosressod csrg B i 15 02
(d) 80, of comzaints pending al tes snd of B i — F3

Th sdsorve infoesabon bs as cortiod by the Moragement and nebsd upcn by the sudiions,

13.20 - Letar of condoet

Thi Bark. has ot issued ket of oormfor during Bo peee ended 31 March 2021 and 31 Masoh 2000,
13.21 - Insurance bastoas

The fosy et conmbsion eired in tespedt of fund bvobing b

Paeticulin ASt ol

31 March 2021 31 March 2029

Neanso 12 soiing 1 rsuroecn polthes
Iconse from sding son e euance polche
hrconsa from sding muwal lnd prodect

"RE
&

18.22 « Overscas Asels, NOAs and Ravenus

Tha Bark does not Botd any ovesseas axaibs | NPAS as al 31 March 2021 and 31 Mach 2020 and tiso ro were underaken dering the
YEO, HONCE reranse Form o nveds opaneien in' NI

1623 . Off BalamoeShoet 5PV Sp o (which sre reguined to be ldoted a5 por q noems|
Trare e no of halanos sheet SPYs sponsond by e Bark, sdiich 00 ods 0 be 05 par 20 o 31 Masch 2021 and 31 March
2000,

1624 - Disclonurn w Remunes ssion
A) QualHative dischs ures

(al reiating to the et tate of the Cammitiee,

The a1 den Commiice {NRC) of e Boad is 1o maen bady thal sels the pincp oand gor f of he
remusesbon (ehey Md ako msists the Eoard 1o AR & vl by (4l rarhon poicy and mwmuwmuumbu
Eark and lndviual parormance,

As 00 31 Mam 2021, he NRC had dour members of shich firee are The of he e

Appoiim eol ol Dectons o e Doend, wrskasision of hoe o the mmmwmmumm
u:.hwkm&cthmmwmuFthmuvmmmwmmuummwlw Midortal ik
Tssors (VRT) M tha Bank,
uhmlnnummmmmmm~wvhwﬂlmmm’m.mmw“d~mu—-ﬂnnocm
The Bank cbd i take 1y advinn fom o0 any Mox of or P yoor ancled 31 Masch 2071

Scopo of the Bank's semunaiotion policy (6.0. by OgONE, businmes k|, chadig Be exiet 10 which it is app! to forelgn diathes and
[ 1

anohas
|hwmmotmoua.wnsya-m-umwmm.mnmnmmnamlmm-mmmnm.

wuwammmdsmhm-l
of the Bank, o Mo Whiate Thnie Direcors, Ghisl Excoutve Offcer. MHRT, Gonicl fuscton stad and O, ore covered
mmm The oty sumber of parmrarnot rghryos of o Bk 35 ot 31 March 202 1 were 8388 somp lopes

10) Infoereation relating to the design and of o
Key s 0y of " p&vmmmmmmeuﬁnm»ﬁnnﬁc folowes] IRIMUNA RN practics s
memnmmwmamm The € pmhmnmmw

By PRI wek red it RENAD 320083 DOR Agpt BC No 2329 47 001/2019-20 duned 04 Noweriber 2019 (e RBIg

The Romunsction policy of 1 Bank is designod with 3 view o

L e that e level and composiion of romunertbon & 0 ko with olher companies 0 the nausty, sufcent to alract s 1ot fght lakost, ot o levels and
Meep tham mobeaing sncush to me the srgon kasonal objedhes

L envirn that 2 Bulenca B Mol teyms of ol udan, both,

. park e Shod - fued and variabio oo mp cnonks

b e horzoriekng ~ mmndiale snd leng Senm (et n Com ponents

. Eraune thatromuneraben s Inked 1o reien o rok playod By tha Indviiuat in the Bark {le., Whoks Tams Desciors, Cail Excoutive Ctioer, MRT, Conbol
Luncion da¥ o Oy}
Efiecive ol

15 KNP a5 well s MKT,
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A srmcrerrts i ¥ Rdkhsseacupt olharwies 2kbed)
16.24  Digslosure on Remwnerasion (sontd)
A) Qualitative lacloauna |conl'd)
The Remumormion pokcy of the Bank ik designod with o viee 0
of ¢ phy with prosent risk taking: Wale s Dk seeics §5 ncbvm 3 rede of foond el variabi: reeunerabon that i prodead,
& curentty has iesigned he isTnerian compostion bazad on rel of fo dekdid n B Bek,

“For Whate Tire Direciors, Chief Cxocutve Offcer and MR, o busbarcesd combinetion of Eeed and sardabie piry (inmediale ond delemod) & used
For Cortrot hachon stafl s Oy, Ihi prodomnant componant is w0 pay and varobie pay & used $r sesart ng porfamanon,

Abs, P e rason af esipeo is it fnancial and risk conbol s rot inked a0 sofety dapencts oo ther mdicusktepans ot
qualty and perfemance 9oal achievemet The Bork soshs 1o shgn samnnecation with frandal and non- fnarcid pafossasce ndeaton,

Whothar the i L Weed B0 Bank's 5 poficy during the past year, and | 8o, an ewirvow of sy changes that
wore made: The R Met e Ead ol he Bank's palcy. The pobcy was revised I Jure, 2020 1o tbeng e same n e wilh e
IS s lriees and Squzeirednd By Ba NRC / Boand

mumdmnmh‘mmm“ | b of e they i

in conrol mxmwc«ummmwuw 1" A0l s o0 levksdd

ammumm

(&) Dascriptionof the ways s which currant and feturo risks are takon Into Inthe b
mdhlqrhhnhhmﬂnlm whan h i ation The Board o o ceeeal sak

¥ TS Imis, ok, Tha Bank conducts al Is bushiess actviles i s Famework, !mmmw\)m
mmonan w:rmmmmmmmwwm coneddors adterencs o the poloss and scodegly make s
FECOIMNENIBNSE 10 the Board,

matnmmwummmdbmmﬂnnm. including risks diflizull to measare: The evakiation process
P bah qu aspeds rehidisg muly,mmnnmhmmm rednemaraimprovemant ol he
lwm o e and y of by

ek

Ly

Discussion of e ways In which Tose momsuros stect mmuneRicn. hmnummldmmm prudent pRctices, 0 aditon to
Dusinees perforancs, e NIRC takos bulo socound to harak snd

Distusaion ofhow tha nature and type of theen mossures hawe thargod over (he past year and esons for the chanpes, 3s wall as the impact of

on W e of new pobcy i B wilh R guade s, Ihare & graaner anphacis os knking varable pay of
wmmmmmmwumamm-ahu-m-mmm N30, B ehements of Deteml, Mous 2nd CRwtosk have tosn
adopiad for WTD and MIRT,

(4] Desoription of tha ways In which the Bank seeks o Sk preiornance dering & peefonmnanos sumas e enent poriod with levels of remuneration

Overview of nain performance metrizs for the Sesk, top level b fines and The man p malsce nchidn st inibh
tutness growh, Sssel quaky, profcaity, nd ovies, A bl qeottent s ouslomer-cenaidly.

of how of are inkxd 10 e Bank-wide and P The of ey I
townd on paerea s We. Bk kel goals, functional goals, nd T p d weigttage of

Parfenmance prasctors for MAT is Bank goaks - 20%, Funssonal poak-4né, Competency Ratihg - m-umdnw m

{6) Dicussior of tha Bank's policy on deforral and vosting of varksbio romuneeation anc, # the fracton of wirlsk semuneration ot is defored
dithers acioss wap of greups of 5 a L ummmmmmemmwvm.nm Fo pur puley,
W gurwrd, AUY of mon cash vk pay (wherever dpplcobie) ond cosh vivistie pay fwhero 1 " of my doy0u of he Bk
shald sest of #u and of performance genod and the reeaining HI% shal by snder celeesl srrangemnt. MGMNMIMNB'MMMN
ond of porarrence pencd. The deferral stk to on % pio-rata asks Lo 1/308 of defemed comgonant and shal vest 1 the end of ea:h year for e neat fiss
yroars Viesting Sal bhe sk o0 4 ey dast aler 0 proper assesssent of periormonce by he NRG 208 ndpsimerts G o msds tased on ache s,

Discussion of he measeres e Dank wil in goneesl w0 addjest s in U event that performancs medrics are weak, Including the
Bank's ertoria for detormining weok pariormance modrics : The vrisbis compensaben paid 83 Whela Tina Dircotors, Chied Exacutive Offcer and MRT =
Wkod 1o achirement of ek el gaoks and nctond goas As per palcy. n fnanc) thMMwmmnh
mn.mmmnmmuum w&mmmmmldmmmm be for n
vasatin comparsation, the NRC may take a decision on the percet of beed on So Faur Sfomed westing malus and
chanbiack shalnammwmwynupmdmhnm:\ Ol Exvcative Offcer and MRT 1o aoitale adusting remurantion b= the
rrennl fhent perfomearion mstrics
Description ofthe wiys n wiich b Bonk Seeks 10 2djust remuneation 1o take account of the longer term perk o

00 e ot of g Serm poriormance & inchaded 1 he Virkatle Pay philosopty. Varistle Puy shal barve & mis of cssh ard nos cash components Sor Whols
Tirto Directoos Chief Esncetan Ofosr snd MAT. For other ampbeynss, aigbilty foc nen <aah varkaths pay shal b determaed by hie NRC on a css 3 cse
taanks The o6 cesdy comparand shal be b the fime of S Optiors. As ger policy, I general 40% of nan caeh varable pary twheravie apgsicatie) and <oy
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ANNEXURE VI: ILLUSTRATION OF BOND CASH FLOWS

lllustration of Bond Cash Flows

Name of the Issuer

Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Face Value (per security)

INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh)

Issue Date / Date of Allotment Issue Opening Date: June 15, 2023

Deemed Date of Allotment: June 15, 2023

Date of Redemption

Redemption Date / Maturity Date: December 15, 2028

Tenure

5 (five) years and 6 (six) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Coupon Rate

10.75% (Ten Point Seventy Five Percent) per annum payable monthly

Frequency of the Coupon Payment | Monthly

with specified dates

Day count convention

Actual/Actual

INTEREST PAYMENT AND REDEMPTION SCHEDULE

CASH FLOWS DATE FOR COUPON/ REDEMPTION NUMBER OF AMOUNT
BECOMING DUE DAYS
Coupon Payment 15-Jul-23 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Aug-23 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Sep-23 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Oct-23 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Nov-23 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Dec-23 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Jan-24 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Feb-24 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Mar-24 29 851.78
Coupon Payment 15-Apr-24 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-May-24 30 881.15
Coupon Payment 15-Jun-24 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Jul-24 30 881.15
Coupon Payment 15-Aug-24 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Sep-24 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Oct-24 30 881.15
Coupon Payment 15-Nov-24 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Dec-24 30 881.15
Coupon Payment 15-Jan-25 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Feb-25 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Mar-25 28 824.66
Coupon Payment 15-Apr-25 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-May-25 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Jun-25 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Jul-25 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Aug-25 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Sep-25 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Oct-25 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Nov-25 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Dec-25 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Jan-26 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Feb-26 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Mar-26 28 824.66
Coupon Payment 15-Apr-26 31 913.01
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Coupon Payment 15-May-26 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Jun-26 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Jul-26 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Aug-26 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Sep-26 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Oct-26 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Nov-26 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Dec-26 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Jan-27 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Feb-27 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Mar-27 28 824.66
Coupon Payment 15-Apr-27 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-May-27 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Jun-27 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Jul-27 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Aug-27 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Sep-27 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Oct-27 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Nov-27 31 913.01
Coupon Payment 15-Dec-27 30 883.56
Coupon Payment 15-Jan-28 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Feb-28 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Mar-28 29 851.78
Coupon Payment 15-Apr-28 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-May-28 30 881.15
Coupon Payment 15-Jun-28 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Jul-28 30 881.15
Coupon Payment 15-Aug-28 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Sep-28 31 910.52
Coupon Payment 15-Oct-28 30 881.15
Coupon Payment 15-Nov-28 31 910.52
Principal Payment plus 15-Dec-28 30 1,00,881.15
Coupon Payment
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Lo

ANNEXURE VII: BOARD RESOLUTIONS

fincare

Small Financs Bank

EXTHACT OF THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF
FINCARE SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED (“THE COMPANY™ “THE BANK™)
HELD 0% MONDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2023, AT 5TH FLOOKR. BREN MERCURY.
EAIKOMDANAHALLL SARJAFUR MAIN ROAD, BANGALDRE — S60035 AT 11:04
AM.

liems Mo, 8§ Approval on issue of Unsecured Son- Conver

SRESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71, 179 and ather applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2003 read with Rule 18 of the Companies (Share
*L':pil:l and Debenbire) Rules, 20014 and Rule 14 of the Companses {Prospecius and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 (meluding any statutory modification]s) or re-enactment thereof for the
ume beng in force), the nelevant rules | regulabons |/ guidelines, i any, prescnbed by the
Secumles and Exchange Baard of India (SEBI), the Reserve Bank of Indsa (RBI) and'ar any
other regulatory authonty, the relevant provisions of Memorandum and Artcles of Association
of the Bank and subgect to the rules, regulstions, pusdelines and circulars issued thersunder from
tme o bme by any Regulstory Authorties, subject 1o approval of shancholders, the consent of
Board of Mrectors of the Bank be and is hereby accorded 1o offer, 1ssoe and allot on a privane
placement basis Secured’ Unsecured, Rated, Bedeemable Non-Convertible Debentures upto a
valwe of 200 Crs { Indian Rupees Two Humdred Crone b, within a punu-d of 1 {one) wear from the
date of passing of this resolution, on such terms and conditions and in one or more ranches and
al par or al such premiumidiscount, as may be decided by the Board, 10 such person or persons,
including but not limited 10, one or more companies, bodies corporate(s), statulory corporalions,
commercial banks, lending agencies, financial mstilutions, insurnce companies, mutual funds,
pension’ provident funds, dividuals, s the case may be or such other person/persons. as the
Board may decide.

HRESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Board of the Bank, its Chiefl
Financial Officer and Company Secretary be and 15 hereby severally authonzed 1o do all such
acts, dewds and things o give effict w the above reselution including appointment of trnstees,
regisirar and share transfer agents or such other mtermedianes, fxng the erms and conditions
for the 1ssue of MCDs including but not limsted to the price, coupon, premium, discount, lenor,
ele. preparation and authentication of offer leters, ssve and allotment of debentures, authorizing
officers of the Bank or such other inlermediaries m connection with the psoe of NCDs or any
other matter mcidental ar ancillary thereto

HESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajeev Yadav, Managmg Direclor & Chael Executive
ilicer or Ms. Shefaly Kothari, Company Secretary of the Bank be and is severally authorized 1o
HNCARE SAAALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

ogiiared Office: 301-305, 3rd Floor, ABMUEET -, Ops. Mayar's Busgiow, Line Garden o, Mithakhali, Ahrresdabad 330005,
Guparat

Corporate Ol : B350 Sth Fleer, B Menoery, Kalkbndanah b, Sanapur Main Roed, Bingaluru 560015, Kimataks
‘bt mrwm Ancaridank com Email; WQME!IILHMMIK.LM Tid: Cal-AT50a444
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tue the certified true copy of the said resolution and file pecessary forms with the Regisirar of
Companes, Ahmedsbad.™

For Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
e

T e
&= J
- -._'\v\__ i

Shefaly Kothari
Company Secreary

FINCARE ShALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

Bungtitarad OMice: 301-306, Irdl Flood, ABHUEET v, Opg. Mlyor's Busglow, Ly Gardin Boed, Withaksall, Ahredabad - 330008,
Gujarat
Coipenati Ofice: BEI3530 Stk Flaer, Brim Mencery, Kaibondanah o, Safegur Main Road, Bingaluiu 560035, Kirmataka

wealbiite: wrwrm Sncarebank com Email; shecomese @dnaabani. com Tal: 0RO 4504188
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CIRCULAR RESOLUTION NO. 08,/2023-24

| fiowr allotmeent of Rated Subsordinat Lower Tier || Bonids
of face valwe of Rs. = wrh.

*RESOLVED THAT 4,500 (fousr thousand and ning hundred)] rated, subordinated, unsecursd, Bsted,
transferable, redesmabbe, non-convertible debenteres denominated in indian Rupees (“INR®), having
a face walue of INR 1,00,000 (Indan Rupees One Lakh) each and am aggregate face walue of INR
49,00, 00, 000 | Indkan Rupees Farty Hine Crone] (MDebenbures®), ksued on a private placement basis,
on the tesmmis and conditions set out im the placemsnt memora ndum dated June 15, 2003 ksued by
the Bank, the private placement offer and application letier dated June 15, 2023 issised by the Eank,
and the debsenture trust deed dated June 15, 2033 ("OTD") exeouted between the BEank and Catalyst
Trusteeship Umited {*Debenture Trustee™), in respect of the Debentures, b and ane hereby aliotted
to the entity specified below [Ehe ®Alottee|s]") on the deemed date of aliotrment, baing June 15, 2003
|"Deemed Date of Allotment®), as follows:

FARTICUILARS Ma. of Fare Walue TENOR Rate OF INTEREST ke bsepiveme
OF THE Drebamsribures Haoldex{s)"
DEBENTURES _ﬁ]_I_DTI_'EE“}
Rated, 4500 INR 5 |fied years 10.75% {ten ded mal SK Fimanoe
subcrdinated, 1,00,000 and & (si) | seven five percent) per Limited
unseosed, {Indian months fram annism, payable
Bsied, Ruspsses the Deemed | manthiy in acoondanoe
transferable, O Lakh) Dabe of with the terms of the
redeemable, e Allotment, oTo
N Deberiture L., wantil
convertible December
debentures 15, 2028

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bank be and & herely authorised to enter the name of the Allotbes in
the Register of Debenture Holders of the Bank as the holders of the Debentures, and, any director,
M. Eeyur Doshil, bs. g‘ﬂ“llh’ Kothar | Austhorised Persans®] be and are hereby severally awthosr sed,
ta enter the name of the Allottee(s] in the Register of Debenture Holders of the Bank.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the At horised Persorns be and ane hereby severally authorised ta:

la) dio all other acts, deeds and things in connection with the allotment of the Debenteres,
Inchuding without Bmitation the issse and delivery of letters of allotment, ksuing debeniune
cestificabe(s], paying stamg duty on the Debentures, filing return of allobment with the
jurisdictional registrar of companies; and

FINCARE SMALL FINARNCE EANE LIMITED

Ragatersd Office- 3I1-306, 3rd Floor, ABHLEET ¥, Opp. Muyor's Bungiow, Linw Garden Road, WMithakhall Ahoedtud -
JE0008, Guparat

Corponsts Ofice: S1357F9 %k Moor, Bren Mercury, Kakondanshall, Sarjsgor Main Road, Bargslurs- 550013, Kamataks

Wosbraite: e firgarsans com Fril -yt ooy e fincareiani com Tel: 080523044334

OR: ST 12000 L RERP L2 5170
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[1-1] execute all such documents, and do all such acts, deeds and things, 35 may be required ta give
effect to the aliotment of the Debentures ar may be necessary or expedient to implement
these resolutians.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT copies of the foregoing resolutions certified to be true coples by any
Directar or the Company Secretary of the Bank be fumished to any personds) as may be deemed
necemang.”

Far Fincare Smiall Finance Bank Limited
@rﬁ}"’

Shetaly Kothari
Company Secretary

Dates June 15, 2023

FINCARE SMALL FINANCE BEANE LIBMITED

Ragatersd Office- 3I1-306, rd Floor, ABHLEET ¥, Opp. Maryor's Bungiow, Linw Garden Road, Withakhall Ahoedatud -
JE0008, Guparat

Corporsts Ofice: S1357¥9 %5k foor, Bren Mercury, Kakondanshall, Srjsgor Main Road, Bargslurs- 550013, Kamataks

Wosbste: e fircareank com Ermail - b mp e fincaresank com Tel: 080223044244

OR: ST 12000 L RERP L2 5170
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v
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CERTIFIEDY TRUE COPY OF THE SPECIAL RES{HLUTION PASSED BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF FINCARE SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED (HEREINAFTER
REFERRED Ty AS “THE BANKTHE COMPANY™) AT THEIR EXTRAMRDINARY
GENERAL MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, MARCH 15 2023 AT THE CORPORATE
OFFICE OF THE BANK SITUATED AT STH FLOMYE. BREN MERCURY.
EAIKONDANAHALLL SARJAPUR MAIN ROAD. BANGALORE-S6M3S AT 11:30 AN

Item MNo. 3: roval to raive funds through Private Macement of Secured/nsedu Rated
Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

Mr. Pankaj Gulati proposed 1o which Mr. Keyar Doshi seconded and the following resolution was
unanimmsly passed as Special Resslution:

“RESOLYED THAT purssant to the provissions of Sections 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 20013 read with Rule 18 of the Companies (Share Capital and Dhebenture)
Rules, 2004 and Rule 14 of the Companses {Prospectus and Allotment of Securnities) Rules, 2004
(including amy stahsiory modification s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being m foree), the relevant
rules | regulatvons  guidelmes, if any, prescribed by the Secunties ond Exchamnge Board of India {(SEBI),
the Reserve Bank of Indsa (RBI} and'or any other negulatory authonty, the relevant provisons of
Memorandum and Articles of Assocmtion of the Bank and subject to the rules, regulstons, guidelines
and circulars isswed thereunder from time to time by any Regulatory Authorities, the consent of
members of the Bank be and is hereby accorded to offer, issue and allot on a prvate placement basss m
one ar mare tranches, Secured’ Unsecured, Rated, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures within a
period of | {ome) year from the dabe of passing of thas resolution, provided that the amount raised
through MCDs durmg thes persod of 1 year skall mot exceed Bs. 200 Crores (Indian Rupeoess Twao
Hundred Crore ) on such terms and conditions and at par or at such premium'discount. as may be decided
by the Board, 1o such persen or persons, including but not limited o, ane or more companses, bodses
corporatols ). statulory corporatsons, commercial banks, lemding agencies, fnancial insifutions,
insurance compames, mutual funds, pension’ provedend fands, mdividsals, as the case may be or such
other person'persons as the Board may decide.

Certified to be true,
For Fincare S5mull Finance Bank Limited

Sheinly Kothard
Company Secreiary

FINCARE SRAALL FINAMNCE BANEK LIMITED

Regtered OfTica: 301-306, 3rd Floor, ARHREET -, Dpp. Mape's Bunghow, Low Carden Aoad, Mithakhal Ahmefabad =
FRO00E, Gujarat

Corporate Office: B33539 Sth Floor, Bran Mancury, Kaikondanzhalli, Sar ager Main Aoad, Besgalun-560035, Karnataka
wrweal i ra ian b com

CiN: LT 120G S 5PI0REITE
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ANNEXURE IX: DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATES

LRl @lL

CTL/23-24/01 133

[Anniwne TA)

DUE DMUWEEMCE CERTIFICATE TO BE GIVEN BY THE DEBENMTURE TRUSTEE AT THE TIME OF FILING THE
DRAFT OFFER DDCUMENT OR PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMDRANDURY INFORMATION MEMORANDLIR
{Applicabie for Secured ond Lneeoured fccuances)

Ta,

B5E Limitesd,
Phircae Jecheebhoy Towes,
25th Floar, Dalal Strect,
Mumbai - 800 D01

Dwear Sir Jf adaimn,

SUE.: Issue of 4,500 |Four Thousand and Mine Hundred) rated, subocedinated, unseoured, listed,
transterable, redeemabde, non-converiible debenbures denominated in ndian Rupees |"INR],
each haing a face value of INR 1,00,000 {Indian Rupees One Lakh) and aggregating to
“mlIHMMMMMImmmHHMWI
Finanios Baank Linited.

W, the debenbure trustes]s) 1o the above-mentionad forthooming issue state as folows:

1] ‘We fave camingd documents pertaining to the mid issue and other such nelevant documents,
repoets and certificathons.

1 On the basis of such examination and of the discussions with the Issuer, s directors and other
officers, other agencks and an independent verification of the varicus relevant doouments, reports
and certHicatiors:

W confirm that:

a3l The lssuer has made adequate provisions for andfor fas taken stegs to provide for adequate
security for the debt seowithes to b Epued and lished— Mot Applicable.

B] The ksuer has obiained the permissions ' consents necessary an:rntlng security an the said
propertyiies) — Mot Applicabli.

€} The Isswser has made all the nelevant discdosunes about e security and ks ontinued cbiigations
towards the hokders of debt securities - Mot Applicable.

d] Iszuer has adequately disclosed all consents) permissions requined for creation of further charge
oo assets in offer document ar private placemssnt memorandumy’ informatian memarandum and
all diclosures made in the offer document or private placement memorandum/ infarmation
memorandum with respect to oreation of securdty are In condfirration with the dauses of
debemiure rustoe agrisment — Not Applicable.

2] |ssuer has ghwen an undertaking that charge shall be oreated in favour of debenture Erustes a5 per
terms of issue before filing of listing application = Mot Applicable.

CATELTET TRURTEERHF LIVITED L e,
M Do i, B Pl B0, CLT Mt Salins, Rarmsrsr [laaa | s auu (0 V059 (4] VLT D00 WS S0 (50 S0E TR

B, EWTISE I i, PG . WL, i | Dy (Wt Pl Brmasil P 00 2T Toni =4l [l o

ool e (2 . W By e, Wby (5 S [N B 5 Do e M, My Dl - OO Tl = TH 400 3ST800 L o

T o e A s £ P A T ==

Wms | Fewkel | Bewebes | Celd | Cheeesl | SO | ssss
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CATALYST @t
Bediave i poursell.. Trest ual
f} |5 has dischosed all covenants proposed 1o be included in debenture trust deed |inciusding any
side letter, accelerated payment dause et offer document o private placement

mamorandum, infomration mesmorandum and given an undertaking that debembure trust deed
wiould bz esipcuted before filing of listing application.

@ Aldiscosures made in the draft offer document or private placement memorandum)’ infonmation
masmorandum with respect to the debt securities are tre, fair and adequate to enable the
Imsestors bo make a well-informmed decision as to the westment in the proposed S

W fave satkfied oursekes about the ability of the lsuer to service the debt securities.

Place: Mumbal
Date: bune 13, 2023

CATRLYTET TRUSTEERHF LIMITED

ey
Ml DT Sede, 7 P B, C07 M, S, Sarmasrer flam | na e om0 Vel o (1] S50 D0 BEE S0 L5 400 ST .
BEEL DV DI i, PR P, W Bk § Codry B, Masd Bmasl P &30 SO0 Tod =3 Fl e s | |
Eoribd Dl i rm v W B T, w o vy Dl - PESTT Tl = TN 48D IR "'}."
- M, PR TP E TR W sl o st bt rrvtem ey Wl s 8 73 0 . s ) J

s | ks | Bewsbes | Dei | Cheeesl | SOy | Rses
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ANNEXURE X: DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO THE SEBI DEBENTURE TRUSTEES OPERATIONAL CIRCULAR

(a) Details of assets, movable property and immovable property on which charge is proposed to be
created

Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(b) Title deeds (original/ certified true copy by issuers/ certified true copy by existing charge holders,
as available) or title reports issued by a legal counsel/ advocates, copies of the relevant
agreements/ Memorandum of Understanding

Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(c) Copy of evidence of registration with Sub-registrar, Registrar of Companies, Central Registry of
Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest (CERSAI) etc

Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(d) For unencumbered assets, an undertaking that the assets on which charge is proposed to be
created are free from any encumbrances

Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(e) For encumbered assets, on which charge is proposed to be created, the following consents along-
with their validity as on date of their submission:

(i) Details of existing charge over the assets along with details of charge holders, value/
amount, copy of evidence of registration with Sub-registrar, Registrar of Companies,
CERSAI, Information Utility (1U) registered with Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India
(IBBI) etc. as applicable: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated
debt instruments.

(ii) Consent/ No-objection certificate (NOC) from existing charge holders for further creation
of charge on the assets or relevant transaction documents wherein existing charge holders
have given conditional consent/ permission to the Issuer to create further charge on the
assets, along-with terms of such conditional consent/ permission, if any: Not applicable as
the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(iii) Consent/ NOC from existing unsecured lenders, in case, negative lien is created by Issuer
in favour of unsecured lenders: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and
subordinated debt instruments.

() In case of personal guarantee or any other document/ letter with similar intent is offered as
security or a part of security:

(i) Details of guarantor viz. relationship with the Issuer: Not applicable as the Debentures are
unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(ii) Net worth statement (not older than 6 months from the date of debenture trustee
agreement) certified by a chartered accountant of the guarantor: Not applicable as the
Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(iii) List of assets of the guarantor including undertakings/ consent/ NOC as per per para 2.1(b)

and 2.1(c) of Chapter Il of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational Circular: Not applicable
as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.
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(iv) Conditions of invocation of guarantee including details of put options or any other terms
and conditions which may impact the security created: Not applicable as the Debentures
are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(v) Executed copies of previously entered agreements for providing guarantee to any other
person, if any: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt
instruments.

In case of corporate guarantee or any other document/ letter with similar intent is offered as
security or a part of security:

(i) Details of guarantor viz. holding/ subsidiary/ associate company etc: Not applicable as the
Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(ii) Audited financial statements (not older than 6 months from the date of debenture trustee
agreement) of guarantor including details of all contingent liabilities: Not applicable as the
Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(iii) List of assets of the guarantor along-with undertakings/consent/NOC as per per para
2.1(b) and 2.1(c) of Chapter Il of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Operational Circular: Not
applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(iv) Conditions of invocation of guarantee including details of put options or any other terms
and conditions which may impact the security created: Not applicable as the Debentures
are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(v) Impact on the security in case of restructuring activity of the guarantor: Not applicable as
the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(vi) Undertaking by the guarantor that the guarantee shall be disclosed as "contingent
liability" in the "notes to accounts" of financial statement of the guarantor: Not applicable
as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

(vii) Copy of Board resolution of the guarantor for the guarantee provided in respect of the
debt securities of the Issuer: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and
subordinated debt instruments.

(viii) Executed copies of previously entered agreements for providing guarantee to any other
person, if any: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt
instruments.

In case securities (equity shares etc.) are being offered as security then a holding statement from
the depository participant along-with an undertaking that these securities shall be pledged in
favour of debenture trustee(s) in the depository system: Not applicable as the Debentures are
unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

Details of any other form of security being offered viz. Debt Service Reserve Account etc.: Not
applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.

Any other information, documents or records required by debenture trustee with regard to
creation of security and perfection of security: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and

subordinated debt instruments.

Declaration: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated debt instruments.
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(1 Terms and conditions of debenture trustee agreement including fees charged by debenture
trustees(s): Please refer the consent letter of the Debenture Trustee for terms and conditions of the
appointment of the Debenture Trustee and fee of the Debenture Trustee.

(m) Details of security to be created: Not applicable as the Debentures are unsecured and subordinated
debt instruments.

(a) Process of due diligence carried out by the debenture trustee under the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Operational Circular: The Debenture Trustee has carried out due diligence in accordance with the
manner prescribed under Applicable Law.

(b) Due diligence certificates as per the format specified in Schedule IVA of the Debt Listing

Regulations: Enclosed as Annexure IX. The due diligence certificate will be submitted to BSE along
with the Placement Memorandum.

248



Placement Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: June 15, 2023 For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

ANNEXURE XI: IN-PRINCIPLE APPROVAL FROM BSE

Sot

LXPEmaemnce e new

DCS/COMP/PG/IP-PPO116/23-24 June 14, 2023

Fincare Small Finance Bank Ursited
301306, 3rd Floor, Abhijeet -V

Opp, Mayor's Bunglow, Law Garden Road
Mzhakral, Ahmedabad 330 006, Gujarat

Dear Sk/Madam

We ackrowsdge nacaipt of your agplication on the orline portaf on June 15, 2013 seeking princple
approval for issue of captioned security. In ths regard, the Eechiege is plised 30 grant inprinciple
appresal for Bsting of captioned security subject 1o fulfiling the foliowing conditions at the time of
saeking kstng:

1 Hing of listing applcation.

1. Paymant of fees a may be prescribed from time to time.

3 Compliance with SEBI [Issue and Listieg of Non-Convartibie Securities) Seguiations, 2021 read with
SEBI Chroutar No SER/HO/DDHSP/CR2011/613 dated August 10, 2021 and ciroulars issued theneunder
nd also Complance with provisions of Comganies Act 2013

4 Receipt of Statesory & other approvals & compfiencs of guidelisss issusd by the statutory authorities
iscluding SES|, RBI, DCA etc. as may be applicable.

5. Complance with changs s the guideines, regulations, directions, crculars of the Exchangs, SE8 or
any other statutory authortss, documentary requirements from time 1o time,

. Complance with below mentioned drcubar dated June 10, 2020 isseed by 85E bafore opening of the
e 10 the investors:

7. Issuers, for whom wse of £89 & not masdatory, specific attention ks drawn towards comgliance with
Chapter XV of $£81 Cirodar No SEBI/HO/DOHS/P/CIR/2021/612 dated August 10, 2021 and BSE Creular
No 20210519-19 dated May 19, 2021, Accordingly, ssuers of privately placed debt securitias i terms
of SEBI (hsue and Lsting of Non-Corwertible Secunties| Repuations, 2021 or LOM Regulations for whom
scoessing the electronic book platiorm {E6%) s mot mandatcey shall upload decails of the issue with any
omormsnBMnmmnwduhm Thoanlkanhsupbodeﬂus

sapsase 1 Wontay Suck Fchange 1 |
Pogrovd CINe Foor 35 7§ Towen. Dol Weet Vartal 40300

“SENSEX  Coreas vueir ot siiidamauammetisin:
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S5

EXPLERANCE R AW

8. It is advised that Face Vaiue of NCDs bsue through pivate placesant basis should be kapt as per
Chapter V of SES Circular No SEBI/HOYDDHS/P/ORS2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and SEBI Greular
No. SEBI/MO/DOMS/P/ORS2022/00144 dated October 25, 2022.

9. issuers ave hereby odwsed to comply with signing of ogreements with both the depositories as per
Regwation 7 of SE (issue and Listing of Noo-Coovertitve Securities) Regulations, 2021 read with SES)
Chrcular Mo SEBY/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated Augwst 10, 2021

10. Company is further reguested to comply with SEBI Circufar  SEBU/HO/DDNS/DONMS-
Wmmmumxwm&wmmmmm

This In-Principle Approval Is vadld for a period of L year from the date of kssue of this letter or perked of
1 year from the date of opening of the first offer of debt securities under the shelt placement
memorandum, which ever appicable, The Cacharge reserves Its right to withdraw its In-principle
spproval at any leter stage # the information submetted to the Cachacge s found to be incomplets/
ncareect/miskading/Taka o for any cantravantion of Rules, Bye-Srws and Rupdstions of the Exchange,
SEB! (Issue and Usting of Non-Commertibie Securities) Ropdations, 2021 read with SEBI Circutar No
SEBI/HO/ODHS/P/CR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and drculars ssued thanunder, SEBI {Listing
Chigations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Guideines/Regulations issued by the
satutory suthorities etc. further, it s subject to payment of all appicable charpes levied by the
Excharge for usage of sny spstem, software or smibsr such faclities provided by BSE which the Compary
shall avail to process the agplication of secuntias for which approval is given vide this letter

Yours faithéully,
For BSE Umited

Tayda o Bt
Deputy Cenural Manager Manager

S&P@3SE

SENSEX
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The shareholding pattern of the Issuer as of the last quarter end, i.e., March 31, 2023, prepared in accordance
with the LODR Regulations is set out below:

SNo \ Description Cases SIEIES] % Equity \
1 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND 1 168,840 0.08
2 BODIES CORPORATES 18 186,060,521 84.27
3 FOREIGN CORPORATE BODIES 4 18,251,424 8.27
4 HUF 2 18,887 0.01
5 NON RESIDENT INDIAN NON REPATRIABLE 1 20,000 0.01
6 QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER 5 3,747,660 1.70
7 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 158 5,138,091 2.33
8 TRUSTS 1 7,374,297 3.34

Total | 190 220,779,720  100.00 |
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ANNEXURE XIII: FINALISED FORM OF THE PPOA (ALONG WITH ALL DISCLOSURES)

Attached separately.

FORM NO PAS-4

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM APPLICATION LETTER
[Pursuant to section 42 and rule 14(3) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014]

GENERAL INFORMATION

Name of the Company

Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited
(Herein after referred to as Fincare
SFB)

Address of the Company

301-306, 3rd Floor, ABHIJEET -V,
Opp. Mayor's Bunglow, Law Garden
Road, Mithakhali Ahmedabad-
380006 Gujarat

Website and other contact details of the Company

www.fincarebank.com

Ph : +91 7940011000

Email :
sfbocompsec@fincarebank.com

Date of incorporation of the company;

05/04/1995

Business carried on by the company and its
subsidiaries with the details of branches or units, if
any;

Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited is
a banking Company holding RBI
license issued in pursuance to Section
22(1) of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949 to carry Small Finance bank
business in India providing banking
services to its customers. Fincare SFB
does not have any Subsidiary
company.

Brief particulars of the management of the
company

Particulars about the management of
the company is enclosed as Annexure
1

Names, addresses, DIN and occupations of the directors

S.No. | Name Address

DIN Occupation

Annexure 1

Management’s perception of risk factors:-

Management does not see any risk
in the proposed fund raise.

Details of default, if any, including therein the
amount involved, duration of default and present
status, in repayment of —

i) statutory dues; NIL
ii) debentures and interest thereon; NIL
iii) deposits and interest thereon; NIL
iv) loan from any bank or financial institution and | NIL

interest thereon.
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Names, designation, address and phone number,
email ID of the nodal/ compliance officer of the
company, if any, for the private placement offer
process;

Email Id :

Ms. Shefaly Kothari

Company Secretary

B-604, Purva Sunshine, Sarjapur
Main Road, Kaikondanahalli,
Bangalore-560102

Ph: 73496114778

shefaly.kothari@fincarebank.com

2. PARTICULARS OF THE OFFER

a. Date of passing of board resolution 20" February, 2023
b. Date of passing of resolution in the general meeting, | 15" March, 2023
authorizing the offer of securities
C. Kinds of securities offered (i.e. whether share or debenture) | Rated, Listed, Unsecured,
and class of security Subordinated, Redeemable, Lower
Tier Il Bonds Non-Convertible
Debentures
d. Price at which the security is being offered including the | Rs. 1,00,000/- each
premium, if any, along with justification of the price
e. Name and address of the valuer who performed valuation of | Since the Debentures are
the security offered Unsecured, Non-Convertible and
issued at par
f. Amount which the company intends to raise by way of | Rs. 49,00,00,000/-
securities
g. Terms of raising of securities: Duration, if applicable, Rate of | | Duration if |5 Years 6
dividend or rate of interest, mode of payment and repayment applicable Months
Rate of interest
or dividend 10.75%
Cheque(s)/
demand draft/
electronic
Mode of | clearing
payment service(ECS)/
credit through
RTGS system/
fund transfer
h. Proposed time schedule for which the offer letter is valid From the opening hours of June 15,
2023 to the Closing hours of June
15, 2023
i. Purposes and objects of the offer The funds are being raised to meet
the need of Business expansion
j- Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either | Not Applicable
as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of such objects
k. Principle terms of assets charged as security, if applicable Not Applicable

3. DISCLOSURES WITH REGARD TO INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, LITIGATION ETC.
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Any financial or other material interest of the directors,
promoters or key managerial personnel in the offer and
the effect of such interest in so far as it is different from
the interests of other persons

NIL

Details of any litigation or legal action pending or taken
by any Ministry or Department of the Government or a
statutory authority against any promoter of the offeree
company during the last three years immediately
preceding the year of the circulation of the offer letter
and any direction issued by such Ministry or Department
or statutory authority upon conclusion of such litigation
or legal action shall be disclosed.

NIL

Remuneration of directors (during the current year and
last three financial years)

Enclosed as Annexure-2

Related Party transactions entered during the last three
financial years immediately preceding the year of
circulation of offer letter including with regard to loans
made or, guarantees given or securities provided

Enclosed as Annexure -3

Summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse
remarks of auditors in the last five financial years
immediately preceding the year of circulation of offer
letter and of their impact on the financial statements
and financial position of the company and the corrective
steps taken and proposed to be taken by the company
for each of the said reservations or qualifications or
adverse remark

NIL

Vi.

Details of any inquiry, inspections or investigations
initiated or conducted under the Companies Act or any
previous company law in the last three vyears
immediately proceeding the year of circulation of offer
letter in the case of company and all of its subsidiaries.
Also if there were any prosecutions filed (whether
pending or not) fines imposed, compounding of offences
in the last three years immediately preceding the year of
the offer letter and if so, section-wise details thereof for
the company and all of its subsidiaries

NIL

Vii.

Details of acts of material frauds committed against the
company in the last three years, if any, and if so, the
action taken by the company

NIL

4,

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Capital structure of the Company

Particulars Number of

Securities

Description

Aggregate
Nominal Value

Authorised Capital 30,00,00,000

Equity Share Capital

300,00,00,000

Issued Capital 22,07,79,720

Equity Share Capital

220,77,97,200

Subscribed Capital 22,07,79,720

Equity Share Capital

220,77,97,200

254




Placement Memorandum

Date: June 15, 2023

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation only
(This Placement Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

d. Paid up Capital 22,07,79,720 Equity Share Capital 220,77,97,200
e. Size of the Present offer | Nil Nil Nil
f. Paid up Capital (after the | 22,07,79,720 220,77,97,200
offer)
g. Share Premium Account | 6,82,30,00,000
(before the offer)
h. Share Premium Account | 6,82,30,00,000
(after the offer)
ii) Details of the existing share capital of the Company
Date of allotment No of shares Face Value Price Form of
allotted of shares consideration
allotted
07.05.2009 1442500 10 10 Cash
07.09.2009 589300 10 11 Cash
07.09.2009 409000 10 10 Cash
12.12.2009 225000 10 11 Cash
25.10.2010 2762430 10 36.20 Cash
19.06.2013 3488373 10 43 Cash
20.12.2014 405063 10 10 Cash
03.05.2016 68,68,132 10 91 Cash
01.10.2016 1,11,05,123 10 111 Cash
03.03.2017 69,95,073 10 203 Cash
24.03.2017 26,10,837 10 203 Cash
30.03.2017 98,523 10 203 Cash
27.09.2018 15723932 10 89 Cash
29.03.2019 3252695 10 266 Cash
05.12.2019 6559436 10 131.47 Cash
31.12.2019 615064 10 131.47 Cash
27.04.2021 9982759 10 170 Cash
04.05.2021 147186480 10 NA NA
Il. Summary of financial position of the Company
Amount in Lacs
Shareholder's funds 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21
Capital & Liabilities
Capital 22,078 22,078 6,361
Employees stock options outstanding 1,458 638 100
Reserves and Surplus 107,835 97,471 95,330
Deposits 803,319 645,617 531,850
Borrowings 278,400 294,354 140,043
Other Liabilities and Provisions 33,679 29,999 23,024
Total 1,246,769 1090,157 796,708
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in the Offer letter;

Assets
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 65,438 111,679 103,650
Balzfmces with banks and money at call and short 11,781 11,917 11,913
notice
Investments 252,284 215,163 127,936
Advances 870,242 703,696 530,112
Fixed Assets 5,631 4,234 3,619
Other Assets 41,393 43,468 19,478
Total 1,246,769 1090,157 796,708
l. Change in significant accounting policies
No change in accounting policy during last three financial years.
Il. Others
S.No. | Particulars Preceding Year | Preceding Year | Preceding Year
1 (2022-23) 2 (2021-22) 3 (2020-21)
a. Profit before tax 12997 575 14642
b. Profit after tax 10364 887 11314
c. Dividends declared by the - - -
Company
d. Interest Coverage Ratio NA NA NA
5. A DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTORS
a. the company has complied with the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder;
b. the compliance with the Act and the rules does not imply that payment of dividend or interest
or repayment of debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central Government
c. the monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution dated 30.05.2017 to sign
this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been
complied with. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and
complete and no information material to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or
concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.
Itis further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly
and legibly attached to this form.

A/ -
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Shefaly Kothari

Details of Directors of Company & Particulars about the management of the company

Company Secretary

S.N. | Name of Director Present Residential Address DIN Occupation
1 Pramod Kabra Planet Godrej, Tower 4, Flr 21 Simplex Mills | 02252403 Service
(Non-Executive Compound, Nr Jacobs Circle, Mahalaxmi,
Director & Chairman) Mumbai,400011,Maharashtra, India
P Rajeev Yadav Villa 578, Phase 3, Adarsh Palm Retreat, 00111379 Service

(Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer)

Outer Ring Road, Devara Beesana Halli,
Bellandur, Bangalore 560 103, Karnataka,
India
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3 Alok Prasad 144, Vista Villas, Opposite Unitech Cyber 00080225 Service
(Independent Director) | Park, Sector-46, Gurgaon 122001 HR
4 Aarthi Sivanandh Flat E G R N Sri Kripa Apartments No. 36 00140141 Service
(Independent Director) | East Abhiramapuram, 2nd Street, Mylapore,
Chennai 600 004, Tamil Nadu, India
5 Divya Sehgal Flat No 1307 & 1308, Wing A, 13th Floor, 01775308 Service
(Nominee Director) Ashok Tower, Dr. Ambebkar Road, Parel,
Mumbai 400 012, Maharashtra, India
6 Dhiraj Poddar G —001, Springs, GD Ambedkar Marg, Near | 09146905 Service
(Nominee Director) Wadala, Telephone Exhange, Dadar East,
Mumbai 400 014, Maharashtra India
7 Nanda Dave B1101-02, Paras Emperor, 11th Floor, 08673208 Service
(Independent Director) | Bawadia Kalan, Bhopal 462 039, Madhya
Pradesh, India
8 Narayanan Nadadur A — 503, Gulmohar Apartments, Ceaser 07877022 Service
(Independent Director) | Road, Amboli, Andheri West, Mumbai 400
058, Maharashtra, India
9 Sameer Yogesh 901/E, Safal Parivesh, Prahladnagar, Satelite | 00157693 Service
Nanavati Ahmedabad City, Ahmedabad, Manekbag
(Nominee Director) 380 015, Gujarat, India
10 | Sunil Satyapal Gulati 703 Sterling Sea Face Dr Ab Road Worli 00016990 Service
(Independent Director) | Mumbai 400018 MH IN
11 | Vinay Baijal 701,Lodha Grandeur Sayani Road, Neat 07516339 Service
(Independent Director) | Parel St Dep Prabhadevi Mumbai 400025
MH IN
12 Keyur Gopalbhai Doshi | 57, Vikas Nagar, Old Padra Road, Baroda ACOPDO0302Q | Service
(Chief Financial Officer) | 390020 GJ
13 Shefaly Kothari B-604, Purva Sunshine, Sarjapur Main Road, | AMIPK2156M | Service

(Company Secretary)

Kaikondanahalli, Bangalore-560102

*Management: KMP

ANNEXURE -2 Remuneration to Directors

(In Lakhs) 2022-23 | 2021-22 2020-21
Directors Remuneration
Mr. Rajeev Yadav 304 386 295
ANNEXURES — 3 Related Party Transactions.
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21

Management Consultancy Fees
-India Finserve Advisors Private
Limited
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Remuneration of Key Managerial
Personals

Mr. Rajeev Yadav

Mr. Keyur Doshi

Ms. Shefaly Kothari

304
145
37

386
137
32

295
121
28

Loan taken from related parties
-Relatives of KMP

11

Repayment of loan taken from
related parties

Future Financial Services Private
Limited

Interest paid on loan taken from
Related parties

-Fincare Business Services Limited
-Relatives of KMP

Loan given to related parties
Future Financial Services Private
Limited

Lok Management Services Private
Limited

Repayment of loan from related
parties

Future Financial Services Private
Limited

Lok Management Services Private
Limited

Interest received from loan given to
Related parties

Future Financial Services Private
Limited

Closing Balance

Management Consultancy Payable
India Finserve Advisors Private
Limited
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